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I AVANEX

'

Dear Shareholders,

As we celebrate our 10-year anniversary, it is timely to discuss the path we have traveled and our plans for
the future. As a company, we have prevailed, and grown, through difficult times. As a team, we have learned to
embrace risk and to execute crisply. We are excited about our opportunities and plans for the future,

Start-up, Fiscal 1998-2001

Avanex was founded as a venture-backed startup in 1997, with a sweeping vision: bringing a Photonic
Processor to the telecommunications industry. Avanex articulated a differentiated path to achieving this vision
based upon a deep understanding of network requirements and a continual broadening of our expertise in optical
hardware, software and firmware. Customers and investors quickly accepted the overall concept, leading to
stror.g revenue growth and a very successful IPO in 2000.

.

Industry consolidation, Fiscal 2001-2004

In 2001, the telecommunications industry entered into a downturn.

During this downturn, we took our next major step towards realizing our vision. Under the leadership of
Walter Alessandrini, Avanex executed a series of large acquisitions, including Alcatel Optronics, Corning
Photonics, and the transmission module group of Vitesse, These acquisitions, which were completed in the late
summer of 2003, broadened the product line, technology, intellectual property, and customer scope of the
company. The mergers led to strong revenue growth in fiscal 2004, establishing Avanex as a broad-based and
strategic supplier to the industry leaders in the telecom marketplace.

Restructuring, Fiscal 2005-2007

Although Avanex had emerged as a leading supplier, it suffered from a complicated and high-cost
operational structure. Starting in the fall of 2004, a restructuring plan was initiated to create a company with a
differentiated operational and development platform for future growth.

On the operational side, we executed a series of strategic decisions to implement a strong, flexible, and
low-cost manufacturing infrastructure to serve as our platform for future growth. Key elements of this strategy
included centralizing our manufacturing logistics infrastructure into a single low-cost center in Bangkok and
outsourcing our manufacturing to a small number of strategic manufacturing partners.

On the product side, we undertook a series of steps including eliminating non-strategic product lines. All of
these product exits were undertaken in a coordinated, gradual way to minimize any disruptive impact on our
customers. The divestiture of our French GaAs and InP fabs in April of 2007 completed the exit of these product
lines.

Our research and development teams were reconfigured to improve effectiveness. We structured our
company to have technologists close to our customers, with each site having defined product and technology
roadmaps. In addition, we opened a substantial design site in Shanghai, improving the cost-effectiveness of our
R&D spending, providing us with development assets close to our manufacturing partners, and greatly enhancing
our ability to serve customers in China,




I would like to thank our employees for their commitment and focus, our investors for providing us with the
needed capital to execute this turnaround, our customers for supporting our company throughout a series of
manufacturing and product transitions, and our Board of Directors for working with management, as we executed
through a series of bold and risky strategic moves.

What the team achieved throughout this period, with a combination of great problem-solving and shear
tenacity, is simply remarkable. Over this three year period we:

« Grew revenue at an average quarterly growth rate greater than 8 percent,

* Improved gross margin by 70 points, with an average gquarterly gross margin improvement greater than
400 basis points,

* Built an operational and financial structure that positions the company for rapid, healthy and profitable growth.
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In fiscal 2007, we achieved strong growth, achieving record revenue of $213 million, a 31 percent increase
over the prior year revenue of $163 million. We were rewarded for our investments in telecom optics modules,
with strong revenue growth driven by new products; including our integrated amplifier for next-generation
network deployments, dispersion compensation modules, transmission modules, and modulators.

Profitable Growth, Fiscal 2008 and Beyond

After a decade, our vision of providing sophisticated solutions to the optical telecommunications industry
remains strong. This vision is clearly stated in our mission: to be the leading supplier of optical solutions to the

@  Non-GAAP adjustments remove the effect of non-recurring events and stock-based compensation. Please
see Reconciliation of GAAP Net Loss Per Share to Non-GAAP Net Loss Per Share at the end of this letter.




telecommunications industry. To achieve this mission, we havé articulated and are executing a multi-year
strategy with several important elements. ‘

We are a leading module and subsystem company focused upon a large and growing market: optical
telecommunications. The focus on this market will be rewarded as telecommunications enters an extended
growth phase driven by the coming explosion in video traffic and global infrastructure builds.

We have established market leadership positions in many module and subsystem markets, including
amplification, dispersion compensation, wavelength management and key component markets, such as lithium
niobate modulators.

In these areas of market leadership, our product development teams are bringing to the market exciting and
differentiated products to dramatically improve the economics of data delivery around the globe. In this year
alone we will bring to market a visionary amplification platform called “Oasis™; a series of advanced modulator
products for 10G and 40G transmission systems; and a reconfigurable optical add/drop multiplexer, or ROADM,
designed to provide our customers with a cost effective solution to improving the utilization of access and
metropolitan networks.

Transmission is the next expansion market for the company. Throughout fiscal 2006 and 2007, our revenue
from transmission sales grew strongly. To solidify this trend, we have increased staffing and recently acquired
the telecom assets of Essex, the transmission division of Northrop-Grumman. We now have three sites and over
50 R&D engineers focused upon transmission modules, resulting in our product development pipeline being full
of exciting growth opportunities. Throughout fiscal 2008, we will bring to market a full suite of advanced 10G
transmission modules to increase our presence in this exciting market

Although we are very proud of our successes, we view these efforts as simply providing us with a strong
foundation for an era of expanding profitable growth, In fiscal 2008 and beyond, it is our goal to use our
investments to accelerate our revenue growth and profitability, providing solutions to our customers, value to our
shareholders and meaningful careers for our employees.

On behalf of everyone on the Avanex team, ] would like to thank you for your ongoing support and
continued confidence in our ability to execute and lead the company to the next level.

Sincerely,

s

Jo S. Major, Jr.
Chairman, President and CEQ




Avanex Corporation
Reconciliation of GAAP Net Loss per Share to Non-GAAP Net Loss per Share
Amounts in thousands, except for per share data

QLos Q205 Q3405 Q405 QL6 Q206 Q306 Q406 Q107 Q207 Q307 Q407

NetLoss, GAAP ............... $(22,322) $(24,351) $(18,386) $(42,812) $(16,923) $(18,543) $(10,167) $(9,059) $(9,714) $(8,553) $(6,653) $(5,685)
GAAP Net Loss per share-basic and
diluted ...................L. $ (0168 (©.INDHI (0.13)HF (030)S (0.12)F (013§ (0.06)$ (0.OHF (0.05)% (0.04)$ (0.03)§ (0.03)
Recenciliation of GAAP Net Loss to Non-GAAP Net Loss:
Amortization of intangibles . .. .. 1,239 1,242 1,242 2,000 1,765 1,385 1,386 912 852 656 531 664
Share-based payments . ........ 83 157 53 73 442 618 1,242 2,150 1,888 1,813 1,993 1414
Restructuring, without share-
based payments ............ 2,588 5,441 14 21,229 29 2,926 140 (1,252) 70y 433 L1532 (17
(Gain) loss on disposal of ‘
property and equipment . . . ., . — (1,476) (410} 36 7 (775) (2.486) (1,810) 20 (28) 5 (484)
Loss on sale of subsidiary ...... — — — — — — — _ - —_ — 3216
Operating expenses for )
subsidiary until closing . ..... — —_ — — —_ — — — — — — 941

Due diligence expenses related to

abandoned acquisition

activily ..o —_ — —_ —_ J— — — — —_ 2,146 —_ _—
Excess, obsolete RoHS ........ — — — — — 951 -~ — _ —_— — —_
Loss on debt refinanting ....... —_ —_ — —_ — 4,525 — — — — — —
Write-off of investment (in

Gemfire, which was included

in Other Expense in Q4/05) . . . —_ —_ — 4,400 — — — — — — — —

Non-GAAP NetLoss.......... $(18,412) $(18,987) $(17,987) $(15,074) $(14,680) $ (9.864)F (8,934) $(9,059) $(7.064) $(3.533)$(2.972)§ 49

Non-GAAP Net Loss per share—
basic and diluted ............. § (0138 ©I3F (0I12)F 0I0F OI0$ (©0NF (0063 (0.04)F (0.01)F (0.02)F (VODE 0.00




NAVANEX'

NOTICE OF 2007 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on November 15, 2007 '

To Our Stockholders:

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Mecting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) of Avanex
Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Avanex”), will be held on November 15, 2007, at 9:00 a.m,, local time, at
Avanex’s corporate headquarters, 40919 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, California 94538, for the following
purposes:

1. To elect one Class 1I director for a term of three years or until his successor has been duly elected and
qualified. '

2. To ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Avanex’s independent registered public
accounting firm for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment
or postponement thereof.

These items of business are more ful.ly described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice of
Annual Meeting.

Only holders of record of Avanex’s common stock at the close of business on October 11, 2007, the record
date, are entitled to vote on the matters listed in this Notice of Annual Meeting.

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person. However, to ensure your
representation at the Annual Meeting, please vote as soon as possible using one of the following methods: (i) by
using the Internet as instructed on the enclosed proxy card, (2) by telephone as instructed on the enclosed proxy
card, or (3) by mail by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed
postage-prepaid envelope. For further details, please see the section entitted “Voting” on page 2 of the
accompanying Proxy Statement. Any stockholder attending the Annual Meeting may vote in person even if he or
she has voted using the Internet, telephone or proxy card.

By Order of the Board of Directors
of Avanex Corporation

ol

Jo 8. Major, Jr.
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Fremont, California
Qctober 16, 2007

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, PLEASE VOTE BY
TELEPHONE OR BY USING THE INTERNET AS INSTRUCTED ON THE ENCLOSED PROXY
CARD OR COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE, AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AS
PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.
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AVANEX CORPORATION

PROXY STATEMENT
: FOR THE
2007 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

PROCEDURAL AND OTHER MATTERS

General

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to the holders of common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the
“Common Stock”), of Avanex Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Avanex” or the “Company”), in connection
with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of Avanex for use at the Annuval Meeting of
Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) to be held on November 15, 2007, at 9:00 a.m., local time, and at any
adjournment or postponement thereof, for the purpose of considering and acting upon the matters set forth herein.
The Annual Meeting will be held at Avanex’s corporate headquarters, 40919 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont,
California 94538. The telephone number at that location is (510) 897-4188.

This Proxy Statement, the accompanying proxy card and the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K. are
first being mailed on or about October 16, 2007, to all stockholders entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

Stockholders Entitled to Vote; Record Date

Only holders of record of the Company’s Common Stock at the close of business on October 11, 2007 (the
“Record Date™), are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. Such stockholders are entitled to cast
one vote for each share of Common Stock held as of the Record Date on all matters properly submitted for the
vote of stockholders at the Annual Meeting. As of the Record Date, there were 227,755,421 shares of Comimon
Stock outstanding and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. No shares of preferred stock were outstanding. For
information regarding security ownership by management and by the beneficial owners of more than five percent
of the Company’s Common Stock, see “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management”
beginning on page 31.

Quorum; Required Vote

The presence of the holders of a majority of the shares of Common Stock entitled to vote generally at the
Annual Meeting is necessary to conslitute a quorum at the Annual Meeting. Such stockholders are counted as
present at the Annual Meeting if they (1) are present in person at the Annual Meeting or (2) have properly
submitted a proxy card or voted by telephone or by using the Internet. Under the General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware, an abstaining vote and a broker “non-vote” are counted as present and entitled to vote and ure,
therefore, included for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the Annual Meeting. A-broker
“non-vote” occurs when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal
because the nominee does not have discretionary voting power with respect to that proposal and has not received
instructions on how to vote from the beneficial owner.

A, plurality of the votes duly cast is required for the election of directors (Proposal One).
The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes duly cast is required to ratify the appointment of Deloitte &
Touch: LLP as the company’s independent registered public accounting firm (Proposal Two). Abstentions ire

deemed to be “votes cast,” and have the same effect as a vote against this proposal. However, broker non-votes ure
not deemed to be votes cast, and therefore are not included in the tabulation of the voting resulis on this proposal.
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Voting

Voting by Proxy Card. All shares entitled to vote and represented by properly executed proxy cards
received prior to the Annual Meeting, and not revoked, will be voted at the Annual Meeting in accordance with
the instructions indicated on those proxy cards. If no instructions are indicated on a properly executed proxy
card, the shares represented by that proxy card will be voted as recommended by the Board of Directors, If any
other matters are properly presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting, including, among other things,
consideration of a motion to adjourn the Annual Meeting to another time or place (including, without limitation,
for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies), the persons named in the enclosed proxy card and acting
thereunder will have discretion to vote on those matters in accordance with their best judgment. The Company
does not currently anticipate that any other matters will be raised at the Annual Meeting.

Voting by Telephone or the Internet. If you are a registered stockholder, you may vote your shares by
calling the toll-free number indicated on the enclosed proxy card and following the recorded instructions or by
accessing the website indicated on the enclosed proxy card and following the instructions provided. If your
shares are registered in the name of a bank or brokerage firm, you may be eligible to vote your shares
electronically over the Internet or by telephone. A large number of banks and brokerage firms are participating in
the Broadridge Financial Solutions online program. This program provides eligible stockholders who receive a .
paper copy of the annual report and proxy statement the opportunity to vote via the Internet or by telephone. If
your bank or brokerage firm is participating in Broadridge’s program, your voting form will provide instructions.
If your voting form does not reference lnternet or telephone information, please complete and return the paper
proxy card in the self-addressed postage paid envelope provided. When a stockholder votes via the Internet or by
telephone, his or her vote is recorded immediately. Avanex encourages its stockholders te vote using these
methods whenever possible.

Voting by Antending the Meeting. A stockholder may vole his or her shares in person at the Annual Meeting.
A stockholder planning to attend the Annual Meeting should bring proof of identification and proof of ownership of
Common Stock for entrance to the Annual Meeting. If a stockholder attends the Annual Meeting, he or she may
submit his or her vote in person, and any previous votes that were submitted by the stockholder, whether by
Internet, telephone or mail, will be superseded by the vote that such stockholder casts at the Annual Meeting.

Changing Vote; Revocability of Proxies. 1f a stockholder has voted by telephone, over the Internet or by
returning a proxy card, such stockholder may change his or her vote before the Annual Meeting.

A stockholder who has voted by telephone or over the Internet may later change his or her vote by making a
timely and valid telephone or Internet vote, as the case may be, or by following the procedures in the following
paragraph. h ‘

A stockholder may revoke any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation at any time before it is voted by:
(1) filing with the Secretary of the Company, at or before the taking of the vote at ther Annual Meeting, a written
notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy card, in either case dated later than the prior proxy relating to the
same shares, or (2) attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person (although attendance at the Annnal
Meeting will not by itself revoke a proxy). Any written notice of revocation or subsequent proxy card must be
received by the Secretary of the Company prior to the taking of the vote at the Annual Meeting. Such written
notice of revocation or subsequent proxy card should be hand delivered to.the Secretary of the Company -or
should be sent to Avanex Corporation, 40919 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, California 94538, Attention:
Corporate Secretary,

Expenses of Solicitation

Avanex will bear all expenses of this solicitation, including the cost of preparing and mailing this
solicitation material. The Company may reimburse brokerage firms, custodians, nominees, fiduciaries, and other
persons representing beneficial owners of Common Stock for their reasonable expenses in forwarding solicitation
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material to such beneficial owners. Directors, officers and employees of the Company may also solicit proxies in
person or by telephone, letter, electronic mail, telegram, facsimile or other means of communication. Such
directors, officers and employees will not be additionally compensated, but they may be reimbursed for
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in connection with such solicitation. The Company has retained the services
of Morrow & Co., a professional proxy solicitation firm, 1o assist in the solicitation of proxies. Avanex will pay
Morrow & Co. a fee for its services, which will not be significant, in addition to reimbursement of its
out-of-pocket expenses.

Procedure for Submitting Stockhelder Proposals

Requirements for Stockholder Proposals to be Considered for Inclusion in the Company’s Proxy
Materials.  Stockholders may present proper proposals for inclusion in the Company’s proxy stalement and for
consideration at the annual meeting of its stockholders to be held in 2008 by submitting their proposals in writing
to the Secretary of the Company in a timely manner. In order to be included in the Company’s proxy materials
for the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders, stockholder proposals must be received by the Secretary of the
Company no later than the Notice Deadline (as defined below), and must otherwise comply with the
requirements of Rule 142-8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).

Requirements for Stockholder Proposals to be Brought Before an Annual Meeting. In addition, the
Company’s Bylaws establish an advance notice procedure for stockholders who wish to present certain matters
before an annual meeting of stockholders. In general, nominations for the election of directors may be made by
(1) the Board of Directors, (2) the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee or (3) any stockholder
entitled 10 vote who has delivered written notice to the Secretary of the Company no later than the Notice
Deadline, which notice must contain specified information concerning the nominees and concerning the
stockholder proposing such nominations. However, if a stockholder wishes only to recommend a candidate for
consideration by the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee as a potential nominee for the
Corpany’s Board of Directors, see the procedures discussed in “Corporate Governance — Process for
Recommending Candidates for Election to the Board of Directors” on page 9.

The Company’s Bylaws also provide that the only business that may be conducted at an annual meeting is
business that is (1) specified in the notice of meeting given by or at the direction of the Board of Directors,
(2) properly brought before the meeting by or at the direction of the Board of Directors or (3) properly brought
before the meeting by a stockholder who has delivered written notice to the Secretary of the Company no later
than the Notice Deadline, which notice must contain specified information concerning the matters to be brought
before such meeting and concerning the stockholder proposing such matters.

The “Notice Deadline” is defined as that date which is 120 days prior to the one-year anniversary of the date
on which the Company first mailed its proxy materials for the previous year’s annual meeting of stockholders. As
a result, the Notice Deadline for the 2008 annual stockholder meeting is June 18, 2008.

If a stockholder who has notified the Company of his or her intention to present a proposal at an annual
meeting does not appear to present his or her proposal at such meeting, or does not send a representative who is
qualified under Delaware law to present the proposal on his or her behalf, the Company need not present the
proposal for vote at such meeting.

A copy of the full text of the Bylaw provisions discussed above may be obtained by writing to the Secrctary
of the Company. All notices of proposals by stockholders, whether or not included in the Company’s proxy
materials, should be sent to Avanex Corporation, 40919 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, California 94538,
Attention: Corporate Secretary.
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PROPOSAL ONE
) ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General

The Company’s Bylaws currently authorize five directors who are divided into three classes with staggered
three-year terms. A director serves in office until his or her respective successor is duly elected and qualified or
until his or her earlier death or resignation. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number
of directors will be distributed among the three classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of an
equal number of directors.

Nominee for Class I1 Director_

One Class I director has been nominated for election at the Annual Meeting for a three-year term expiring
in 2010. Upon the recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, the Board of
Directors has nominated Vinton Cerf for reelection as a Class II director. Unless otherwise instructed, the
proxyholders will vote the proxies received by them for the reelection of Dr. Cerf. The Company expects that
Dr. Cerf will accept such nomination; however, in the event that the nominee is unable or declines to serve as a
director at the time of the Annual Meeting, the proxies will be voted for any nominee who shall be designated by
the Board of Directors to fill such vacancy. The term of office of the person elected as director will continue until
such director’s term expires in 2010 or unii} such director’s successor has been elected and qualified.

Nominees for Class Il Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2010

Name Age Position

Vinton Cerf................. 64 Chief Internet Evangelist for Google, Dr. Cerf has served on the
Company’s Board of Directors  since December 1999. In
October 2005, Dr. Cerf joined Google Inc. as Chief Internet
Evangelist. Dr. Cerf served as the Senior Vice President for
Technology Strategy for MCI (formerly WorldCom, Inc.), a
telecommunications company, from September 1998 to
September 2005, From January 1996 to September 1998, Dr. Cerf
was the Senior Vice President for Intermet Architecture and
Engineering at MCL. Dr. Cerf received a B.S. in Mathematics from
Stanford University, an M.S. in Computer Science from the
University of California, Los Angeles, and a Ph.D. in Computer
Science from the University of California, Los Angeles.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR”
THE NOMINEE LISTED ABOVE.

Information Regarding Other Directors Continuing in Office

Incumbent Class III Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2008

Name Age Position
Joel A, Smith Il ... ... ... ., 62 Dean of Darla Moore School of Business of the University of

South Carolina. Mr. Smith has served on the Company’s Board
of Directors since December 1999. Mr. Smith has been the Dean
of the Darla Moore School of Business of the University of South
Carolina from October 2000 to the present. Previously, Mr. Smith

4




Name Age Position

served as the President of Bank of America East, a financial
institution, from October 1998 to September 2000. From July 1991
to October 1998, Mr. Smith served as President of Nations Bank
Carolinas, a financial institution. Mr. Smith serves on the bourds of
directors of Carolina National Bank & Trust Co. and NetBank, Inc.
Mr. Smith received. a B.A. from the University of the South in
Sewanee, Tennessee.

SusanWang ............... 56 Former Chief Financial Officer of Solectron Corporation.  Ms. Wang
has served on the Company’s Board of Directors since December 2002,
Ms. Wang previously served as Executive Vice President of Comporate
Development, Chief 'Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary of
Solectron Corporation, a provider of supply-chain and product life-cycle
services to original equipment manufacturers, from October 1984
through May 2002. Before joining Solectron, she held positions with
Xerox Corporation, Westvaco Corporation and Price Waterhouse & Co,
Ms. Wang serves on the boards of directors of Calpine Corporation,
Altera Corporation and Nektar Therapeutics. Ms. Wang received her
B.B.A. in accounting from the University of Texas and her M.B.A. from
the University of Connecticut,

Incumbent Class I Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2009

Name Age Position

Greg Dougherty .. .......... 47 Senior Advisor, Picarre, Inc. Mr. Dougherty has served on the
Company's Board of Directors since April 2005 and cutently
serves as the Lead Independent Director. Mr. Dougherty is a
Senior Advisor and previously served as Chief Executive Officer
of Picarro, Inc., a company focused on developing lasers and
optical instruments. He has also served as a director of Picarro
since October 2002. From February 2001 to September 2002,
Mr. Dougherty held a number of positions at JDS Uniphase, an
optical technology company, including Chief Operating Officer,
Executive President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Amplification and Transmission Business Group. Mr. Dougherty
held a number of positions at SDL, Inc., an optical technology

- company, from March 1997 to February 2001, including Chief
Operating Officer, Vice President of the Communications Business
Unit and Corporate Marketing and Sales, Vice President of
Communications and Information Products, Vice President of the
Components Group and President of SDL Optics. Prior to joining
SDL, from 1989 1o 1997, Mr. Dougherty was the Director of
Product Management and Marketing at Lucent Technologies
Microelectronics in the Optoelectronics Strategic Business Unit.
Mr. Dougherty received a B.Sc. degree in optics from Rochester
University.
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Name Age Position

JoS. Major, Jr. . ... .. ..., 45 President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Directors. Dr. Major has served on the Company’s Board of
Directors and as its President and Chief Executive Officer since
August 2004 and as Chairman of the Board of Directors since
April 2005. From February 2001 to August 2004, he served in
various management roles in the Active Components Group of
JDS Uniphase, an optical technology company, including Senior
Vice President, Component Products Group, and Vice President,
Active Components Business Unit. Dr. Major was employed by
) SDL, Inc. in a variety of technical managerial positions from 1990
to February 2001, when SDL was acquired by JDS Uniphase.
Dr. Major holds a B.S., with high honors, M.S. and Ph.D. from the
University of Illinois, and has been granted industry awards for the
development of 980nm lasers, high power near-infrared lasers,
Raman amplifiers and high performance laser packaging.
Dr. Major was an Intel Fellow from 1988 to 1990.

Pursuant to Dr. Major’s employment agreement with the Company, the Company has agreed 10 nominate
Dr. Major for re-election as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors at the appropriate annual meetings
of stockholders, subject to stockholder approval.

See “Corporate Governance” and “Executive Compensation — Director Compensation” below for
additional information regarding the Board.

PROPOSAL TWQ

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

General

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Deloitte & Touche LLP as its independent
registered public accounting firm to audit the consolidated financial statements of the Company for fiscal year
2008. Although ratification by stockholders is not required by law, the Audit Committee has determined that it is
desirable to request ratification of this selection by the stockholders. Notwithstanding its setection, the Audit
Committee, in its discretion, may appoint new independent auditors at any time during the year if the Audit
Committee believes that such a change would be in the best interests of Avanex and its stockholders. If the
stockholders do not ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Audit Committee may reconsider its
selection.

A representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP is expected to be present at the Annual Meeting with the
opportunity to make a statement if he or she desires to do so, and is expected to be available to respond to
appropriate questions.




THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THIS PROPOSAL.
Accounting Fees

The following table shows the fees paid or accrued by the Company for the audit and other services
provided by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their respective
affiliates, for fiscal years 2006 and 2007.

Fiscal Year
\ 2006 2007
AuditFees(1) . .................. P $2.438,000 1,997,000
Audit-Related Fees ... ... o i e e — —
Tax Fees .. e e e e — —
AlLOther Fees .. v i e e e e it e — —
s | S A $2,438,000  $1,997,000

(1) Consists of fees for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, attestation of managements report on
internal controls, statutory audits, quarterly reviews of interim financial information, consents, and comfort
letter procedures.

Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided bty the
independent registered public accounting firm. These services may include audit services, audit-related services,
tax services and other services. Pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is
generally subject to a specific budget. To ensure prompt handling of unexpected matters, the Audit Comniittee
delegates to the Chairman of the Audit Committee the authority to approve all audit and permissible non-audit
services.

Since the May 6, 2003 effective date of the SEC rules stating that an auditor is not independent of an audit
client if the services it provides to the client are not appropriately approved, each new engagement of an
independent registered public accounting firm was approved in advance by the Audit Committee, and none of
those engagements made use of the de minimus exception to pre-approval contained in the SEC’s rules.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

With respect to the Company’s financial reporting process, the management of the Company is responsible
for (1) establishing and maintaining internal controls and (2) preparing the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing these
financial statements. It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to oversee these activities. In the
performance of its oversight function, the Audit Committee has:

« reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with management;

» discussed with Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for
the year ended June 30, 2007, the matters required to be discussed by the Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61, Communication with Audit Committees, as currently in effect; and

+ received the written disclosures and the letter from Deloitte & Touche LLP required by Independence
Standards Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees, as currently in effect,
and has discussed Deloitte & Touche LLP’s independence with them.
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Based upon the reviews and discussions described in this Report, the Audit Committee recommended to the
Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007.

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Susan Wang, Chair
Greg Dougherty
Joel A. Smith IH




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Principles

Avanex is committed to sound corporate governance. The Board of Directors has adopted Corporate
Governance Principles, which are available at http://www.avanex.com under “Investors — Governance —
Corporate Governance Principles.”

Independence of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has determined that, with the exception of Dr. Major, all of its members are
“independent directors” as defined in the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market.

Contacting the Board of Directors

Any stockholder who desires to contact & non-employee director may do so electronically by sending an
e-mail to the following address: directorcom@avanex.com. The e-mails are automatically forwarded unfiltered to
the Lead Independent Director, who is currently Greg Dougherty, and who monitors these communications and
forwards communication to the appropriate committee of the Board of Directors or non-employee director.

Cade of Conduct

Avanex has adopted.a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all. of its directors, officers
(inctuding its principal executive officer, principal financial officer and controller) and employees, which is
available at http://www.avanex.com under “Investors — Governance — Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.”
Avanex will also post on this section of its website any amendment to the Code of Business Conduct, as well as
any waivers, that are required to be disclosed by the rules of the SEC or the Nasdaq Stock Market. ‘

Executive Sessions

Avanex’s non-management directors meel in executive sessions, without management present, at least two
times per year. The sessions are scheduled and chaired by the Lead Independent Director. Any independent
director can request that an executive session be scheduled.

Attendance at Annual Stockholder Meetingé by the Board of Directors . . .

Directors are encouraged, but not required, to attend the annual meeting of stockholders, No non-employee
directors attended the Company’s 2006 annual meeting of stockholders.

Process for Recommending Candidates for Election to the Board of Directors . e .

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for, among other things, determining
the criteria for membership to the Board of Directors and recommending candidates for, election to the Board of
Directors. It is the policy of the Committee to consider recommendations for candidates to the Board of Direztors
from stockholders. Such recommendations must be received by June 30 of the year in which the recommended
candidate will be considered for nomination. Stockholder recommendations for candidates to the Board of
Directors must be directed in writing to Avanex Corporation, 40919 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, California
04538, Attention: Corporate Secretary, and must include the candidate’s name, home and business contact
information, detailed biographical data and qualifications, information regarding any relationships between the
candidate and the Company within the last three years and evidence of the nominating person’s ownership of
Company stock. Such recommendations must also include a statement from the recommending stockholder in
support of the candidate, particularly within the context of the criteria for membership on the Board of Directors,
including issues of character, judgment, diversity, age, independence, expertise, corporate experience, other
commitments and the like, personal references and an indication of the candidate’s willingness to serve.
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The Committee’s general criteria and process for evaluating and identifying the candidates that it selects, or
recommends to the full Board of Directors for selection as director nominees, are as follows:

» The Committee regularly reviews the current composition and size of the Board of Directors.

* The Committee oversees an annual evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors as a whole
and evaluates the performance of individual members of the Board of Directors eligible for reelection at
the annual meeting of stockholders.

* In its evaluation of director candidates, including the members of the Board of Directors eligible for
reelection, the Committee seeks to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and capability on the
Board of Directors and considers (1) the current size and composition of the Board of Directors, the needs
of the Board of Directors and the respective committees of the Board of Directors, (2) such issues as
character, judgment, diversity, age, expertise, business experience, length of service, independence, other
commitments and the like, and (3) such other factors as the Committee may consider appropriate.

* While the Committee has not established specific minimum qualifications for director candidates, the
Committee believes that candidates and nominees must reflect a Board of Directors that is comprised of
directors who (1) are predominantly independent, (2) are of high integrity, (3) have broad,
business-related knowledge and experience at the policy-making level in business, government or
technology, including their understanding of the telecommunications industry and Avanex’s business in
particular, (4) have financial expertise in the Company’s industry, (5} have senior management
expertence (preferably as a chief executive officer), (6) have qualifications that will increase the overall
effectiveness of the Board of Directors and (7) meet other requirements as may be required by applicable
rules, such as financial literacy or financial expertise with respect to audit commitiee members.

* With regard to candidates who are properly recommended by stockholders or by other means, the
Committee will review thie qualifications of any such candidate, which review may, in the Committee’s
discretion, include interviewing references for the candidate, direct interviews with the candidate, or other
actions that the Committee deems necessary or proper.

* In evaluating and identifying candidates, the Committee has the authority to retain and terminate any
third-party search firm that is used to identify director candidates, and has the authority to approve the
fees and retention terms of any search firm.

» The Committee will apply these same principles when evaluating candidates to the Board of Directors
who may be elected initially by the full Board of Directors to fill vacancies or add additional directors
prior to the annual meeting of stockholders at which directors are elected.

*» After completing its review and evaluation of director candidates, the Committee selects, or recommends
to the full Board of Directors for selection, the director nominees.

Board Meetings and Committees

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company met 18 times {(including
meetings of the independent directors). With the exception of Dr. Cerf, all directors attended it least 75% of the
total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and the committees of which he or she was a member.

The Company’s Board of Directors currently has four standing committees: an Audit Committee, a
Compensation Committee, an Option Committee and a Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee, which has been established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A)
of the Exchange Act, currently consists of Mr. Dougherty, Mr. Smith and Ms. Wang, each of whom is “‘independent”
as such term is defined for audit committee members by the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market. The Board
of Drrectors has determined that each of Mr. Smith and Ms. Wang is an “audit committee financial expert™ as defined
under the rules of the Securities Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The Audit Committee met 11 times during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s accounting and
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financial reporting processes, the audit of the Company’s financial statements and assisting the Board of Directors in
oversight of (1) the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, (2) the Company’s internal accounting and
financial controls, (3) the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and (4) the independent
registered public accounting firm’s qualifications, independence and performance. The Audit Committee acts
pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, a copy of whlch is avatlable at
http:/fwww.avanex.com under “Investors — Governance — Committee Charters.”

See “Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors” above for more information regarding the
functions of the Audit Committee.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee currently consists of Dr. Cerf, Mr. Dougherty
and Ms. Wang, each of whom is “independent” as defined by the listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
The Compensation Committee met 8 times during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The Compensation
Committee is primarily responsible for evaluating and approving the compensation and benefits for the
Company’s executive officers, administering the Company’s 1998 Stock Plan and 1999 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan and performing such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Board of
Directors. The Compensation Committee acts pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, a
copy of which is available at http://www.avanex.com under “Investors — Governance — Committee Charters.”

See “Executive Compensation — Compensation Discussion and Analysis” and “Executive Compensation
— Drirector Compensation” for a description of the Company’s processes and procedures for the consideration
and determination of executive compensation. The Compensation Committee Report is included in this Proxy
Statement on page 21.

Option Committee. The Option Committee currently consists of Dr. Major. The Option Committee is responsible
for granting options to purchase Common Stock of the Company and restricted stock units, on behaif of the Board of
Directors, to employees other than officers and directors, pursuant to guidelines established by the Compensation
Committee. The Option Committee fulfilled all of its duties through actions by written consent during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007, The Option Committee acts pursuant to a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors, a ¢ opy
of which is available at http://www.avanex.com under ‘‘Tnvestors -—— Governance — Committee Charters.”

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. The Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee currently consists of Dr. Cerf and Mr. Smith, each of whom is “independent” as defined by the listing
standards of the Nasdaq Stock Market. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee met 4 times
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible
for (1) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding matters concerning corporate
governance, (2) reviewing the composition and evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors,
(3) recommending persons for election to the Board of Directors and evaluating director compensation,
(4) reviewing the composition of committees of the Board of Directors and recommending persons to be
members of such committees, (5) reviewing conflicts of interest of members of the Board of Directors and
corporate officers and (6) performing such other duties as may from time to time be determined by the Board of
Directors. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee’s policy is to consider recommendations of
candidates for the Board of Directors submitted by the stockholders of the Company. For more information see
the discussion in “Corporate Governance” on page 9. The Governance and Nominating Committee acts purscant
to a written charter adopted by the Board of Directors,’a copy of which is available at http://www.avanex.com
under “Investors — Governance — Committee Charters.”

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.

The Company’s Compensation Committee is currently composed of Dr. Cerf, Mr. Dougherty and Ms. Wang.
No interlocking relationship exists between any member of the Company’s Compensation Committee and any
member of the compensation committee of any other company, nor has any such interlocking relationship existed in
the past. No member of the Compensation Committee is or was formerly an officer or an employee of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Overview of Compensation Program and Philosophy

Avanex has designed its executive compensetion program and philosophy to attract, motivate and retain
talented executives responsible for the success of Avanex, which operates in an extremely competitive, global
and rapidly changing telecommunications industry. Our compensation programs are based on a compensation
philosophy of “pay for performance” that depends on the achievement of overal! financial resuits and individual
contributions by executives and employees. Within this overall philosophy, our objectives are to:

» Motivate executive officers 1o achieve quantitative financial and operational targets and qualitative
"non-financial goals and create a direct, meaningful link between ach:evement of these goals and
individual executive compensation;

* Align the financial interests of executive officers and employees with those of Avanex’s stockholders by
providing significant equity-based, long-term incentives in the form of stock options and restricted stock
units, while carefully managing both stockholder dilution and financial accounting compensation
expense;

+ Design a compensation program that takes into consideration the compensation practices of a specifically
"identified peer group of companies, including competitors of Avanex for executive talent; and

+ Structure bonus awards to enhance stockholder value by rewarding revenue growth and improvement of
corporate profitabitity.

During the 2005 and 2006 fiscal years, Avanex executed a substantial restructuring of the Company, and
during that time our compensation practices were more focused upon retention and less on variable incentive
compensation. During fiscal year 2007, management and the Board of Directors began a gradual movement away
from retention-based compensation towards a more performance based compensation program, including
corporate bonuses. To preserve cash, we elected to issue restricted stock units in lieu of cash for incentive
bonuses.

Management and the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors use the above objectives as the
framework for both executive and employee compensation programs. A key point is that the overall
compensation packages offered to Avanex’s executive officers strive to balance long- and short-term incentive
compensation and cash and non-cash compensation. However, there is no formal policy or target for the
alfocation between long- and short-term incentive compensation and cash and non-cash compensation, and the
balance of these components may vary over time depending on several factors, including the industry in which
we compete, corporate performance and market compensation practices,

Throughout this Compensation Discussion and Analysis, we refer to each individual who served as the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) or Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) during fiscal 2007, as well as the other
executive officers included in the “Fiscal 2007 Summary Compensation Table” below, as the “named executive
officers.” '

Role and Authority of Our Compensation Committee

The members of the Compensation Committee during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, were
Dr. Vinton G. Cerf, Greg Dougherty (Chair) and Susan Wang. Each of these individuals qualifies as (i) an
“independent director” under the requirements of The NASDAQ Stock Market. LLC, {ii) a *“non-employee
director” under Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“*Exchange Act”), and (iii) an “outside
director” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™).

The Compensation Committee has'adopted a written charter approved by the Board of Directors, a copy of
which is available. at http:/fwww .avanex.com under “Investors — Governance — Committee Charters.”
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Pursuant to the charter, the purposes of the Compensation Committee ate to:

+ Provide oversight of our compensation policies, plans and benefits programs, including salary, bonuses
and equity compensation;

+ Assist the Board of Directors in discharging its responsibilities relating to (i} oversight of the
compensation of the Chief Executive Officer, the vice presidents and other employees reporting directly
to the Chief Executive Officer, and (i) approving and evaluating the compensation plans, policics and
programs of the officers reporting under Section |6 of the Exchange Act; and

* Assist the Board of Directors in overseeing our equity compensation plans for employees.

The Compensation Committee has the final decision-making authority with respect to the compensation of
our executives. In carrying out its responsibilities, the Compensation Committee may engage outside consultants
andfor consult with Avanex’s Human Resources department as the Compensation Committee determines to be
appropriate. The Compensation Committee also obtains advice and assistance from internal or external legal
counsel and expert advisers selected by the Compensation Committee. For all employees other than executive
officers, the Compensation Committee authorized members of management to make salary adjustments and
bonus decisions under financial guidelines approved by the Compensation Committee and the full Board of
Directors. The Compensation Committee has authorized the Option Committee, which currently consists of our
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, Dr. Jo Major, to grant options to purchase
Common Stock and restricted stock units, on behalf of the Board of Directors, to non-executive employees,
pursuant to general guidelines established by the Compensation Committee.

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions

The Compensation Committee on occasion meets with Dr. Major to obtain recommendations with respect to
the compensation programs, practices and packages for the named executive officers and other employees. The
Compensation Comniittee considers, but is not bound to and does not always accept, management’s
recommendations. Dr. Major and other executives or employees generally attend the Compensation Committee’s
meetings, but they leave the meetings as appropriate when matters of executive compensation are discussed. The
Compensation Committee makes decisions with respect to Dr. Major’s compensation package without his
presence. The Compensation Committee reviews these decisions with the other members of the Board of
Directors. Our Board of Directors and commitiee make a practice of regularly meeting without management
present. Following such meetings, the Lead Independent Director, currently Greg Dougherty, typically discusses
any Board concerns with management.

Role of Compensation Consultant

The Compensation Committee works with members of Avanex’s Human Resources group and outside
experts in conducting its responsibilities. During fiscal year 2007, the Compensation Committee engaged
Compensia, Inc., an independent compensation advisor, to provide advice and information relating to executive
compensation, Compensia assisted the Compensation Committee in its evaluation of executive base salary, bonus
and equity incentive levels. Compensia reports directly to the Compensation Committee.

Fiscal 2007 Peer Companies

The Compensation Committee examines the executive compensation practices of a peer group of optic-
based product companies and semiconductor and semiconductor equipment manufacturers to assess the
competitiveness and structure of Avanex's executive compensation. Peer group companies are selected
principally on the basis of their similarity to Avanex in terms of industry focus, business strategy and the talent
pool with which Avanex competes for talent. Companies are then scoped based on their size (as determined by
revenue, market capitalization, net income, and employee base) to ensure comparability to Avanex.
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The Compensation Committee reviews the peer group annually, and makes adjustments to the composition
of the peer group companies when necessary. The 26 companies used in the peer group analysis for fiscal year
2007 included:

3D Systems Finisar Matison Technology Semitool

Actel Genesis Microchip Micrel

Bookham If =V, Inc. Mindspeed Technologies  Sigmatel

Coherent Integrated Silicon Newport Corporation Ultra Clean Holdings
EMCORE IPG Photonics Oplink Communications ~ Vitessse Semiconductor
ESS Technology IXYS Opnext Semtech

Excel Technology Lattice Semiconductor ~ Optium

Executive compensation data for the peer group was collected from public filings as well as the Radford
High-Technology Industry Survey. In the case of the Radford Survey, a custom report focusing on the above
companies was utilized.

Components of Compensation

The principal components of Avanex’s executive officer compensation include:
* Base salary;

* Incentive bonus,;

* Long-term equity-based incentive awards;

» Severance and change of control protection;‘and

* Retirement benefits provided under a 401(k) plan and generally available benefit iJrograms.

We selected these components because we believe each is necessary to help us aftract and retain the
executive talent upon which Avanex’s success depends. These components also allow us to reward performance
throughout the fiscal year and to provide an incentive for executives to appropriately balance their focus on
short-term and long-term strategic goals. The Compensation Committee believes that this set of components is
effective and will continue to be effective in achieving the objectives of our compensation program and
philosophy.

The Compensation Committee reviews the entire executive compensation program on at least an annual
basis. The Compensation Committee is aided in this review by its compensation consultant, Compensia, Inc.
However, the Compensation Committee at any time may review one or more components as necessary or
appropriate to ensure such components remain competitive and appropriately designed io reward performance. In
setting compensation levels for a particular named executive officer, the Compensation Committee considers
both individual and corporate factors.

The goal of the Compensation Committee has been to target total direct compensation (salary plus bonus
plus equity) at approximately the 50" percentile, relative to our peer group. This has been accomplished through
the following approach:

» Targer otal cash compensation (base salary plus target bonus issued in restricted stock units) at
approximately the 50% percentile of the peer group generally through below 50 percentile salaries and
above 50" percentile target bonus opportunities, which supports the Company’s pay-for-performance
philosophy.

» Target annual equity compensation at approximately the 50% percentile of the peer group and deliver this
compensation through a blend of stock options and restricted stock units,
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Actual pay to individual executives varies, based on an individual’s performance, experience level brought
to the position, and anticipated contribution.

Named Executive Officer Compensation Decisions
Base Salary

Avanex provides base salary to its executive officers and other employees to compensate them for services
rendered on a day-to-day basis during the fiscal year. Salaries for the Company’s executive officers are
determined primarily on the basis of the executive officer’s level of responsibility, general salary practices of
peer companies and the officer’s individual qualifications, employment history, key skills and experience. Base
salarics are reviewed annually and may be adjusted by the Compensation Committee based on individual
performance, the functions performed by the executive officer, the scope of the executive officer’s on-going
duties, general changes in the compensation peer group in which the Company competes for executive talent, and
the Company’s financial performance generally. The weight given to each such factor by the Compensation
Comniittee may vary from individual to individual. As discussed above, we target total cash compensation {base
salary plus target bonus issued in restricted stock units) at approximately the 50% percentile of the peer group
generally through below 50t percentile salaries and above 50% percentile target bonus opportunities.

Duiring fiscal year 2007, the Compensation Committee considered the factors described above and reviewed
the base salaries of the named executive officers and determined that the base salaries of the named executive
officers should remain the same as the prior year except as set forth below:

» Yves LeMaitre: In October 2006, in connection with his promotion to Senior Vice President and Chief
Marketing Officer, which includes the sales, marketing communication, and business development
functions within Avanex, and after reviewing peer group data for comparable positions (specifically, chief
marketing officers and chief sales officers), Mr. LeMaitre’s base salary was increased 9% from $225,000
to $245,000. Following this adjustment, Mr. LeMaitre’s salary was approximately at the 50th percentile
of our peer group for comparable positions.

+ Jo S. Major, Jr.: In November 2006, Dr. Major's base salary was increased 7% from $350,000 to
$375,000, which approximated the 40% percentile of our peer group for comparable positions.

+ Bradley Kolb: In May 2007, Mr. Kolb’s base salary was increased 11% from $225,000 to $250,000 in
recognition of his contributions to the Company and that his base salary, prior to the increase, was below
the 50t percentile of the peer group for comparable positions. Following his raise, Mr. Kolb's salary was
at approximately the 50 percentile of our peer group for comparable positions.

In addition, in October 2006, in connection with her appointment as Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer, Marla Sanchez’s base salary was set at $260,000. This salary level approximates the 5S¢
percentile of our peer group for comparable Chief Financial Officer positions.

Incentive Bonus

We believe that a significant portion of each executive officer’s annual compensation should be paid in the
form of incentive bonuses that are directly tied to our financial performance and thus align the interests of our
executive officers with our stockholders. Incentive bonus amounts vary based on the executive officer’s position
and responsibilities with Avanex. Generally, the higher the level of responsibility that an executive officer has,
the greater the percentage of the executive officer’s compensation that consists of an opportunity to earn
incentive bonuses. As discussed above, we target total cash compensation (base salary plus target bonus issued in
restricted stock units) at approximately the 50" percentile of the peer group generally through below 50%
percentile salaries and above 50" percentile target bonus opportunities. This higher bonus potential reflects our
pay-for-performance philosophy.

15

w
—
)
"
-
=
=]
-

[RE)

sje




Incentive bonus targets are set with reference to a percentage of base salary for our named executive
officers, and during fiscal year 2007 were set as follows:

Incentive Bonus Target

Executive Officer Eg ) (% of Base Salary}
Jo S, Major, Jr. ........ Chief Executive Officer & President 100%
Marla Sanchez . ........ Sr. Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 60%
BradleyKolb .......... Sr. Vice President, Operations - 60%
Yves LeMaitre ........ Chief Marketing Officer 80%
AnthonyRiley . ........ Former Vice President of Finance 60%
Cal R. Hoagland ....... Former Sr. Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 60%

These targets reflect an increase in the bonus potential of two of the named executive officers as follows:

* Yves LeMaitre: In October 2006, in connection with his promotion to Senior Vice President and Chief
Marketing Officer and after reviewing peer group data for comparable positions, Mr. LeMaitre’s
incentive bonus target was increased from 60% to 80%. The determination of Mr. LeMaltre s bonus is
discussed in greater detail below.

* Jo S. Major, Ir.: In Novernber 2006, Dr. Major’s incentive bonus target was increased from 75% to 100%.
This increase was intended to bring Dr. Major’s cash compensation to approximately the 50t percentile,
consistent with the principles stated above of delivering a below market 50" percentile base salary and an
above market 50% percentile bonus opportunity for Dr, Major.

Corporate Bonus, First Half of Fiscal 2007. Avanex did not have an incentive bonus plan in the first half
of fiscal year 2007. In February 2007, the Compensation Committee recommended a bonus for performance in
the second quarter of fiscal year 2007. Specifically, the Compensation Committee recognized the achievement of
Avanex’s previously approved operating plan for the second quarter, as measured by two corporate goals set
forth in the corporation annual operating plan: (i} non-GAAP earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization, or EBITDA, and (ii) quarterly revenue. These goals were weighted 60% and 40% respectively.
Non-GAAP EBITDA was calculated by taking GAAP EBIT, less depreciation, amortization, stock-based
compensation, restructuring charges and other non-recurring extraordinary expenses. Awards were made in
March 2007 in the form of restricted stock units issued pursuant to the 1998 Stock Plan. Restricted stock units
were used to preserve cash. The restricted stock units vest over a period of four years Awards were made to
individual named executive officers as follows:

Bonus Number of RSUs
Named Executive Officer Ltle Amount  Issued to Settle Bonus
Jo 8. Major, Jr. ........ Chief Executive Officer & President . $46,875 25,756
Marla Sanchez ......... Sr. Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 513,867 7,620
Yves LeMaitre ........ Chief Marketing Officer $ 6,125 3,366
BradleyKolb .......... Sr. Vice President, Operations $16,875 9,272
Anthony Riley . ... ..., Former Vice President, Finance $19,500 10,715

Cal R. Hoagland .. .. ... Former Sr. Vice President & Chief Financial Officer — —
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Incentive Bonus Program, Second Half of Fiscal 2007. In February 2007, the Compensation Committee
also recommended, and the Board of Directors approved, an incentive bonus program for the performance period
that covered the third and fourth quarters of fiscal year 2007. The program was designed to reward executives
(and all participating employees) for the achievement of key financial milestones, as measured by two corporate
goals: (i) non-GAAP EBITDA and (ii) annual revenue. These goals were weighted 60% and 40% respectively.
The Compensation Committee believes that these goals are two of the major indicators of Avanex’s performance
and expects the executive officers to focus on these goals to increase stockholder value,

With respect to the non-GAAP EBITDA goal, the Board of Directors set three milestones as follows: at
approximately non-GAAP EBITDA brezkeven; at non-GAAP EBIT breakeven (equivalent of non-GAAP
EBITDA greater than $1.3 million which is the amount of depreciation and amortization); and at GAAP EBIT
breakeven (equivalent of non-GAAP EBITDA greater than $3.1 million which consists of $1.3 million of
depreciation and amortization and $1.8 million of stock compensation expense). Non-GAAP EBITDA was
calculated by taking GAAP EBIT, less depreciation, amortization, stock-based compensation (excluding the
one-time expense associated with the bonus payout consisting of restricted stock units), restructuring charges and
other non-recurring extraordinary expenses.

Because the incentive bonus program covered only part of the fiscal year, participants were entitled to
reczive 62.5% of their incentive bonus target for “on target” performance with opportunities for lower percentage
payout for below target performance, subject to achievement of minimum levels, and higher percentage payout
for above target performance. The aim of the incentive bonus program was to achieve positive non-GAAP
EBITDA. Accordingly, if Avanex did not achieve positive non-GAAP EBITDA in either the third or fourth
quarter, no award would be paid under the program, regardless of Avanex’s achievement against the revenue
goal.

The performance grid for each of the corporate goals is summarized below:

Non-GAAP EBITDA Performance (60% Weighting)  Revenue Performance (40% Weighting)

Percent of Pool Percent of Target
Non-GAAP EBITDA Milestone Earned Annual Revenue ﬂ__
Lessthan$0 .. ................ 0.0% Less than $165.6MM . ... .. . 0.0%
Greaterthan 30 ............... 33.3% S1656MM . ..., 33.3%
Greater than $1.3MM .. .. .. .. .. 33.3% $2070MM ... ... 100.0%
Greater than $3.1IMM . ...... ... 33.3% Greater than $207.0MM . ... .. Percentage increases by

1% for each | %
improvement in
revenue above $2(17.0
million.

Under the incentive bonus program, actual bonus payments earned would be determined solely according to
Avanex’s performance against the revenue and non-GAAP EBITDA goals. Bonuses earned for the achievement
of the annual revenué goal would be determined at the end of the fiscal year bused on Avanex’s annual revenue.
Bonuses earned for the achievement of the non-GAAP EBITDA goals would be paid after the end of the third
quarter and/or fourth quarter, subject to petformance.

Awards under the incentive bonus program, if any, were to be made in restricted stock units, as a means of
preserving cash, issued pursuant to the 1998 Stock Plan, with immediate vesting,.




In September 2007, the Compensation Committee determined that Avanex had achieved 33.3% of its
non-GAAP EBITDA goal and 103% of its Annual Revenue goal in fiscal year 2007. Accordingly, in September
2007, restricted stock units with immediate vesting were awarded to the named executive officers as follows:

Number RSUs

Bonus Issued to
Named Executive Officer % Amount Settle Bonus
Jo S. Major, Jr. ........ Chief Executive Officer & President $149,063 87,684
Marla Sanchez . ........ Sr. Vice President & Chief Financial Officer $ 58,427 34,369
Yves LeMaitre* .. ... .. Chief Marketing Officer $ 19,478 11,457
Bradley Kolb .......... Sr. Vice President, Operations $ 59,625 35,074
Anthony Riley .. ....... Former Vice President, Finance — —_
Cal R. Hoagland ....... Former Sr. Vice President & Chief Financial Officer — —

*  See also “Bonus Program for Chief Marketing Officer” below.

Bonus Program for Chief Marketing Officer. The bonus compensation for Yves LeMaitre, our Chief
Marketing Officer, is composed of two paris. The first part, at a target of 20% of his base salary, is aligned with
the Incentive Bonus Program for the second half of fiscal year 2007, which is described in greater detail above. A
larger portion of his bonus, at a target of 60% of his base salary, was aligned with his Global Sales Incentive
Plan. Mr. LeMaitre’s Revenue Generation Target, or guota, consists of his quarterty revenue goal, in addition to
an annual quota. In order for revenue to be counted towards the Revenue Generation Target, the revenue must be
generated during the specified fiscal quarter or year from specific customers, regions, products and/or industry
channels determined at the Company’s sole discretion. For these purposes, in order (o qualify as “revenue”
within a specific fiscal quarter (a) the product generating the revenue must actually be shipped by the Company
during the quarter, and (b) the revenue from such shipped product must have been recognized by the Company
for accounting purposes. Eighty percent of the Revenue Generation payout was based on quarterly targets and
20% being reserved for an annual payout ai the end of the fiscal year.

Calculating Achievement of Revenue Generation Targets Against Performance
for Mr. LeMaitre for Fiscal 2007

Less than 75% of assigned target . .............. No guarterly or annual incentive compensation
earned

Between 75% and 100% of assigned target .. ..... Corresponding percentage of target
compensation earned

100,1% - 120% of assigned target .............. 120% of target compensation earned

120.1% - 200% of assigned target .............. 200% of 1arget compensation earned

Greater than 200% of assigned target ........... 2 * {% of achievement of revenue generation

targel) * (target incentive compensation)

Mr. LeMaitre’s fiscal year 2007 sales incentive plan paid a total of $128,013 (cash) for his achievements.

Equity Compensation

Equity awards (stock options and restricted stock units) are granted to executive officers and other
employees under the 1998 Stock Plan. Awards are intended to focus the atiention of executives on the
Company’s long-term performance, which the Company believes results in improved stockholder value, and to
retain the services of the executive officers in a competitive job market by providing significant long-term
earnings potential, Given these considerations, and the adoption of FAS 123(R), the Compensation Committee
uses a mix of options and time-based restricted stock units for equity compensation grants. The Compensation
Committee believes this approach optimally balances the long-term interests of stockholders with the Company’s
need to retain its executives.




Guidelines for equity grants are established for each executive based on peer group practices with respect to
the FAS 123(R} Black-Scholes value delivered and allocation of the equity pool among various employee levels.
Individual grants are then determined based on consideration of the executive’s guideline, his or her individual
performance, the retention value of current awards (measured by the amount of “in-the-money” value of stock
opiions and unvested value of restricied stock units) and Company performance.

The Compensation Cominitiee designs its equity grant practices to reflect an appropriate balance between
stockholders’ dilution concerns and the Company’s need to remain competitive by recruiting and retaining high-
performing employees. The gross burn rate for fiscal year 2006 and fiscal year 2007 was 4.2% and 2.9%,
respectively. The Company defines the gross burn rate as the sum of the stock granted divided by the sum of the
cornmon stock outstanding. The net burn rate for fiscal year 2006 and fiscal year 2007 was (.2% and 1.9%,
respectively. The Company defines the net burn rate as the sum of the stock granted minus shares cancelled or
forfeited divided by the sum of the common stock outstanding.

The Compensation Committee typically approves ongoing stock option and restricted stock unit grants
annually at its October meeting. The Compensation Committee reviews equity usage at every scheduled
Compensation Committee meeting.

The details of stock option grants and awards of restricted stock units o named executive officers during
fiscal year 2007 can be found below under the heading “Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2007."

Benefits and Perquisites

Like other employees, Avanex executive officers are provided with standard health and welfare benefits, as
well as the opportunity to participate in a 401(k} retirement and savings plan. The Company does not provide any
additional perquisites to its named executive officers.

Change in Control and Severance Benefits

Our employees, including our named executive officers, are employees at-will and do not have long-term
employment contracts with us. The at-wiil employment status of our employees affords us the flexibility
necessary 1o remove employees when appropriate. However, in order to retain and attract highly qualified
execulives who may otherwise desire the protection of a long-term employment contract, we provide limited
severance and change-in-control benefits to our executives. Such benefits also provide protection for our
executives who, upon joining us, may forfeit substantial pay and benefits earned from a previous employer.

In recent years the optical-products industry has undergone, and in the future we anticipate the industry to
continue to undergo, substantial industry consolidation. We determined that these limited change of contro! and
severance provisions were necessary in order for us 1o attract and retain the highest quality executive officers that
we could, and to enable our executive officers to focus their attention on increasing stockholder value rather than
unnecessarily worrying about their livelihood.

For more information regarding our severance and change in control benefits, please see the section entitled
“Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control” below.

Change in Control Benefits. The stock option agreements and restricted stock unit agreements between
Avanex and its executive officers generally provide that immediately upon a change of control, as defined in the
agreements, each such award will become vested and exercisable as to 50% of the shares underlying such award,
if such award is not already so vested. Upon or within twelve months of a change of -control, if any such
individual’s employment terminates as a result of an involuntary termination, as defined in the agreements {(other
than for cause, as defined in the agreements), each such award will become fully vested and exercisable,
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Avanex provides limited vesting acceleration benefits, as described above, immediately upon a change of
control transaction to create an incentive for its executive officers 10 help successfully execute such transaction
from its early stages until closing. These benefits are limited in amount so as not to create an excessive windfall
for the executive officer and to provide a continuing incentive for the executive officer to remain with the
combined company following the transaction. Avanex also provides full acceleration benefits, as described
above, to enable our executive officers to focus their attention on increasing the stockholder value of the
combined company rather than unnecessarily worrying about their livelihood.

Severance Benefits: Dr. Major. In August 2004, Avanex entered into an at-will employment agreement
with Jo 8. Major, Ir.,, (the “Employment Agreement”), amended in November 2004. Pursuant to the Employment
Agreement, if Dr. Major’s employment is terminated by Avanex without “cause” or by Dr. Major due to an
“involuntary termination,” as defined in the Employment Agreement, then Dr. Major will receive the following:

* the equivalent of his base salary, less applicable withholding, for a period of twelve months and pro rata
payment of his accrued target annual incentive; and

* reimbursement for premiums paid for continued health benefits under our health plans until the earlier of
twelve months or the date when he becomes covered under substantially similar plans.

These severance benefits are subject to Dr. Major’s executing and not revoking a separation agreement and
release of claims in a form reasonably acceptable to Avanex and to him, as well as the noncompetition,
nonsolicitation and nondisparagement provisions set forth in the Employment Agreement,

Severance Benefits: Vice Presidents. Avanex’s severance policy for vice presidents is as follows:

« each senijor vice president who is terminated without cause shall be entitled to receive the equivalent of
his or her base salary, less applicable withholding, for a period of twelve months from the date of his or
her termination, and

» each vice president who is terminated without cause shall be entitled to receive the equivalent of his or
her base salary, less applicable withholding, for a period of six months from the date of his or her
termination,

Except as otherwise required or provided by any applicable foreign, federal, state or locat law, Avanex will
only pay severance pursuant to this policy in exchange for the vice president’s execution of a full release of all
claims in a form satisfactory to Avanex.

Reasonableness of Compensation

The Compensation Committee believes that Avanex is achieving its compensation objectives and that, in
particular, Avanex rewards its executive officers for driving operational success and stockholder value creation.
Based on our performance record and our compensation objectives, management and the Compensation
Committee believe the average target pay position relative to markei, and pay mix, are reasonable and
appropriate for Avanex’s executive officers.

Other Considerations
Tax Considerations

The Compensation Committee considers the potential effects of Section 162(m) of the Code on the
compensation paid to certain of the Company’s executive officers. Section 162(m) disallows a tax deduction for
any publicly held corporation for individual compensation exceeding $1.0 million in any taxable year for certain
executive officers, unless compensation is performance-based.
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The Compensation Committee is aware of the Section 162(m} limitations, and the available exemptions, and
in 2005 obtained stockholder approval of the amended 1998 Stock Plan to allow the Company to receive a tax
deduction for certain performance-based compensation paid under the 1998 Stock Plan in excess of the
Section 162(m) limitations. Time-based restricted stock unit grants do not comply with Section 162(m)
guidelines, nor does the Company’s annual incentive plan. The Compensation Committee will further address the
issue of deductibility if circumstances warrant the use of other available exemptions.

Section 409A of the Code

Section 409A imposes additional significant taxes in the event that an executive officer, director or service
provider receives “deferred compensation” that does not satisfy the requirements of Section 409A. Although
Avanex does not maintain a traditional nonqualified deferred compensation plan, Section 409A applies to certain
severance arrangements and equity awards. Consequently, to assist in avoiding additional tax under
Section 409A, Avanex has attempted to structure its equity awards in a manner intended to either avoid the
application of Section 409A, or, to the extent doing so is not possible, comply with the applicable Section 409A
requirements.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Beginning on July 1, 2005, Avanex began accounting for stock-based awards in accordance with the
requirements of FAS 123(R). Avanex gives equity awards that are a blend of stock options and Restricted Stock
Units. Options are valued using a Black-Scholes stock option pricing model per the guidance in
FAS 123(R). Restricted stock units are valued at face value (i.e., the number of shares granted multiplied by the
closing stock price on the date of grant). All equity award values are amortized over the requisite service period.

In general, management and the Compensation Committee view stock options as better aligned with the
interests of stockholders in that the stockholder suffers no dilution unless the underlying stock price appreciates,
We view RSU grants as more retentive, in that they maintain value in the situation of a falling market. The
Compensation Committee views equity grants that are a blend of these vehicles to be most appropriate for long-
term retention and motivation of employees.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
required by Item 402(b) of Regulation 5-K with management, and, based on such review and discussions, the
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this Proxy Statement.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Susan Wang, Chair

Vinton Cerf
Greg Dougherty
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Fiscal 2007 Summary Compensation Table

The following table presents information concerning the compensation received by our named executive

officers during fiscal 2007.

Non-Equity
Stock Option  Incentive Plan All Other
Awards Awards  Compensation Compensation

Name and principal position Year Salary ($) ) $m )2 ($)(3) Total ($)
JoS. Major, Jr. ... 2007 366,057 469,866 434,454 — -— 1,270,477
Chief Executive Officer and
President )
Marla Sanchez{4) ........... 2007 283,300(5) 72,212 89,063 —_ —_ 444 575

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Cal R. Hoagland(6) .......... 2007 93,365 93,383 — — 260,000 446,748
Former Senior Vice
President and Chief
Financial Officer

Bradley Kolb .............. 2007 228,077 339,792 233,888 — - 801,757
Senior Vice President, :
Operations

Yves LeMaitre ............. 2007 239,615 164,513 109,131 128,013 ‘ —_ 641,272
Senior Vice President and
Chief Marketing Officer

Anthony Riley(7) ........... 2007 260,000 139388 50,139 — 130,000 579,527
Former Vice President of
Finance

{1) Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes (disregarding an estimate

2

3

C))

(3
(©

(7

of forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions) for fiscal 2007, in accordance with FAS 123(R},
and thus may include amounts from awards granted in and prior to fiscal 2007. The assumptions used in the
valuation of these awards are set forth in the notes to our consolidated financial statements, which are
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007, filed with the SEC on
September 7, 2007. These amounts do not correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the
named executive officers.

Reflects amounts under the Bonus Program for Chief Marketing Officer for fiscal 2007 as described in
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis”, calculated on predetermined targets met during the year,

Reflects severance payments accrued or paid at the end of fiscal 2007 following termination pursuant to
employment agreements with the Company.

Ms. Sanchez became the Company’s Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer on October 27,
2006.

Includes $108,300 in consulting fees earned by Ms. Sanchez during September and October of 2006.

Mr, Hoagland ceased to be the Company's Senior Vice Presideat and Chief Financial Officer on
October 27, 2006.

Mr. Riley resigned as Vice President of Finance in May 2007, effective June 30, 2007,
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2007

The following table presents information concerning each grant of an award made to a named executive
officer in fiscal 2007 under any plan.

Grant
All Other Date
All Other  Option Fair

Stock Awards: Exercise Value of

Estimated Future Payouts Estimated Future Payouts .

Under Non-Equity Incentive  Under Equity Incentive Plan N‘}l‘l:"l‘:)l::ﬁlf ml;gge‘;f ;’,;ifm S;g;k

Plan Awards(1) Awards(2) Shares of Underlying Option Option
Grant  Threshold Target Maximum Threshold Target Maximum Stocks Options  Awards Awards

Name Date $) $) ($) $) $) $ #)(3) (#)(4) ®5hy  (5)(5)
Jo 8. Major, Jr. ...... 104972006 — — — — — - 200,000 — — 315800
103172006 — — — —_ — —_ — 400,000 1.64 476,640
2/15/07 — — — — 234,375 —_ — — — —
312172007 — — — — — -— 25,756 — — 46,850
Marla Sanchez ...... 102712006  — — — — — — 255,000 — — 42345
103172006 — — — — — — — 450,000 1.64 536,220
215007 —_ — — — 97,500 — — — _ —
312172007 — — — — — — 7,620 — — 13,861
Cal R, Hoagland . . ... —_ S — — S — — — — —
BradieyKolb ....... 10/9/2006 - —_— — — — 50,000 — — 78,950
10/31/2006  — — — — — — 100,000 1.64 119,160
2115007 — —- - — 93,750 — — — —_ —
321”2007 — - - — — — 9,272 — — 16,866
Yves LeMaitre ...... 10/9/2006 — -_— — —_ — — 100,000 — — 157,900
103122006  — —_ - — — — — 200,000 1.64 238320
1/5/07 _ 147,000 — — - - — — — —
2/15/07 _ —_ — 30,623 — — — - —_
312142007 — —- - — — — 3,366 — — 6,123
Anthony Riley ...... 241507 — - - — 97,500 — — — — —
372112007 _ —_ —_ —_ — —_ 10,715 — — 19,491

{1) Reflects threshold, target and maximum benus amounts for fiscal 2007 performance under the Bonus Program for Chief Marketing
Offizer, as described in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.” The actual bones amount of $128,013 was determined by the
Compensation Committee in September 2007 and is reflected in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation™ column of the *Fiscal
2005 Summary Compensation Table.”

(2) Reflzcts threshold. target and maximum bonus amounts for fiscal 2007 performance under the Incentive Bonus Program, Second Half of
Fiscal 2007 as described in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.” Pursuant to such Incentive Bonus Program, there was o
maximum cap on the potential award; the amount of the award earned by all participants would increase by 1% for each 1%
improvement in revehue over the target. For more information, see “Incentive Bonus Program, Second Half of Fiscal 20077 in
“Compensation Discussion and Analysis” above.

Awards pursuant to the Incentive Bonus Program were determined by the Compensation Commiitee in September 2007 and awarded 1n
restricted stock units, with immediate vesting, as follows:

Named Executive Officer Bonus Amount ($} Number of RSUs (#)
Jo S . Major, Jr .. e 149,063 87,684
MarlaSanchez .. ... ... i it e 58,427 34,369
CalR. Hoagland . ...ttt — —
BradleyKolb .. ... . e 59,625 35074
YvesLeMaitre ... i 19,478 11,457

AnthonyRiley ....... ... ... .. — —

(3) Reflects restricted stock units granted under the 1998 Swock Pian. Awards granted on October 9, 2006 and October 27, 2006 vest 23%
upon the first anniversary of the date of grant and then at a rate of Yauth per month thereafier, Awards granted on March 21, 2007 vest
25% on February 15, 2008 and then at a rate of Y4a® per month thereafter, See “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of
Control — Termination or Change of Control Arrangements” for a further description of certain terms relating to these awards.

(4) Reflects options granted under the 1998 Stock Plan, Awards granted on October 31, 2006 vest 25% upon the first anniversary of the dat:
of grant and then at a rate of Vagh per month thereafter, See “Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control —-
Termination or Change of Control Arrangements” for a further description of certain terms relating to these awards.

(5) Reflects the grant date fair value of each target equity award computed in accordance with FAS 123(R). The assumptions used in the
valuation of these awards are set forth in the notes to our consolidated financial statements, which are included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007, filed with the SEC on September 7, 2007. These amounts do not correspond to the actual
value that will be recognized by the named executive officers.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2007 Fiscal Year-End

The following table presents information concerning unexercised options a2nd stock that have not vested for
each named executive officer outstanding as of the end of fiscal 2007.

OPTION AWARDS(1) STOCK AWARDS(2)

Market
Number Value of
of Shares Shares

Number of Number of or Units or Units
Securitics Securities of Stock of Stock

Underlying Underlying Option That That
Unexercised  Unexercised  Exercise Option Have Not  Have Not

’ Options (#) Options (#) Price Expiration Vested Vested

Name Grant Date Exercisable  Unexercisable %) Date # ()
JoS. Major, Jr........... 8/20/2004 908,333 291,667 2.32 8/19/2014 _ —_
6/13/2005 75,000 75,000 0.99 6/12/2015 — —
12/20/2005 — - — — 125,000 225,000
1/31/2006 —_ - — — 152,174 273913
10/9/2006 —_ —_ — — 200,000 360,000
10/31/2006 — 400,000 1.64 — — —
3/21/2007 — — — — 25756 46,361
Marla Sanchez .......... 10/27/2006 — —_ — — 255,000 459,000
10/31/2006 — 450,000 1.64  10/30/2016 — —
37212007 — — — — 7,620 13,716
Cal R. Hoagland ........ — —_ —_ —_ — — —
Bradley Kolb ........... 3/23/2006 125,000 275,000 2.88 3/22/2016 — —
312372006 — - — — 50,000 90,000
10/9/2006 —_ _ — — 50,000 50,000
10/31/2006 — 100,000 1.64  10/30/2016 — —
3/21/.2007 — — — — 9272 16,690
Yves LeMaitre . ......... 5/23/2003 36,666 153,334 1.03 512212015 — —
12/20/2005 — — — — 53,125 95,625
1/31/2006 — — — — 48913 88,043
10/9/2006 — — — — 100,000 180,000
10/31/2006 — 200,000 1.64  10/30/2016 — —
3/21/2007 — — — — 3366 6,059
Anthony Riley .......... 9/19/05 153,125 196,875 0.97 9/18/2015 — —
1/31/07 — — — — 56,522 101,740
3/21/07 — — —_ — 10,715 19,287

(1) Reflecis options granted under the 1998 Stock Plan. All such options vest 25% upon the first anniversary of
the date of grant and then at a rate of Vg™ per month thereafter.

(2) Reflects restricted stock units granted under the 1998 Stock Plan. Unless otherwise indicated below, all such
restricted stock units vest 25% upon the first anniversary of the date of grant and then at a rate of Vas™ per
month thereafter. Restricted stock units granted on Jannary 31, 2006 and March 23, 2006 vest 12.5% every
quarter starting on 3/31/2006 and continuing through 12/31/2007. Restricted stock units granted on
March 21, 2007 vest 25% on February 15, 2008 and then at a rate of Vg per month thereafter.

(3) Market value of restricted stock units that have not vested is computed by muliiplying (i) $1.80, which was
the closing price per share of Avanex’s common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on June 29, 2007,
by (ii) the number of unvested restricted stock units at June 29, 2007,
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2007 Option Exercises

The following table presents information concerning each exercise of stock options and shares acquired
upon vesting of stock awards during fiscal 2007 for each of the named executive officers.

OPTION AWARDS STOCK AWARDS
Number of Number
Shares Value of Shares Value

Acquired Realized Acquired Reulized
on Exercise on Exercise on Vesting on Vesting

Name #) ($)(1) (#) $H2)

JoS. MajorJr. ........ U — — 379,348 685911
MarlaSanchez . ... .. . i i e e s — — — —
CalR.Hoagland ............ ... ... ... i iiiiiiiiaann.. — — 31,250 54,063
BradleyKolb . ... ... . — — 100,000 181,000
Yves LeMaitre ... e e 130,000 125,500 129,701 234,458
AnthonyRiley ......................... e — — 113,044 204,610

(1) Reflects the difference between the market price of Avanex common stock at the time of exercise on the
exercise date and the exercise price of the option.

(2) Reflects the dollar amount realized upon the vesting of restricted stock units, computed by multiplying the
number of shares of stock received upon such vesting by the market value of the underlying shares on the
vesting date.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control
Termination or Change of Control Arrangements
Change in Control Benefits

The stock option agreements and restricted stock unit agreements between Avanex and its executive officers
generally provide that immediately upon a change of control, as defined in the agreements, each such award will
become vested and exercisable as to 50% of the shares underlying such award, if such award is not already so
vested. Upon or within twelve months of a change of control, if any such individual’s employment terminates as
a result of an involuntary termination, as defined in the agreements (other than for cause, as defined in the
agreements), each such award will become fully vested and exercisable.

Severance Benefits

Dr. Major. In August 2004, Avanex entered into an at-will employment agreement with Jo 8. Major, Jr,,
(the “Employment Agreement”), amended in November 2004. Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, if
Dr. Major's employment is terminated by Avanex without “cause” or by Dr. Major due to an “involuntary
termination,” as defined in the Employment Agreement, then Dr. Major will receive the following:

+ the equivalent of his base salary, less applicable withholding, for a period of twelve months and pro rata
payment of his accrued target annval incentive; and

« reimbursement for premiums paid for continued health benefits under our health plans until the earlier of
twelve months or the date when he becomes covered under substantially similar plans.

These severance benefits are subject to Dr. Major’s executing and not revoking a separation agreement and
release of claims in a form reasonably acceptable to Avanex and to him, as well as the noncompetition,
nonsolicitation and nondisparagement provisions set forth in the Employment Agreement.
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Vice Presidents. Avanex’s severance policy for vice presidents is as follows:

* each senior vice president who is terminated without cause shall be entitled to receive the equivalent of
his or her base salary, less applicable withholding, for a period of twelve months from the date of his or
her termination, and

» each vice president who is terminated without cause shall be entitled to receive the equivalent of his or her
base salary, less applicable withholding, for a period of six months from the date of his or her termination.

Except as otherwise required or provided by any applicable foreign, federal, state or local law, Avanex will
only pay severance pursuant to this policy in exchange for the vice president’s execution of a full release of all
claims in a form satisfactory to Avanex.

Estimated Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

The following table provides information concerning the estimated payments and benefits that would be
provided in the circumstances described above for each of the named executive officers. Payments and benefits
are estimated assuming that the triggering event took place on the last business day of fiscal 2007 (June 29,
2007), and the price per share of Avanex’s comrmon stock is the closing price on the NASDAQ Global Market as
of that date {$1.80). There can be no assurance that a triggering event would produce the same or similar results
as those estimated below if such event occurs on any other date or at any other price, of if any other assumption
used to estimate potential payments and benefits is not correct. Due to the number of factors that affect the nature
and amount of any potential payments or benefits, any actual payments and benefits may be different.

Potential Payments in Connection with:

Non-Change in
Control Change in Control

Involuntary
Termination Other
Than For Cause
Within 12 Months

Termination Without Upon Change in of Change in
Name Type of Benefit Cause ($)(1) Control {$)(2) Control ($){3)
Jo 8. Major, Jr. .......... Cash Severance Payments 375,000 — 375,000
Accrued Target Annual
Incentive(4) 149,063 — 149,063
Continued Coverage of
Employee Benefits(5) 14,630 — 14,630
Vesting Acceleration —_ 280,043 746,479
Total Benefits 530,717 280,043 1,288,172
Marla Sanchez . .......... Cash Severance Payments 260,000 —_ 260,000
Vesting Acceleration — 272,227 272,227
Total Benefits 260,000 272,227 532,227
Cal R. Hoagland ......... Cash Severance Payments 260,000 — —
Vesting Acceleration — — —
Total Benefits 260,000 — —
Bradley Kolb .. .......... Cash Severance Payments 250,000 — 250,000
Vesting Acceleration — 61,315 151,265
Total Benefits 250,000 61,315 401,265
Yves LeMaitre . .......... Cash Severance Payments 245,000 —_ 245,000
Vesting Acceleration — 128,092 397,630
Total Benefits 245,000 — 642,630
Anhony Riley ........... Cash Severance Payments 130,000 — —
Vesting Acceleration — 9,638 274,727
Total Benefits 130,000 — —
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For Dr. Major, this column reflects the terms of his employment agreement with Avanex entered into in
August 2004 and includes payments made upon a termination by Avanex without “cause” or a termination
by Dr. Major due to an “involuntary termination,” each as defined in his employment agreement. For
Mr. Hoagland and Mr. Riley, this column reflects the actual payments to which these individuals were
entitled upon termination of their employment in October 2006 and June 2007, respectively. For the other
named executive officers, this column reflects the terms of Avanex’s severance policy for senjor vice
presidents and vice presidents.

Reflects the terms of stock option agreements and restricied stock unit agreements between Avanex and its
executive officers and indicates the aggregate market value of unvested option grants and restricted stock
units. For unvested option grants, aggregate market value is computed by multiplying (i) the difference
between $1.80 and the exercise price of the option, by (ii) the number of shares underlying unvested options
at June 29, 2007. For restricted stock units, aggregate market value is computed by multiplying (i) $1.80, by
(ii} the number of unvested restricted stock units at June 29, 2007.

For Dr. Major, the first three items of this column (“Cash Severance Payments”, “Accrued Target Annual
Incentive”, and “‘Continued Coverage of Employee Benefits’”) reflect the terms of his employment
agreement with Avanex entered into in August 2004 and includes payments made upon an involuntary
termination other than for “cause™ within 12 months of a “change in control,” each as defined in his
employment agreement. For the other named executive officers who were employed by the Company at the
end of fiscal 2007, the first 1tem (“Cash Severance Payments”) reflects the terms of Avanex’s severance
policy for senior vice presidents and vice presidents. Each row in this column entitled *“Vesting
Acceleration” reflects the terms of stock option agreements and restricted stock unit agreements between
Avanex and its executive officers and indicates the aggregate market value of unvested option grants and
restricted stock units, computed in the manner described in footnote 2 above.

Reflects the aggrégate market value of restricted stock units earned for fiscal 2007 performance but
determined in September 2007, Aggregate market value is computed by multiplying (i) $1.80, by (ii) the
number of such restricted stock units,

Assumes continued coverage of employee benefits for Dr. Major at the amounts paid by Avanex for fiscal
2007 under Avanex's health plans for 12 months.

Director Compensation

Compensation for Fiscal 2007

The following table provides information concerning the compensation paid by us to each of our

non-employee directors for fiscal 2007. Dr. Major, who is an employee, does not receive additional
compensation for his services as a director.

8y

Fees

Earned Option

or Paid Stock Awards

in Cash Awards %
Name ($) $)1) ()2U3) Total ($)
VintonCerf ......... ... ... .. . oot $40,000(4) $17,950 $36,241 § 95,193
GregDougherly . ........oiuiiiiiiiannnniins $42,000(5) S$S61.236  $28,305  $140,541
Joel A.Smith, III ... ..o oo o $37,500(6) $41,675 317,950 §$101,127
SusanWang .......... ... i $45,000(7y $59,239 $18981 $131,720

Reflects the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes (disregarding an estimare of
forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions} for fiscal 2007, in accordance with FAS 123(R), and
thus may include amounts from awards granted in and prior to 2007. The assumptions used in the valuation of
these awards are set forth in the notes to our consolidated financial statements, which are included in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007, filed with the SEC on September 7, 2007.
These amounts do not correspond to the actual value that will be recognized by the directors.
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(2) In fiscal year 2007, each of our non-employee directors received the following option to purchase shares of
our commen stock pursuant to the Company’s 1999 Director Option Plan, which vests and becomes
. exercisable on the first anniversary of the grant date:

Number of
Shares Exercise Grant Date
Underlying Price Per Fair Value
Grant Date Option (#) Share ($) [£3]
L 32006 . . e e 20,000 1.52 22,088

In fiscal year 2007, each of our non-employee directors received the following restricted stock units
pursuant to the Company’s 1999 Director Option Plan, which vest and become exercisable on the first
anniversary of the grant date:

Number of
Shares Grant Date
Underlying Fair Value
Grant Date RSU (# %
L1/ 2000 . e e e 10,000 15,190

In fiscal year 2007, our non-employee directors received the following shares of restricted Common Stock
pursuant to the Company’s 1998 Stock Plan for attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors and
commiftees of the Beard of Directors:

Number of
Shares
underlying
Restricted Grant Date
Stock Grants Fair Value

Name |, Grant Date # . (®
Vinton Cerf .. ... .. i e 10/27/2006 2,710 4,496
1/22/2007 1,408 2,998
472312007 572 1,000
712372007 506* 1,001
GregDougherty . ... .. ... ... .. .0 i, 10/27/2006 7,228 11,991
17222007 6,572 13,992
412312007 4,000 6,996
712312007 4.293* 8.496
Joeb A.Smith, L - . ... ... 10/27/2006 4,216 6,994
172212007 3,286 6,996
412372007 2,000 3,498
71232007 2,021* 4,000
Susan Wang . ... ... e 1042772006 6,927 11,492
17222007 6,338 13,494
412372007 3,429 5,997

7/23/2007 4,293* 8,496

* Granted in fiscal year 2008 for service in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2007.
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(3) As of June 30, 2007, the aggregate number of shares underlying options and restricted stock units
outstanding for each of our non-employee directors was:

Aggregate Aggregate
Number of Number of

Shares Shares
. Underlying Underlying
;ﬂ_arE Options RSUs
Vinton Cerf .. .. e 132,500 10,000
GregDougherty ... . i e e 40,000 10,000
Joel A. Smith, ITIT ... . . e e 92,500 10,000
Susan Wang .. ... .. e e 90,000 10,000

(4) Includes $8,000 of prepaid board related fees for the first fiscal quarter of 2008.

(5) Includes $8,500 of prepaid board related fees for the first fiscal quarter of 2008; also includes $500 of fiscal
vear 2007 board related service fees not yet paid.

(6) Includes $7,500 of prepaid board related fees for the first fiscal quarter of 2008.
(7) Includes $9,000 of prepaid board related fees for the first fiscal quarter of 2008.

Standard Director Compensation Arrangements

Overview. We use a combination of cash and equity compensation to attract and retain qualified
candidates to serve on our Board of Directors. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee of the
Board of Directors is responsible to evaluate director compensation and, if appropriate, recommend any changes
in the type or amount of compensation to the Board of Directors. Any change in director compensation is
approved by the Board of Directors.

Cash Compensation. Beginning in fiscal year 2007, each non-employee director is entitled to receive a
quarterly retainer of $5,000 in cash compensation for service on the Board of Directors. In addition,
non-employee directors are entitled to receive the following cash compensation for service on committees of the
Board of Directors: chair of the Audit Committee, $3,000 per quarter; chairs of the Compensation Committee
and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, $2,000 per quarter; member of the Audit Committee,
$1,500 per quarter; member of the Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee, $1,000 per quarter.

Per Meeting Fees. Beginning in fiscal year 2007, each non-employee director is eligible to receive shares
of restricted stock for attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors. For each in-person meeting of the Board
of Directors that a non-employee director attends, such director is eligible to receive a number of shares of
restricted stock with an aggregate fair market value of $1,500. For each telephonic meeting of the Board of
Directors that a non-employee director attends, such director is eligible to receive a number of shares of restricted
stock with an aggregate fair market value of $300. For each in-person meeting of a Committee of the Board of
Directors that a non-employee director attends, such director is eligible to receive a number of shares of restricted
stock with an aggregate fair market value of $1,000. For each telephonic meeting of a Committee of the Board of
Directors that a non-employee director attends, such director is eligible to receive a number of shares of restricted
stock with an aggregate fair market value of $500. The shares of restricted stock are granted once per fiscal
quarter at the same time each quarter, and the fair market value and aggregate number of the restricted shares is
determined on the day of such grant in accordance with the Company’s 1998 Stock Plan. Non-employee directors
who attended meetings of the Board of Directors during the previous fiscal quarter but who are no longer
directors on the date that such restricted stock is granted will not be eligible to receive such grants.

Equity Compensation. Directors are also eligible to receive options to purchase the Company’s Common
Stock pursuant to the Company’s 1998 Stock Plan and 1999 Director Option Plan. The 1999 Director Option
Plan provides for annual automatic grants of nonstatutory stock options to continuing non-employee directors
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who beneficially own less than one percent of the voting power represented by the outstanding securities of
Avanex. Under the 1999 Director Option Plan, each such director is eligible to receive a nonstatutory stock
option grant of 80,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock upon his or her initial election to the Board of
Directors (an “Initial Grant™). On the date of each annual stockholders’ meeting, each individual who is at the
time continuing to serve as a non-employee director meeting the criteria described above and has served on the
Board of Directors for at least the prior six months is automatically granted an option to purchase 20,000 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock (a “Subsequent Grant™). All options automatically granted to directors under
the 1999 Director Option Plan have an exercise price equal to 100% of the fair market value of the Company’s
Common Stock on the date of grant. Each Initial Grant vests and becomes exercisable in four equal annual
installments, and each Subsequent Grant vests and becomes exercisable on the first anniversary of the grant date.
In addition, the 1999 Director Option Plan provides that each non-employee director who meets the criteria
described above and has served on the Board of Directors for at least the prior six months will receive an
automatic annual grant of 10,000 restricted stock units, to be granted on the date of each annual stockholders
meeting and to vest 100% upon the one-year anniversary of such grant. '

Change of Control and Option Exercisability. Pursuant to Avanex’s 1999 Director Option Plan,
immediately upon a change of control, as defined in the plan, options to purchase Avanex Common Stock will
become fully vested and exercisable. In addition, options to purchase shares of Avanex Common Stock granted
to Dr. Cerf on December 10, 1999, October 18, 2001 and December 18, 2002 under Avanex’s 1998 Stock Plan
contain similar provisions. Each of the stock option agreements of Messrs. Dougherty and Smith, Dr. Cerf and
Ms. Wang provide for an exercise period extending until two years after the termination of such person’s service
with Avanex, but in no event beyond the options’ normal expiration dates.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table provides information as of June 30, 2007 with respect to the shares of the Company’s
Common Stock that snay be issued under the Company’s existing equity compensation plans.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

: Weighted-average Future Issuance Under
Number of Securities to~ Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
be Issued Upon Exercise Qutstanding Options, Plans (excluding
of Outstanding Options, Warrants and securities reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Rights ($) first colamn)

Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(1) ................... 17,519,345 $4.20 17,319,865(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by .
secunty holders ...................... _—

Total ........ ..o 17,519,345 $4.20 17,319,865(2)

I

(1) The Company’s 1998 Stock Plan provides that on July 1, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year, the
number of shares authorized under the plan shall be increased by the lesser of (i) 6,000,000 shares, {ii} 4.9% of
the outstanding shares on such date or (iii) a lesser amount determined by the Board of Directors. The
Company’s 1999 Director Option Plan provides that on July 1, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year, the
number of shares authorized under the plan shall be increased by the lesser of (i) 150,000 shares, (ii) 1/4 of 1%
of the outstanding shares on such date or (iii) a lesser amount determined by the Board of Directors. The
Company’s 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan provides that on July 1, the first day of the Company’s fiscal
year, the number of shares authorized under the plan shall be increased by the lesser of (i) 750,000 shares,
(i) 1% of the outstanding shares on such date or (iii) a lesser amount determined by the Board of Directors.

(2) Includes 2,353,272 shares available for future issuances under the Company’s 1999 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the beneficial ownership of Avanex’s
Common Stock, as of October 11, 2007, for the following: (1) each person or entity who is known by the
Company to own beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s Common Stock;
(2) each of the Company’s non-employee directors; (3) each of the executive officers named in the Summary
Compensation Table; and (4) all directors and executive officers of the Company as a group.

Common
Stock Percentage
: . Beneficially  Beneficially
NanE . Owned(1) Owned(2)
AlCAtEl .o e e i e e 28,295,868 12.42%
54, rue la Boétie .
75008 Paris
France . '
Kings Road Investments Ltd.(3) ....... oo 22,728,715 9.71%

c/o Polygon Investment Partners LP
508 Madison Avenue, 14% Floor
New York, New York 10022

Trivium Capital Management, LLC(4) .......... ... .. it 15,250,000 6.70%
600 Lexington Avenue, 23rd Floor

New York, NY 10022 . _ =
JoS. Major, Jr.(B) .. ... e e e e e - 1,914,604 ¥ _ g :
Vinton Cerft6) . . ..o vveee e B 181,612 * &%
Greg Dougherty(7) ... oo e 105,307 *

Joel A, Smith HII(8) ... oo e e P 200,556 * g
SUSAN WANZ(D) - -+ et eee e PR 158,701 * =
Yves LeMaitre(10) .......ooneeinrse e e aaaeanan S el 106,673 * e
Brad Kolb{L1) .ottt e e et e e e e e e e e e e 235,113 * &
Marla Sanchez(12) .. ... i e 318,306 * 7
CalHoagland . .. ... e — * o
ANthony RILEY ... e 119,040 *

Al directors and executive officers as a group (10 persons)(13} ............ ... .... 4,773,383 2.06%

*  Less than one percent of the outstanding Common Stock.

(1)  The number and percentage of shares beneficially owned are determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 of
the Exchange Act, and the information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other
purpose. Under such rule, beneficial ownership includes any shares over which the individual or entity has
voting power or investment power and any shares of Common Stock that the individual has the right to
acquire within 60 days of October 11, 2007, through the exercise of any stock option or other right. Unless
otherwise indicated in the footnotes, each person or entity has sole voting and investment power (or shares
such powers with his or her spouse) with respect to the shares shown as beneficially owned.

(2)  The total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of October 11, 2007 was 227,755,421.

(3) As indicated in the Schedule 13G filed by Kings Road Investments Ltd. (“Kings Road”) pursuant to the
Exchange Act on March 7, 2007, which may not be current as of October 11, 2007. Consists of 16,350,612
shares of Common Stock and 6,378,103 shares of Common Stock issuable to Kings Road upon the
exercise of certain warrants. Kings Road is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Polygon Global Opportunities
Master Fund (“Master Fund™). Polygon Investments Ltd. (the “Investment Manager™), Polygon Investment
Management Limited (“PIML”), Polygon Investment Partners LLP (the “UK Investment Manager”),
Polygon Investment Partners LP (the “US Investment Manager”), Polygon Investment Partners HK
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(4}

(5)

(6)

()

(8

{9}

(10)

(1n)

(12)

(13)

Limited (the “HK Investment Manager”) and Polygon Investment Partners GP, LLC (the “General
Partner”} have voting and depository control over securities owned by Kings Road and the Master Fund.
Reade E. Griffith, Alexander E. Jackson, Patrick G. G. Dear control the Investment Manager, the UK
Investment Manager, the US Investment Manager, the HK Investment Manager, PIML and the General
Partner.

As indicated in the Schedule 13G filed by Trivium Capital Management, LLC pursuant to the Exchange
Act on May 4, 2007, which may not be current as of QOctober 11, 2007. Trivium Offshore Fund Ltd. has
voting and dispositive power over 11,936,175 shares.

Represents 678,147 shares held by Dr. Major and 1,236,457 shares issuable pursuant to ophons exercisable
and restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of October 11, 2007.

Represeats 19,112 shares held by Dr. Cerf and 162,500 shares issuable pursuant to optlons exercisable and
restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of October 11, 2007.

Represents 35,307 shares held by Mr. Dougherty and 70,000 shares issuable pursuant to options
exercisable and restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of October 11, 2007.

Represents 76,856 shares held by Mr. Smith individually, 1,200 shares held by his spouse and 122,500
shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable and restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days
of October 11, 2007,

Represents 38,701 shares held by Ms. Wang and 120,000 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable
and restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of Qctober 11, 2007.

Represents 7,298 shares held by Mr. LeMaitre and 99,375 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable
and restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of October 11, 2007.

Represents 37,198 shares held by Mr. Kolb and 197,015 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable
and restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of October 11, 2007.

Represents 127,369 shares held by Ms. Sanchez and 190,937 shares issuable pursuant to.options
exercisable and restricted stock units scheduled to vest within 60 days of October 11, 2007.

Includes 3,706,241 shares issuable upon the exercise of options exercisable and restricted stock units
scheduled to vest within 60 days of October 11, 2007.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Transactions Policy

In accordance with the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the charter for the Audit
Cornmittee, the Audit Commitiee reviews and approves in advance in writing any proposed related party
transactions that are material. The most significant related party transactions, particularly those involving the
Cormnpany’s directors or executive officers, must be reviewed and approved in writing in advance by the Board of
Directors, Tt is the Company’s policy to report all such material related party transactions under applicable
accounting rules, federal securities laws and SEC rules and regulations. Any dealings with a related party must be
conducted in such a way that no preferential treatment is given to this business,

Transactions with Management and Others
Transactions with Alcatel,

In July 2003, in connection with the Company’s acquisition of the optical components business of Alcatel,
the Company issued 33,369,834 shares of the Company’s Common Stock to Alcatel, and the Company entered
into an intellectual property licensing agreement, supply agreement, frame purchase agreement and transition
services agreement with Alcatel. The supply agreement and transition services agreements were each amended in
October 2005. As of October 11, 2007, Alcatel beneficially owned approximately 12.42% of the Company’s
outstanding Common Stock. Pursuant to the supply agreement, as amended, and frame purchase agreement,
among other things, Alcatel agreed to purchase 70% of its requirements for certain qualified products from the
Company until October 2007, provided that the Company remains competitive with respect to these products.
Products sold to Alcatel accounted for $61.4 million, or 29% of the Company’s net revenue during the fiscal year
endz=d June 30, 2007. In addition, the Company purchased $0.5 million of raw materials and components from
Alcate! during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Pursuant to the transition services agreement, Alcatel agreed
to provide certain services to the Company, and the Company paid Alcatel $0.6 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007 for such services.

March 2007 Financing.

On March 1, 2007, Avanex entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement {(the “Securities Purchase
Agreement”) with Kings Road Investments Ltd. (the “Investor”™), which has owned more than five percent of the
Common Stock during fiscal 2007, for the sale of 10,795,056 shares of Common Stock at a price per share of
$1.8527 for an aggregate purchase price of approximately 320 million (the “Financing”). The Financing closed
on March 1, 2007. The Investor purchasing shares of Common Stock also received a Warrant (the “Warrant”) to
purchase up to an additional 2,698,764 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.1452 per share and for
a term starting March 31, 2007 and ending March 1, 2011. The shares issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase
Agreement and the shares issuable upon the exercise of the Warrant were registered in a registration statement on
Form S-3 (file number 333-141719) declared effective by the SEC on April 6, 2007.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act (“Section 16(a)”) requires the Company’s executive officers and
directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities
(**10% Stockholders™), to file reports of ownership on Form 3 and changes in ownership on Forms 4 or 5 with the
SEC. Such executive officers, directors and 10% Stockholders are also required by SEC rules to furnish the
Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on its review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company and written
representations that no other reports were required to be filed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the
Company believes that its executive officers, directors and 10% Stockholders have complied with all
Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to them, except that the following persons each filed onc late
Form 4: Giovanni Barbarossa, Yves LeMaitre and Jo S. Major, Jr.
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OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors does not know of any other matter to be presented at the Annual Meeting. If any
additional matters are properly presented at the Annual Meeting, the persons named on the enclosed proxy card
will have discretion to vote the shares of Common Stock they represent in accordance with their own judgment
on such matters.

It is important that your shares be represented at the Annual Meeting, regardless of the number of shares
that you hold. We urge you to vote by telephone or by using the Internet as instructed on the enclosed proxy card
or execute and return, at your earliest convenience, the enclosed proxy card in the envelope that has also been
enclosed.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Vinton Cerf
Greg Dougherty
Jo 8. Major, Jr.
Joel A. Smith HI
Susan Wang

Fremont, California
QOctober 16, 2007
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007
Or

[0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number: 000-29175

AVANEX CORPORATIO

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 94-328
{State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Emyp
incorporation or organization) Identification
40919 Encyclopedia Circle o |
Fremont, California , 94538 -4
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code) K2 f;

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (510) 897-4188

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Common Stock, $0.001 par value
Preferred Share Rights (currently attached to and trading only with Common Stock)
(Title of Class)

The NASDAQ Stock Market L1.C
{Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes[] No[X

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. Yes[] No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [x] No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation §-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated
b reference in Part I11 of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer.
Sce definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer (] Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer []

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes ] No

As of December 31, 2008, the last business day of the Registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, the
aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approximately $386.0 million based upon
the closing price on the Nasdaq Global Market reported for such date. As of August 22, 2007, the Registrant had 226,793,103
outstanding shares of common stock.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement that will be filed with the Commission pursuant to Section 14{(a) in
connection with the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorporated herein by reference in Part lll of this Annual
Report on Form 10-X to the extent stated herein. The Proxy Statement will be filed within 120 days of Registrant’s fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not purely historical are
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the federal securities laws, including, without limitation,
statements regarding our expectations, beliefs, anticipations, commitments, intentions and strategies regarding
the future. In some cases you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may, ? Mcould,”
“would,” “might,” “will” “should,” “expect,” “plan," “intend,” ‘forecast,” “anticipate,” “believe,”
“estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminolcgy.
Actual results could differ from those projected in any forward-looking statements for the reasons, among others,
detailed in “Risk Factors” in Item 1A, The forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Form 10-K
and we assume no obligation to update the forward-looking statements, or to update the reasons why actual
results could differ from those projected in the forward-looking statements.

PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a global provider of high-performance, intelligent, photonic products including optical components,
modules and subsystems. Our products enable optical communication networks to regenerate, transmit and
manaze voice, video and data optical signals efficiently. Telecommunication system integrators and their
network carrier customers use our products to enhance system performance and increase network speed and
capacity. We believe we are one of the largest broad-based suppliers of telecom optical equipment.

In 2003, we acquired all of the outstanding equity of Alcatel Opironics France, a subsidiary of Alcatel,
certain assets of the optical components business of Corning Incorporated, and substantially all of the assets of
Vitesse’s Optical Components Systems Division. As part of these acquisitions, Alcatel and Corning Incorporated
licensed certain intellectual property rights to us. Over the past four years, we have integrated and restructvred
these assets and have shifted most of our manufacturing operations to lower-cost geographic regions. For
instarce, in March 2005, we opened an operations center in Bangkok, Thailand to ceniralize global
manufacturing and operational overhead functions in a lower-cost region, and in July 2005, we announced the
opening of a product development office in Shanghai, China. In March 2007, we divested 90 percent of our
interest in our subsidiary in France, including our Indium Phosphide (InP) and Gallium Arsenide (GaAs)
semiconductor fabs, and our laser, terrestrial pump, submarine pump and Fiber Bragg Grating (FBG) product
lines, to 35 Photonics.

In order to expand our transmission preduct portfolio, on July 2, 2007, we acquired the assets relating to the
MSA 300-pin transponder and XFP transceiver businesses of the Commercial Communication Products Division
of Essex Corporation, a subsidiary of Northrop Grumman Space and Mission Systems Corporation.

We have one of the broadest optical product portfolio platforms available, with a scalable and efficient
global operating model,

We were incorporated in October 1997 as a California corporation, and in January 2000, we were
reincorporated as a Delaware corporation. Our principal executive office is located at 40919 Encyclopedia Circle,
Fremont, California, 94538. We also maintain facilities in Horseheads, New York; Melbourne, Florida;
Shanghai, China; Villebon Sur Yvette, France; San Donato, Italy; and Bangkok, Thailand. Our main telephone
numter is (510) 897-4188, and our web site address is www.avanex.com. The information that can be accessed
through our web site, however, is not part of this Annual Report. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to such reports are available, fre¢ of
charge, through our internet web site, as soon as reasonably practicable, after we electronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC.

Avanex and the Avanex logo are registered trademarks of Avanex Corporation. This Annual Report. on
Form 10-K also includes other trade names, trademarks and service marks of ours and other companies.
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Industry

Optical technology transfers information in the form of light signals along optical fibers. The light signals
are transmitted through fiber optic cable. Beyond lasers, many other optical components and subsystems are
utilized within optical networks to generate, clean, amplify, isolate, channel, or otherwise enhance light signals.

Over the last several years, the optical components, modules and subsystems industry has experienced a
modest increase in business levels, as compared to previous years because network carriers and cable companies
have been deploying new communication networks or have been upgrading the backbone of existing
communication networks. The increasing demand for optical solutions is in response to growing bandwidth
demand driven by increased transmission of video, voice and data over optical communication networks, and by
a need among network carriers to decrease the total cost of ownership of their networks, Certain large
telecommunications network carriers have also disclosed that they plan to deploy, and have begun to deploy, new
broadband access networks based on fiber optic technologies. These fiber-to-the-premise networks significantly
increase the capacity and expand the type of services that can be utilized by residential users.

Products

Transmission

Wavelength Management

Dispersion Compens ation
Management

Our product portfolio is comprised of the following product families (depicted visnally above):

Amplification—Our Amplification product family includes products that optically amplify transmission
signals, including Erbium doped fiber amplifiers and Raman amplifiers.

Wavelength Management—QOur Wavelength Management platform includes Switching and Routing
solutions, Multiplexing and Signal Processing solutions and Micro-Optics and Integrated Modules — including
products that optically add and drop transmission signais in both fixed and reconfigurable versions, products that
optically multiplex or demultiplex signals based on thin film filters, planar and interleaver technologies, and
products that optically aitenuate signal power across a single or multiple wavelength bands.

Dispersion Compensation Management—Our Dispersion Compensation product family consists of products
that opticaily compensate for chromatic dispersion and dispersion degradation of transmission signals, including
fixed and tunable products based on dispersion compensating fiber and cascaded etalons.




Transmission—Qur Transmission product family includes transceivers and transponders. These products
transmit and receive optical signals on optical fibers. Qur transmission product family also includes Lithium
Niobate Modulators, which are optical devices fabricated from Lithium Niobate and other optical devices that
manipulate the phase of magnitude of an optical signal. Their primary function is to transfer information on an
optical carrier by modulating the light.

Competition

The optical communications markets are rapidly evolving. We expect these markets to continue to be highly
competitive because of the available capacity and easily obtained funding. We believe that our principal
competitors in the optical subsystems, modules and components industry include Bookham, Inc., JDS Uniphase
Corporation, Oplink Communications, Inc., Opnext, Inc. and Optium Corporation. We may also face competition
from companies that expand into our industry in the future. We believe we differentiate ourselves from our
competitors by offering high levels of customer value through collaborative product design, technology
innovation, optical/mechanical performance, intelligent features for configuration, control and monitoring, multi-
function integration and overall customization. The principal competitive factors upon which we compete include
breadth of product line, availability, performance, product reliability, innovation and selling price. We believe
that we compete favorably with our competitors with respect to the foregoing factors.

Consolidation in the optical systems and components industry in the past has intensified, and future
consolidation could intensify, the competitive pressures that we face. Significant consolidation has also taken
place recently at the carrier level and at our customer level. Recent mergers among our customers include that of
ADVA Optical Networking with Movaz Networks Inc., Alcatel with Lucent Technologies Inc., Ericsson AB with
Marconi, and the merger of the optical businesses of Marconi Communications and Nokia.

We also face competition from companies that may expand into our industry and introduce additional
competitive products. Existing and potential customers are also our potential competitors. These customers may
develop or acquire additional competitive products or technologies, which may cause them to reduce or cease
their purchases from us. Please see “Risk Factors™ in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including in
Section II: “Market and Competitive Risks.”

Research and Development

We believe that research and development is critical to our strategic product development objectives. Our
reszarch and development activities are focused on developing new products that incorporate multiple optical
functions, offer intelligent features for configuration, control and monitoring, and provide network-ready
interfaces. To accomplish this, our research and development team possesses expertise in the areas of optical
components, micro-optic and integrated-optic design, as well as electronics, firmware, and software. Most of our
efforts are directed toward the development of products with revenue potential, but we do continue to invest in
ne'w technological platforms to ensure our continued competitiveness in the future,

Our research and development expenses totaled $25.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,
$23.5 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, and $33.! million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.
During fiscal 2007, research and development expenditures increased as we added staff in China and increased
patent-related expenses; however, by the end of fiscal 2007, these expenses had decreased to comparable levels
with the prior year with the sale of our subsidiary in France. During fiscal 2006, we reduced research and
development expenditures by taking advantage of internal consclidation opportunities presented by our
acquisitions and better aligning our resources with available market opportunities. In addition, we have moved
significant engineering resources to our Shanghai location to increase the cost effectiveness of our overall
research and development activities and to provide support to our third-party contract manufacturers. As of
June 30, 2007, we employed 151 people in our research and development groups in Fremont, California;
Horseheads, New York; Villebon Sur Yvetie, France; San Donato, Italy; and Shanghai, China.

During fiscal 2006 and 2007, we saw an increase in the number of customers purchasing integrated
subsystem products, as well as an increase in the complexity of such products with existing customers as the
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demand for more intelligent, efficient and flexible optical fiber networks increases. We continue to invest in such
products, as we believe applications for these types of products will become increasingly important in the future.
For risks associated with our research and development efforts, please see “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, including in Section 1V: “Operations, Research and Development Risks.”

Sales and Marketing

We primarily market our products to telecommunications system integrators. Our marketing efforts are
centered on the demonstration of, and education about, our products’ performance at trade shows, and customer
visits. We sell and market our.products through a combination of direct sales, distributors and representatives.

As of lune 30, 2007, our direct sales organization consisted of 24 sales account managers in the
United States, Europe and Asia, supported by application engineers and product line managers. We focus our
direct sales efforts on service providers and telecommunications systems and optical module manufacturers. The
direct sales account managers cover the market on an assigned-account, regional basis and work as a team with
systems engineers and product line managers. As of June 30, 2007, our sales and marketing organization
consisted of 63 people. We provide customer service directly to our customers.

In order to further our international sales objectives, we have established relationships with one distributor
in Europe and two distributors in Japan. Additionally, we have relationships with two supplier manufacturer
representatives, one in China and one in Korea, and with a sales representative in Israel. These distributors and
representatives have expertise in distributing complex telecommunications equipment in their markets and
provide basic customer service to the end customers they serve.

While we have diversified our customer base, we expect that a substantial proportion of our sales will
continue to be concentrated with a limited number of customers. During fiscal 2007, Alcatel-Lucent accounted
for 29% of our net revenue and Tellabs accounted for 17% of our net revenue. During fiscal 2006, Alcatel
accounted for 27% of our net revenue and Nortel accounted for 11% of our net revenue. During fiscal 2005,
Alcatel accounted for 34% of our net revenue.

A summary of our financial information by geographic location is found in Note 15 in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Backlog

We do not believe that backlog as of any particular date is meaningful, as our sales are made primarily
pursuant to standard purchase orders for delivery of products. Only a small portion of our orders is
non-cancelable, and the dollar amount associated with the non-cancelable portion 1s not significant.

Manufacturing

During the first half of fiscal 2006, we performed optical sub-assembly, final integration, and shipment of
our products at both our contract manufacturers facilities and at our own facilities in Fremont, California; Erwin
Park, New York; Nozay, France; and San Donato, Italy. During the second half of fiscal 2006 and in fiscal 2007,
we completed the transition of most of our manufacturing operations to third party contract manufacturers, whose
operations are coordinated through our Asian Operations Center in Bangkok, Thailand; however, we continue to
manufacture Lithium Niobate chips that are used in our products in San Donato, [taly. As of June 30, 2007, our
manufacturing support organization consisted of 243 people.

Currently, we see supplier lead-times increasing, as companies have re-aligned their capacity to lower
levels. We currently purchase several key components used in our products and equipment from single or limited
sources of supply, including Bookham Inc., Corning, Eudyna Devices Inc., JDS Uniphase Corporation and
Photop, Inc. These key components include lasers, variable optical attenuators, thin film filters, gain flattening
filters, and optical fiber. We also purchase turnkey solutions from contract manufacturers, such as Fabrinet,
Browave Corporation and Optiworks. For risks associated with our manufacturing strategy, please see “Risk
Factors” in ltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Section 1V: “Operations, Research and
Development Risks.”




Our United States, Europe and Asia sites are currently TL-9000 certified. We will continue to refine our
quality processes to ensure that we maintain our high standards of product quality and customer satisfaction.

Patents and Intellectual Property

As of June 30, 2007, we held approximately 520 U.S. patents and approximately 272 foreign patents (issued
and pending), covering a broad range of photonics and optical communications products and technologies. These
technologies are incorporated into our products and are covered by patents that expire through June 20z4;
however, we also have patents that have not been incorporated into our products. In addition, our intellectual
property includes trade secrets, trademarks, and copyrights. We do not expect to maintain or enhance our market
position primarily through the exercise of our intellectual property rights because the rapid evolution of
technology and the wide distribution of patents in our industry preclude such market positioning through
intellectual property. We will pursue opportunities to license our intellectual property if we believe that we can
be adequately compensated or if there is the potential for a beneficial cross-license agreement.

Qur engineering teams have significant expertise in photonic, micro-optic and systems-level design and
manufacturing. While we rely on patent, copyright, trade secret and trademark law to protect our technology, we
also believe that other factors, such as the technological and creative skills of our personnel, new product
developments, frequent product enhancements and reliable product maintenance are essential to establishing and
maintaining a technology leadership position.

We generally enter into confidentiality or license agreements with our employees, consultants and corporate
partners, and generally control access to and distribution of our proprietary information.

[n addition, we have been granted licenses to use other intellectual property, including patents of Alcael,
Coming and various other third parties. For risks associated with our patents and intellectual property, please see
“Risk Factors” in ltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Section V: “Intellectual Property and
Litigarion Risks.”

Employees

As of June 30, 2007, we had 539 employees and consultants comprised of 243 employees in manufacturing
support, 151 employees in research and development, 63 employees in sales and marketing, and 82 employees in
generul and administrative capacities. The work force is located in the United States, Canada, China, France,
Germany, ltaly, Thailand and the United Kingdom.

As of June 30, 2007, some of our employees located in Europe were represented by labor organizations.

We consider our relations with our employees to be good. Our future success depends on our continuing
ability to attract, train and retain highly qualified technical, sales and managerial personnel. Please see “Risk
Factozs” in Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Section 1V: “Operations and Research and
Development Risks,” specifically the risk factor entitled “We depend on key personnel to manage our busiriess
effectively, and if we are unable to hire, retain or motivate qualified personnel, our ability to sell our products
could be harmed.”

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we have identified the
follovsing risks and uncertainties that may have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition or
resulis of operations. Investors should carefully consider the risks described below before making an investment
decision. The risks described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks not presently known 1o us or
that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our business operations. Our business could be harined
by any of these risks. The trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these risks and investors
may lose all or part of their investment. This section should be read in conjunction with the Consoliduted
Financial Statements and Notes thereto, and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations contained in this Form 10-K.




L. Financial and Revenue Risks.

We have a history of negative cash flow and losses, which may continue for an indeterminate period of
time, if we are unable to increase our revenues and/or further reduce our costs,

We have never been profitable. We have experienced operating losses in each quarterly and annual period
since our inception in 1997, and we may continue to incur operating losses for an indeterminate period of time.
As of June 30, 2007, we had an accumulated deficit of $705.1 million. Also, for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007 and for each of our prior fiscal years, we had negative operating cash flow, and we may incur negative
operating cash flow in future periods. There can be no assurance that our business will become profitable in the
future or that additional losses and negative cash flows from operations will not be incurred, which could have a
material adverse affect on our financial condition.

Due to insufficient cash generated from operations, we have funded our operations primarily through the
sale of equity securities, debt securities, bank borrowings, equipment lease financings, acquisitions and other
capital raising transactions. Although we implemented cost reduction programs during the past several years, we
continue to have significant fixed expenses, and we expect to continue to incur considerable manufacturing, sales
and marketing, product development and administrative expenses.

If we do not increase our revenues and/or reduce costs, and improve our gross margins, our financial
condition and results of operations will be adversely impacted.

Our ability to achieve profitability depends on our ability to increase our revenues and/or control costs and
expenses in relation to revenues and to increase our gross margin. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2003, our gross margin percentage was positive 18%, positive 5% and negative 3%, respectively.
Despite our continued efforts to improve our gross margins, there can be no assurance that our gross margins will
improve in the future.

We have reduced fixed costs through the extensive reliance on third party contract manufacturing and the
relocation of most of our manufacturing operations into a central facility in Bangkok, Thailand. We may further
reduce fixed costs by relocating certain transactional activities to lower cost regions. We have faced and may
face execution issues working with our contract manufacturers, including difficulties managing our supply chain
and deliveries to our customers. From a financial viewpoint, should these difficulties continue to occur, we could
see negative impacts to revenue, gross margin and inventory levels.

In addition, over our limited operating history, the average selling prices of our existing products have
decreased and this trend may continue. However, our overall product mix has shifted toward products with
higher levels of integration, typically selling at higher unit prices. Future price decreases may be due to a number
of factors, including competitive pricing pressures, rapid technelogical change and sales discounts. Therefore, to
improve our gross margin, we must develop and introduce new products and product enhancements on a timely
basis and reduce our costs of production. Moreover, as our average selling prices decline, we must increase our
unit sales volume, or introduce new products, to maintain or increase our total revenues, If our average selling
prices decline more rapidly than our costs of production, our gross margin will decline, which would adversely
impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. If we are unable to continue to generate
positive gross margins, our cash flows from operations would be negatively impacted, and we would be unable to
achieve profitability.

We may not continue to realize the anticipated benefits from our restructuring efforts.

As part of our cost reduction efforts, over the past several years we have implemented various restructuring
programs to realign our resources in response to changes in the industry and customer demand. These efforts
have included transferring most of our manufacturing operations to lower-cost contract manufacturers and selling
our semiconductor fabs and related product lines in France. Qur past restructuring programs may have a material
effect on our financial position in the future as we pay severance to employees and rent for excess facilities. We
may initiate future restructuring actions, which are likely to result in additional expenses that could affect our
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results of operations or financial position. There can be no assurance that we will realize the benefits we
anticipate from our current or future restructuring programs or that such programs will reduce our operating
expenses and improve our cost structure.

Our future revenues and operating results are inherently unpredictable, and as a result, we may fail 10
meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors, which could cause our stock price to decline.

Our revenues and operating results have fluctuated significantly from quarter-to-quarter in the past, ard may
continue to fluctuate significantly in the future. Factors that are likely to cause these fluctuations, some of which
are outside of our control, include, without limitation, the following:

« the current economic environment and other developments in the telecommunications industry, including ‘
the severe business setbacks of customers or potential customers and the current perceived oversupply of i
communications bandwidth;

» the average margin of the mix of products we sell; . |

« fluctuations in demand for and sales of our products, which will depend upon the speed and magnitude of
the transition to an all-optical network, the acceptance of our products in the marketplace, and the general
level of spending on infrastructure projects in the telecommunications industry;

« cancellations of orders and shipment rescheduling;
» changes in product specifications required by customers for existing and future products;
« satisfaction of contractual customer acceptance criteria and related revenue recognition 1ssues;

+ our ability to maintain appropriate manufacturing capacity through our contract manufacturers and
materials suppliers, from whom we have no long-term commitments;

« the ability of our outsourced manufacturers to timely produce and deliver subcomponents, and possibly
complete products in the quantity and of the quality we require;

« the current practice of our customers in the telecommunications industry of sporadically placing large
orders with short lead times;

¢ our ability to comply with new rules and regulations;

* competitive factors, including the introduction of new products and product enhancements by competitors

and potential competitors, pricing pressures, and the competitive environment in the markets into which

_we sell our photonic processing solutions and products, including competitors with substantially greater
resources than we have;

« our ability to effectively develop, introduce, manufacture, and ship new and enhanced products in a
timely manner without defects; '

+ the availability and cost of components for our products;

+ new product introductions that may result in increased research and development expenses and sales and
marketing expenses that are incurred in one quarter, with revenues, if any, that are not recognized until a
subsequent quarter;

» the unpredictability of customer demand and difficulties in meeting such demand;

» revisions to our estimated reserves and allowances, as well as other accounting provisions or charges;
» costs associated with, and the outcome of, any litigation to which we are, or may become, a party; and
* customer perception of our financial condition and resulting effects on our orders and revenue.

A high percentage of our expenses, including those related to manufacturing, engineering, sales and marketing,
research and development, and general and administrative functions, are fixed in the short term. As a result, if we
experience delays in generating and recognizing revenue, our quarterly operating results are likely to be harmed.
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Due to these and other factors, we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results may
not be meaningful. Our results for one quarter should not be relied upon as any indication of our future
performance. It is possible that in future quarters our operating results may be below the expectations of public
market analysts or investors. If this occurs, the price of our common stock would likely decrease.

A lack of effective internal control over financial reporting could result in an inability to accurately report
our financial results, which could lead to a loss of investor confidence in our financial reports and have an
adverse effect on our stock price.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports. If we cannot provide
reliable financial reports or prevent fraud, our business and operating results could be harmed. We have in the
past discovered, and may in the future discover, deficiencies in our intemal controls. For example, as more fully
described in Item @A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our management concluded that as of June 30, 2007
we did not maintain effective internal controls over the following:

Controls over judgmental and complex processes and transactions were inadequate resulting in insufficient
control over financial reporting.

Our management determined that these control deficiencies were considered a material weakness that could
result in a material misstatement to annual or interim financial statements that would not be prevented or
detected. As a result, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not
effective as of June 30, 2007 using the criteria set forth in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO" ). We expect the remediation
of this material weakness to occur during fiscal year 2008.

A failure to implement and maintain effective internal contro! over financial reporting, including a failure to
implement corrective actions to address the contro) deficiencies identified above, could result in a material
misstatement of our financial statements or otherwise cause us to fail to meet our financial reporting obligations.
This, in turn, could result in a loss of investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial
reports, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financtal condition, operating results and our stock
price, and we could be subject to stockholder litigation.

We incur increased costs as a result of being a public company.

As a public company, we incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses. In addition, the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, as well as, rules subsequently implemented by the Securities and Exchange Commission and
Nasdag, has required changes in corporate governance practices of public companies. These rules and regulations
have increased our legal and financial compliance costs and made some activities more time consuming and
costly. In addition, we incur additional costs associated with our public company reporting requirements.

Our stock price is highly volatile,

The trading price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly since our initial public offering in
February 2000, and is likely to remain volatile in the future. For example, since the beginning of fiscal 2006, our
common stock has closed as low as $0.62 and as high as $3.29 per share. The trading price of our common stock
could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to many events or factors, including the following:

 quarterly variations in our operating results;

» significant developments in the businesses of telecommunications companies;

* changes in financial estimates by securities analysts;

¢ changes in market valuations or financial results of telecommunications-related companies;

+ announcements by us or our competitors of technology innovations, new products, or significant
acquisitions, strategic partnerships or joint ventures;

* any deviation from projected growth rates in revenues;
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+ any loss of a major customer or a major customer order;

« additions or departures of key management or engineering personnel;

« any deviations in our net revenue or in losses from levels expected by securities analysts;
» activities of short sellers and risk arbitrageurs;

« future sales of our common stock or the availability of additional financing;

+ volume fluctuations, which are particularly common among highly volatile securities of
telecommunications-related companies; and

« material weaknesses in internal controls.

In addition, the stock market has experienced volatility that has particularly affected the market prices of
equity securities of many high technology companies, which often has been unrelated or disproportionate to the
operating performance of these companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock. There is substantiai risk that our quarterly results will fluctuate.

Sales of securities by our stockholders or warranthelders could affect the market price of our common
stock or have a dilutive effect upon our stockholders.

As of August 22, 2007, Alcatel Lucent owned shares of our common stock representing 12% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock. Previously, certain restrictions on transfer applied to Alcatel Lucent,
making it more difficult for it to sell its shares of Avanex common stock. After January 1, 2007, however,
Alcatel Lucent was no longer subject to such selling restrictions. If Alcatel Lucent or our other stockholders sell
substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, it could cause the market price of our common
stock to fall, and could make it more difficult for us to raise capital through public offerings or other sales of our
capital stock.

In addition, we have issued warrants to purchase initially up to an aggregate of 17,919,288 million shares of
common stock to certain institutional investors that are exercisable through 2008, 2009 and 2011 at exercise
prices ranging from $1.13 to $2.68 per share, subject to broad-based anti-dilution provisions, including weighted
average price-based anti-dilution provisions. If these institutional investors exercise the warrants, we will issue
shares of our common stock and such issuances may be dilutive to our stockholders. Because the exercise price
of the warrants may be adjusted from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the warrants, the number
of shares that could actually be issued may be greater than the amount described above. For example, in
connection with our March 1, 2007 financing, the holders of the warrants we issued on March 9, 2006 received
an antidilution adjustment pursuant to the terms of such warrants resulting in up to 117,221 additional shares
being issued upon the exercise of such warrants and the reduction of the exercise price of the warrants from
$2.73 per share to $2.69 per share.

We may have difficulty obtaining additional capital.

Our balance of cash, cash equivalents, and unrestricted short-term investments decreased from $67.7 million
at June 30, 2006 to $43.8 million at June 30, 2007. To date, we have not been profitable, and there can be no
assurance that our business will be profitable in the future. If these trends continue in the future, it could have an
adverse affect on our financial condition. It may be difficult for us to raise additional capital. If adequate capital
is not available to us as required, or is not available on favorable terms, our business, operating tesuits and
financial condition would be adversely affected.

I1. Market and Competitive Risks.
Market conditions in the telecommunications industry may significantly harm our financial posilion.
We sell our products primarily to a few large customers in the telecommunications industry. Two customers

accounted for an aggregate of 29% and 17% of our net revenue, respectively, for the fiscal year ended June 30,
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2007. We expect that the majority of our revenues will continue to depend on sales of our products to a small
number of customers. If current customers do not continue to place significant orders, or if they cancel or delay
current orders, we may not be able to replace those orders, In addition, any negative developments in the business
of existing customers could result in significantly decreased sales 1o these customers, which could seriously harm
our business, operating results and financial condition, We have experienced, and in the future we may
experience, losses as & result of the inability to collect accounts receivable, as well as the loss of ongoing
business from customers experiencing financial difficulties. If our customers fail to meet their payment
obligations, we could experience reduced cash flows and losses in excess of amounts reserved. Because of our
reliance on a limited aumber of customers, any decrease in revenues from, or loss of, one or more of these
customers without a corresponding increase in revenues from other customers would harm our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Few of our customers are under obligation to buy significant quantities of our products, and may cancel or
delay purchases with little or no advance notice to us.

Our customers typically purchase our products pursuant to individual purchase orders. While we have
executed long-term contracts with some of our customers, and may enter into additional long-term contracts with
other customers in the future, these contracts do not obligate our customers to buy significant quantities of our
products. Qur customers may cancel, defer or decrease purchases without significant consequence to them and
with little or no advance notice. Further, certain of our customers have a tendency to purchase our products near
the end of a fiscal quarter. Cancellation or delays of such orders may cause us to fail to achieve that quarter’s
financial and operating goals. Decreases in purchases, cancellations of purchase orders, or deferrals of purchases
may significantly harm our business, operating results and financial condition, particularly if we are not able to
anticipate these events,

We experience intense competition with respect to our products.

We believe that our principal competitors in the optical systems and components industry include Bookham
Inc., JDS Uniphase Corporation, Oplink Communications, Inc., Opnext Inc. and Optium Corporation. We may
also face competition from companies that expand into our industry in the future.

Some of our competitors have longer operating histories and significantly greater financial, technical,
marketing and other resources than we have. As a result, some of these competitors are able to devote greater
resources to the development, promotion, sale, and support of their products. In addition, our competitors that
have larger market capitalization or cash reserves are better positioned than we are to acquire other companies in
order to gain new technologies or products that may displace our product lines. Consolidation in the optical
systems and components industry could intensify the competitive pressures that we face because these
consolidated competitors may have longer operating histories and significantly greater financial, technical,
marketing and other resources than we have.

Some existing customers and potential customers, as well as, suppliers and potential suppliers, are also our
competitors. These customers and suppliers may develop or acquire additional competitive products or
technologies in the future, which may cause them to reduce or cease their purchases from us or their supply to us,
as the case may be. Further, these customers may reduce or discontinue purchasing our products if they perceive
us as a serious competitive threat with regard to sales of products to their customers. Additionally, suppliers may
reduce or discontinue selling materials to us if they perceive us as a serious competitive threat with regard to
sales of products to their customers. As a result of these factors, we expect that competitive pressures will
intensify and may result in price reductions, reduced margins, and loss of market share,

Competition in the optical systems and components industry has contributed to substantial price-driven
competition. As a result, sales prices for specific products have decreased over time at varying rates, in some
instances significantly. Price pressure is exacerbated by the rapid emergence of new technologies and the
evolution of technical standards, which can greatly diminish the value of products relying on older technologies
and standards. In addition, the current economic and industry environment in the telecommunications sector has
resulted in pressure to reduce prices for our products, and we expect pricing pressure to continue for the
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foreseeable future, which may continue to adversely affect our operating results. Reduced spending by our
customers has caused and may continue to cause increased price competition, resulting in a decline in the prices
we charge for our products. If our customers and potential customers continue to constrain their spending, or if
the prices we charge continue to decline, our revenues and margins may be adversely affected.

We will lose market share and may not be successful if our customers do not qualify our products to be
designed into their products and systems or if our customers significantly delay purchasing our products.

In the telecommunications industry, service providers and optical systems manufacturers often undertake
extensive qualification processes prior to placing orders for large quantities of products such as ours, because
these products must function as part of a larger system or network. Once they decide to use a particular supplier’s
product or component, these potential customers design the product into their system, which is known as a
“design-in”" win. Suppliers whose products or components are not designed in are unlikely to make sales to that
company until the adoption of a future redesigned system at the earliest, which could occur several years after the
last design-in win. If we fail to achieve design-in wins in potential customers’ qualification processes, we may
lose the opportunity for significant sales to such customers for a significant period of time.

The long sales cycles for sales of our products to customers may cause operating results to vary from
quarter to quarter, which could continue to cause volatility in our stock price, and may prevent us from
achieving profitability.

The period of time between our initial contact with certain of our customers and the receipt of an actual
purchase order from such customers often spans a time period of six to nine months, or longer. During this time,
customers may perform, or require us 1o perform, extensive and lengthy evaluation and testing of our products
and our manufacturing processes before purchasing our products. While our customers are evaluating our
products before they place an order with us, we may incur substantial sales and marketing and research and
development expenses, expend significant management efforts, increase manufacturing capacity and order long-
lead-time supplies. For example, one of our largest customers required us to perform extensive and lengthy
evaluation and testing of a proposed product. After such extensive work, we failed to be designed-in for that
product. If we increase capacity and order supplies in anticipation of an order that does not materialize, our gross
margins will decline, and we will have to carry and write off excess inventory. Even if we receive an order, if we
are required to add additional internal manufacturing capacity in order to service the customer’s requirements,
such manufacturing capacity may be underutilized in subsequent periods, especially if orders are delayed or
cancelled. Either situation could cause our business, results of operations, and financial condition to be below the
expectations of public market analysts or investors, which could, in turn, cause the price of our common stock to
decline.

If the communications industry does not continue to evolve and grow steadily, our business may not
succeed.

Future demand for our products is uncertain and unpredictable, and will depend to a great degree on the
speed of the widespread adoption of optical networks, If the transition occurs too slowly or ceases altogether, the
market for our products and the growth of our business will be significantly limited.

Our future success depends on the continued growth and success of the telecommunications industry,
including the continued growth of the Internet as a widely used medium for commerce and communication and
the continuing demand for increased bandwidth over communications networks. If the Internet does not continue
to expand as a widespread communication medium and commercial marketplace, the need for significantly
incteased bandwidth across networks and the market for optical transmission products may not develop. As a
resull;‘ it would be unlikely that our products would achieve commercial success.

T\he rate at which telecommunications service providers and other optical network users have built new
optical metworks or installed new systems in their existing optical networks has fluctuated in the past, and these
fluctuations may continue in the future. Sales of our components depend on sales of fiber optic
telecommunijcations systems by our systems-level customers, which are shipped in quantity when
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telecommunications service providers add capacity. Systems manufacturers compete for sales in each capacity
deployment. If systems manufacturers that use our products in their systems do not win a contract, their demand
for our products will decline, reducing our future revenues. Similarly, a telecommunications service provider's
delay in selecting systems manufacturers for a deployment could delay our shipments and revenues.

I11, Acquisition and Divestiture Risks.
Acquisitions, divestitures and other significant transactions may adversely affect our business.

We regularly review acquisition, divestiture and other strategic opportunities that would further our business
objectives, complement our existing product offerings, augment our market coverage, secure supplies of critical
materials, or enhance our technological capabilities. The anticipated benefits of our acquisitions, divestitures and
other strategic transactions may not be realized or may be realized more slowly than we expected. Acquisitions,
divestitures and other strategic opportunities have resulted in, and in the future could result in, a number of
financial consequences, including without limitation:

+ potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities;

» reduced cash balances and related interest income;

* higher fixed expenses, which require a higher level of revenues to maintain gross margins;
» the incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities, including indemnification dbligations;

* restructuring actions, which could result in charges that have a material effect on our results of operations
and our financial position;

* loss of customers, suppliers, distributors, licensors or employees of the acquired company;
* legal, accounting and advisory fees; _

* amortization expenses related to intangible assets; and

* one-lime write-offs of large amounts,

For example, in connection with our acquisition of the optical components businesses of Alcatel and
Corning, we issued shares of our common stock to Alcatel and to Corning representing 28% and 17%,
respectively, of the outstanding shares of our common stock on a post-transaction basis. In connection with such
acquisitions, we recorded restructuring liabilities at July 31, 2003 with a fair value of $64.1 million relating to
workforce reductions, which were included in the purchase price of such acquisitions. Following these
acquisitions, we recorded additional significant restructuring liabilities that involved the acquired businesses and
resulied in, among other things, a significant reduction in the size of our workforce, consolidation of our facilities
and increased reliance on outsourced, third-party manufacturing,

In addition, as discussed above, we sold ninety percent (90%) of the shares of Avanex France, the operator of
our semiconductor fabs and associated product lines located in Nozay, France. Pursuant to the provisions of French
bankruptcy law, in the event that Avanex France, now “38 Photonics,” declares bankruptcy after such sale, we may
be held liable, as “manager de facto” of 3S Photonics for the payrment of all or part of the liabilities of 3§ Photonics,
should it appear that we commitied mismanagement, which would have solely or partially led to the bankrupicy of
38 Photonics, and these liabilities could be significant. Such liability, if incurred, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition. In addition, we agreed to indemnify the buyers
of Avanex France generally for a period of up to two years in an amount generally not exceeding €5 million for
breaches of certain representations, warranties and covenants relating to the condition of the business prior to, and at
the time of sale, and approximately €2 million for other liabilities. Should any such liabilities or expenses be gfi-x -
material amount, our finances could be materially and adversely affected. Finally, we may be dependent gn 38
Photonics to supply us with certain products and components that we sell to our customers, Any interruptior/ in the
operations of 35 Photonics, or any deficiency in the quality or quantity of the components or products built fgr us by
38 Photonics, could impede our ability to meet our scheduled product deliveries to our customers. As a result, we
may experience a shortfall in revenue, lose existing or potential customers, or otherwise experience material adverse
effects upon our business, results of operation, and financial condition.

12




Additionally, if any potential acquisitions are not completed, we are required to expense the frequently
significant legal, accounting, consulting and other costs of pursuing these transactions in the period in which the
activity ceases, which could adversely affect our operating results and may not be anticipated. In the quarter
ended December 31, 2006, we expensed approximately $2.1 million in legal, accounting, and consulting due
diligance fees related to a potential acquisition in which Avanex decided not to proceed further.

Furthermore, our past acquisition and disposition activity has involved, and our future acquisition,
disposition and other significant transactions may involve, numerous operational risks, including:

« difficulties integrating or divesting operations, personnel, technologies, products and the information
systems of the acquired or divested companies;

» diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns;

diversion of resources from our existing businesses, products or technologies;
« risks of entering geographic and business markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and

+ potential loss of key employees of acquired organizations.

IV. Operations and Research and Development Risks.
We have a limited operating history, which makes it difficult to evaluate our prospects and our operations.

We are in the optical systems and components industry. We were first incorporated in October 1997.
Because of our limited operating history, we have limited insight into trends that may emerge in our indusiry and
affect our business. The revenue and income potential of the optical systems and components industry, and our.
business in particular, are unproven, As a result of our limited operating history, we have limited financial data
that can be used to evaluate our business. Our prospects must be considered in light of the risks, expenses and
challenges we might encounter because we are in a new and rapidly evolving industry.

We face various risks related to our manufacturing eperations that may adversely affect our business.

We may experience delays, disruptions or quality control problems in our manufacturing operations or the
manufacturing operations of our third party manufacturers, and, as a result, product shipments to our customers
could be delayed beyond the shipment schedules requested by our customers, which would negatively affect our
business, results of operations, and financial condition. Furthermore, even if we are able to timely deliver
products to our customers, we may be unable to recognize revenue because of applicable revenue recognition
policies. In the past, we have experienced disruptions in the manufacture of some of our products due t¢ changes
in our manufacturing processes, which resulted in reduced manufacturing yields, delays in the shipment of our
products and deferral of revenue recognition. Any disruptions in the future could adversely affect our revenues,
gross margins, and results of operations. Changes in our manufacturing processes or those of our third party
manufacturers, or the inadvertent use of defective materials by our third party manufacturers or us, could
significantly reduce our manufacturing yields and product reliability. Lower than expected manufacturing yields
could delay product shipments and further impair our gross margins. These operational issues have included
capacity constraints at our contract manufacturers, raw materials shortages, logistics issues, and manufacturing
yield issues.for.some-of our new products.

—

We may need to develop new manufacturing processes and techniques that will involve higher levels of
automation, or may need to further relocate certain manufacturing operations to lower cost regions, 10 improve
our gross margins and achieve the targeted cost levels of our customers. If we fail to effectively manage this
process, or if we experience delays, disruptions or quality control problems in our manufacturing operations, our
shipments of products to our customers could be delayed,
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We face risks related to our concentration of research and development efforts on a limited number of key
industry standards and technologies, and our future success depends on our ability to develop and
successfully introduce new and enhanced products that meet the needs of our customers in a timely manner.

In the past, we have corcentrated our research and development efforts on a limited number of technologies
that we believed had the besi growth prospects. If we are unable to develop commercialty viable products using
these technologies, or these technologies do not become generally accepted, our business will likely suffer.

The markets for our products are characterized by rapid technological change, {requent new product
introduction, changes in customer requirements, and evolving industry standards. Our future performance will
depend upon the successful development, introduction and market acceptance of new and enhanced products that
address these changes. We may not be able to develop the underlying core technologies necessary to create new
or enhanced products, or to license or otherwise acquire these technologies from third parties. Product
development delays may result from numerous factors, including:

* changing product specifications and customer requirements;
* difficulties in hiring and retaining necessary technical personnel;
» difficulties in reallocating engineering resources and overcoming resource limitations;
*» changing market or competitive product requirements;
* unanticipated engineering complexities, and
| * failure to compete with new product releases by our competitors.

Our industry has increased its focus on products that transmit voice, video and data traffic over shorter
distances and are offered at lower cost than the products that we offer to our telecommunications customers for
transmission of information over longer distances. If we are unable to develop products that meet the requirements
of potential customers of these products, our business, results of operations, and financial condition could suffer.

The development of new, technologically advanced products is a complex and uncertain process requiring
high levels of innovation and highiy skilled engineering and development personnel, as well as, the accurate
anticipation of technological and market trends. We cannot assure that we will be able to identify, develop,
manufacture, market or support new or enhanced products successfully, or on a timely basis. In addition, the
introduction of new and enhanced products may cause our customers to defer or cancel orders for existing
products. To the extent customers defer or cancel orders for existing products due to the expectation of a new
product release, or if there is any delay in development or introduction of our new products or enhancements of
our products, our business, results of operations, and financial condition wouid suffer, Further, we cannot assure
that our new products will gain markei acceptance or that we will be able to respond effectively to competitive
products, technological changes or emerging industry standards. Any failure to respond to technological change
would significantly harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.

If we are unable to forecast component and material requirements accurately or if we are unable to
commit to deliver sufficient quantities of our products to satisfy customers’ needs, our results of
operations wiil be adversely affected.

Our customers typically require us to commit to delivering certain quantities of our products to them (in
guaranteed safety stock, guaranteed capacity or otherwise) without committing themselves to purchase such
products, or any quantity of such products. Therefore, wide variations between estimates of our customers’ needs
and their actual purchases may result in:

* asurplus and potential obsolescence of inventory, materials and capacity, if estimates_of our customers’
requirements are grealér than our customers’ actual need; or

* alack of sufficient products to satisfy our customers’ needs, if estimates of our customers’ requirements
are less than our customers’ actual needs.

We use a rolling six-month to twelve-month demand forecast based on anticipated and historical product
orders to determine our component and material requirements. It is very important that we accurately predict
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both the demand for our products and the lead times required to obtain the necessary components and materials.
It is very difficult to develop accurate forecasts of product demand, especially given the current uncertain
conditions in the telecommunications industry. Order cancellations and lower order volumes by our customers.
have in the past created excess inventories. For example, inventory write-downs are primarily the result of our
inability to anticipate decreases in demand for certain of our products and variations in product mix ordered by
our customers. For the fiscal years ended June .30, 2007 and June 30, 2006, we recorded write-downs of
$12.9 million and $12.8 million, respectively, for excess and obsolete inventory. If we fail 10 accurately predici
both the demand for our products and the lead times required to obtain the necessary components and materials
in the future, we could incur additional excess and obsolete inventory write-downs. If we underestimate our
component and material requirements, we may have inadequate inventory, which could interrupt our
manufacturing and delay delivery of our products to our customers. Any of these occurrences would negatively
affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition. :

Network carriers and telecommunication system integrators historically have required that suppliers commit
to provide specified quantities of products over a given period of time. If we are unable to commit to deliver
sufficient quantities of our products to satisfy a customer’s anticipated néeds, we may lose the opportunity to
make significant sales to that customer over a lengthy period of time. In addition, we may be unable to pursue
large orders if we do not have sufficient manufacturing capacity to enable us to provide customers with specified
quantities of products. We rely heavily upon the capacity and willingness of third party contract manufacturers
and materials suppliers to enable us to fulfill our commitments to our customers. but we generally do not have
the benefit of long term or other supply or services contracts with our third party contract manufacturers and
materials suppliers, who are not generally obligated to adhere to our production schedule. If we cannot deliver
sufficient quantities of our products, we may lose business, which cou]d adversely impact our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

If our customers do not qualify our manufacturing processes they may not purchase our products, and our
operating results could suffer.

Certain of our customers will not purchase our products prior to qualification of our manufacturing
processes and approval of our quality assurance system. The qualification process determines whether the
manufacturing line meets the quality, performance, and reliability standards of our customers. These customers
may -also require that we, and any manufacturer that we may use, be registered under international quality
standards, such as ISO 9001. In August 2000, we successfully passed the ISO-9001 registration audit and
received formal registration of our quality assurance system at our Fremont California facility, and we have
passed subsequent reviews as well. Qur United States, Europe and Asia sites are currently TL-9000 certified.

-Delays in obtaining customer qualification of our manufacturing processes or approval of our quality assurance

system may cause a product to be removed from a long-term supply program and result in significant lost
revenue opportunity over the term of that program.

' da
We depend upon a limited number of contract manufacturers and materials suppllers to manufacture and
provide a majority of our products, and our dependence on these manufacturers and suppliers may result
in product delivery delays, may harm our operations or have an adverse effect upon our business.

‘We rely on a limited number of outsourced manufacturers and suppliers to manufacture and provide a
substantial majority of our components, subassemblies, and finished products. In particular, one contract
manufacturer, Fabrinet, currently manufactures products for sale, which constitutes a significant majority of our
net revenue. We intend to develop further our relationships with this and other manufacturers so that they will
eventually manufacture many of our high volume key components and subassemblies in the future. The
qualification of these independent manufacturers and materials suppliers under quality assurance standards is an
expensive and time-consuming process. Qur independent manufacturers have a limited history of manufacturing
optical subcomponents. Any interruption in the operations of these manufacturers, or any deficiency in the
quality or quantity of the subcomponents or products built for us by these manufacturers, could impede our
ability to meet our scheduled product deliveries to our customers. Operational issues could result, such as,
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V. Intellectual Property and Litigation Risks.
Current and future litigation against us could be costly and time consuming to defend.

We are regularly subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Litigation may result in substantial costs and may divert management’s attention and resources, which may
seriously harm our business, resulis of operations, financial condition and liquidity.

‘We may be unable to protect our proprietary technology, which could significantly impair our ability to
compete,

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, confidentiality agreements and
other contractual restrictions on disclosure to protect our intellectual property rights. We also rely on confidentiality
agreements with our employees, consultants and corporate partners, and controlled access to and distribution of our
technology, documentation and other confidential information. We have numerous patents issued or applied-for in
the United States and abroad, of which some may be jointly filed or owned with other parties. Further, we license
certain intellectual property from third parties, including Alcatel Lucent and Corning, that is critical to our business,
and we also license intellectual property to other parties. We cannot assure you that any patent applications or issued
patents will protect our proprietary technology, or that any patent applicitionis or patents issued will not be
challenged by third parties. Further, we cannot assure you that parties from whom we license intellectual property
will not violate their agreements with us; that they will not license their inteliectual property to third parties; that
their patent applications, patents and other intellectnal property will protect our technology, products and business;
or that their patent applications, patents, and other intellectual property will not be challenged by third parties. For
example, Alcatel Lucent has cross licenses with various third parties, which, when combined with their own
intellectual property, may permit these third'paf‘lies to compete with us. Our intellectual property also consists of
trade secrets, requiring more monitoring and control mechanisms to protect. Despite our efforts to protect our
proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our products or technology.
Monitoring unauthorized use of our products is difficult, and we cannot be certain that the steps we take will prevent
misappropriation or unauthorized use of our technology. Further, other parties may independently develop similar
or competing technology or design around any patents that may be issued or licensed to us,

We use various methods to attempt to protect our intellectual property rights. However, we cannot be certain
that the steps we have taken will prevent the misappropriation of our intellectual property. In particular, the laws
in foreign countries may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as the laws in the United States.

We face risks with regard to third-party intellectual property licenses.

From time to time we may be required to license technology or intellectual property from third parties for our
product offerings or to develop new products or product enhancements. We cannot assure you that third-party
licenses will be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. The inability to obtain a necessary third-
party license required for our product offerings or to develop new products and product enhancements could require
us to substitute technology of lower quality or performance standards, or of greater cost, either of which could
prevent us from operating our business. If we are not able to obtain licenses from third parties, if necessary, then we
may also be subject to litigation to defend against infringement claims from these third parties.

We may become subject to litigation or claims from or against third parties regarding intellectual
property rights, which could divert resources, cause us to incur significant costs, and restrict our ability to
utilize certain technology.

+

We may become a party to litigation in the future to protect our intellectual property or we may be subject to
litigation to defend against infringement claims of others. These claims and any resulting lawsuits, if successful,
could subject us to significant liability for damages and invalidation of our proprietary rights. These lawsuits,
regardless of their success, would likely be time-consuming and expensive to resolve and would divert
management time and attention. Any potential intellectual property litigation also could force us to do one or
more of the following:

+ stop selling, incorporating, or using our products that use the challenged intellectual property;
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both the demand for our products and the lead times required to obtain the necessary components and materiats.
It is very difficult to develop accurate forecasts of product demand, especially given the current uncertain
conditions in the telecommunications industry. Order cancellations and lower order volumes by our customers
have in the past created excess inventories. For example, inventory write-downs are primarily the result of our
inability 1o anticipate decreases in demand for certain of our products and variations in product mix ordered by
our customers. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006, we recorded write-downs of
$12.9 million and $12.8 million, respectively, for excess and obsolete inventory. If we fail to accurately predict
both the demand for our products and the lead times required to obtain the necessary components and materials
in the future, we could incur additional excess and obsolete inventory write-downs. If we underestimate our
component and material requirements, we may have inadequate inventory, which could interrupt our
manufactaring and delay delivery of our products to our customers. Any of these occurrences would negatively
affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition.

Network carriers and telecommunication system integrators historically have required that suppliers commit
to provids specified quantities of products over a given period of time. If we are unable to commit to deliver
sufficient quantities of our products to satisfy a customer’s anticipated needs, we may lose the opportunity 1o
make significant sales to that customer over a lengthy period of time. In addition, we may be unable to pursue
large orders if we do not have sufficient manufacturing capacity to enable us to provide customers with specified
quantities. of products. We rely heavily upon the capacity and willingness of third party contract manufacturers
and materials suppliers to enable us to fulfill our commitments to our customers, but we generally do not have
the benefit of long term or other supply or services contracts with our third party contract manufacturers and
materials suppliers, who are not generally obligated to adhere to our production schedule. If we cannot deliver
sufficient quantities of our products, we may lose business, which could adversely impact our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

if our customers do not qualify our manufacturing processes they may not purchase our products, and our
operating results could suffer.

Cerain of our customers will not purchase our products prior to qualification of our manufacturing
processes and approval of our quality assurance system. The qualification process determines whether the
manufacturing line meets the quality, performance, and reliability standards of our customers. These customers
may also require that we, and any manufacturer that we may use, be registered under international quality
standards, such as ISO 9001. In August 2000, we successfully passed the 1SO 9001 registration audit and
received formal registration of our quality assurance system at our Fremont California facility, and we have
passed subsequent reviews as well. Our United States, Europe and Asia sites are currently TL-9000 certified.
Delays in obtaining customer qualification of our manufacturing processes or approval of our quality assurance
system nay cause a product to be removed from a long-term supply program and result in significant lost
revenue opportunity over the term of that program.

We depend upon a limited number of contract manufacturers and materials suppliers to manufacture and
provide a majority of our products, and our dependence on these manufacturers and suppliers may result
in product delivery delays, may harm our operations or have an adverse effect upon our business.

We rely on a limited number of outsourced manufacturers and suppliers to manufacture and provide a
substantial majority of our components, subassemblies, and finished products. In particular, one contract
manufacturer, Fabrinet, currently manufactures products for sale, which constitutes a significant majority of our
net revenue. We intend to develop further our relationships with this and other manufacturers so that they will
eventually manufacture many of our high volume key components and subassemblies in the future. The
qualification of these independent manufacturers and materials suppliers under quality assurance standards is an
expensive and time-consumning process. Our independent manufacturers have a limited history of manufacturing
optical subcomponents. Any interruption in the operations of these manufacturers, or any deficiency in the
quality or quantity of the subcomponents or products built for us by these manufacturers, could impede our
ability to meet our scheduled product deliveries to our customers. Operational issues could result, such as,
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capacity constraints at our contract manufacturers, raw materials shortages, logistics issues, and manufacturing
yield issues for some of our new products. As a result, we may lose existing or potential custotners.

We have limited experience in working with outsourced manufacturers and suppliers. As a result, we may not
be able to effectively manage our relationships with them. If we cannot effectively manage our manufacturing and
supplier relationships, or if these manufacturers and suppliers fail to deliver components in a timely manner, we
could experience significant delays in product deliveries, which may have an adverse effect on our business and
results of operations. Increased reliance on outsourced manufacturing and suppliers, and the ultimate disposition of
our manufacturing capacity in the future, may result in impairment expense relating to our long-lived assets in
future periods, which would have an adverse impact on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our products may have defects that are not detected until full deployment of a customer’s network, which
could result in a loss of customers and revenue and damage to our reputation.

Our products are designed to be deployed in large and complex optical networks and must be compatible
with existing and future components of such networks. Our products can only be fully tested for reliability when
deployed in networks for long periods of time. Our products may not operate as expected, and our customers may
discover errors, defects, or incompatibilities in our products only after they have been fully deployed and are
operating under peak stress conditions. If we are unable to fix errors or other problems, we could experience:

* loss of customers or customer orders;

« loss of or delay in revenues;

*» loss of market share;

= loss or damage to our brand and reputation;

* inability to attract new customers or achieve market acceptance;
¢ diversion of development resources;

* increased service and warranty costs;

* legal actions by our customers; and

* increased insurance costs.

We may be required to indemnify our customers against certain liabilities arising from defects in our
products, which liabilities may also include the following costs and expenses:

¢ costs and expenses incurred by our customers or their customers to fix the problems; or
p p

+ costs and expenses incurred by our customers or their customers to replace our products, or their products
which incorporate our products, with other product solutions.

While we carry insurance policies covering this type of liability, these policies may not provide sufficient
protection should a claim be asserted. To date, product defects have not had a material negative effect on our
business, results of operations, or financial condition; however, we cannot be certain that they will not have a
material negative effect on us in the future.

We depend on key personnel to manage our business effectively, and if we are unable to hire, retain, or
motivate qualified personnel, our ability to sell our preducts could be harmed.

Our future success depends, in part, on certain key employees and on our ability to attract and retain highly
skilled personnel. In addition, we have made changes in our executive management teams, and there can be no
assurance that these changes will be successful. The loss of the services of any of our key personnel, the inability
10 atiract or retain qualified personnel, or delays in hiring required personnel, particularly engineering, sales or
marketing personnel, may seriously harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition. None of our
officers or key employees has an employment agreement for a specific term, and these employees may terminate
their employment at any time. We do not have key person life insurance policies covering any of our employees.
Our ability to continue to atiract and retain highly skilled personnel will be a critical factor in determining
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whether wz will be successful in the future. Competition for highly skilled personnel is frequently intense,
especially in the San Francisco Bay Area. We may not be successful in attracting, assimilating or retaining
qualified personnet to fulfill our current or future needs.

In addition, we implemented restructuring programs designed to attempt to improve our financial
performance. Among other things, we moved substantially all of our manufacturing operations to lower cost
locations. As a result, our headcount in the United States and Europe has been substantially reduced and may be
reduced further in the future. To date, such actions have not resulted in substantial work stoppages. Decreases in
labor productivity, however, whether formalized by a work stoppage, or strike, or decreased productivity due to
morale issues could have an adverse effect on our business and operating results.

We face various risks that could prevent us from successfully manufacturing, marketing and dlstnbutmg
our products internationally. .

As a result of the opening of our operanom center in Thailand and our research and development office in
Shanghai, we expanded our international operations, including expansion of overseas product manufacturing, and
we may continue to expand internationally in the future. Further, we have increased international sales and intend
to further increase our international sales and the number of our international customers. We have also initiated
significant restructuring programs overseas, and may initiate additional restructuring programs overseas in the
future. Qur international operations have required and will continue to require significant management attention
and financial resources. For instance, we have incurred, and may continue to incur, startup costs to open our
operations center in Thailand and our research and development office in Shanghai, and may incur costs in
transferring operations to Thailand. We may not be able to maintain international demand for our products. We
currently have limited experience in manufacturing, marketing and distributing our products internationally,
particularly from our new operations center in Thailand. In addition, international operations are subject to
inherent risks, including, without limitation, the following:

» greater difficulty in accounts receivable collection and longer collection periods;
« difficulties inherent in managing operations and employees in remote foreign operations;

« difficulties and costs of staffing and managing foreign operations with personnel who have expertise in
optics;

*» import or export licensing and product certification requirements;

» tariffs, duties, price controls or other restrictions on foreign currencies or trade barriers imposed by
foreign countries;

= potential adverse tax consequences,;
» seasonal reductions in business activity in some parts of the world;

« burdens of complying with a wide variety of foreign laws and regulations, particularly with respect to
taxes, intellectual property, license requirements, employment matters and environmental requirements;

» the impact of recessicns in economies outside of the United States;
« unexpected changes in regulatory or certification requirements for optical systems or networks; and
= political and economic instability, terrorism and war, .

A portion of our international revenues and exbenses are now denominated in foreign currencies. It has not
been our recent practice to engage in the hedging of foreign currency transactions to mitigate for foreign
currency risk. Therefore, fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies could have a negative impact on the
profitability of our global operations, which would seriously harm our business, results of operations, and
financial condition.
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V. Intellectual Property and Litigation Risks.
Current and future litigation against us could be costly and time consuming to defend.

We are regularly subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Litigation may result in substantial costs and may divert management’s attention and resources, which may
seriously harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and liguidity.

We may be unable to protect our proprietary technology, which could significantly impair our ability to
compete,

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, confidentiality agreements and
other contractual restrictions on disclosure to protect our intellectual property rights. We also rely on confidentiality
agreements with our employees, consultants and corporate partners, and controlled access to and distribution of our
technology, documentation and other confidential information. We have numerous patents issued or applied for in
the United States and abroad, of which some may be jointly filed or owned with other parties. Further, we license
certain intellectual property from third parties, including Alcatel Lucent and Corning, that is critical to our business.
and we also license intellectual property to other parties. We cannot assure you that any patent applications or issued
patents will protect our proprietary technology, or that any patent applications or patents issued will not be
challenged by third parties. Further, we cannot assure you that parties from whom we license intellectual property
will not violate their agreements with us; that they will not license their intellectual property to third parties; that
their patent applications, patents and other intellectual property will protect our technology, products and business;
or that their patent applications, patents, and other intellectual property will not be challenged by third parties. For
example, Alcatel Lucent has cross licenses with varicus third parties, which, when combined with their own
intellectual property, may pertmnit these third parties to compete with us. Qur intellectual property also consists of
trade secrets, requiring more monitoring and control mechanisms to protect. Despite our efforts to protect our
proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our products or technology.
Monitoring unauthorized use of our products is difficult, and we cannot be certain that the steps we take will prevent
misappropriation or unauthorized use of our technology. Further, other parties may independently develop similar
or competing technology or design around any patents that may be issued or licensed 1o us,

We use various methods to atlempt to protect our intellectual property rights. However, we cannot be certain
that the steps we have taken will prevent the misappropriation of our intellectual property. In particular, the laws
in foreign countries may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as the laws in the United States.

We face risks with regard to third-party intellectual property licenses.

From time to time we may be required to license technology or intellectual property from third parties for our
product offerings or to develop new products or product enhancements. We cannot assure you that third-party
licenses will be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. The inability 1o obtain a necessary third-
party license required for our product offerings or to develop new products and product enhancements could require
us to substitute technology of lower quality or performance standards, or of greater cost, either of which could
prevent us from operating our business, If we are not able to obtain licenses from third parties, if necessary, then we
may also be subject to litigation to defend against infringement claims from these third parties.

We may become subject to litigation or claims from or against third parties regarding intellectual
property rights, which could divert resources, cause us to incur significant costs, and restrict eur ability to
utilize certain technology.

We may become a party to litigation in the future to protect our intellectual property or we may be subject to
litigation to defend against infringement claims of others. These claims and any resulting lawsuits, if successful,
could subject us to significant liability for damages and invalidation of our proprietary rights. These lawsuits,
regardless of their success, would likely be time-consuming and expensive to resolve and would divert
management time and attention. Any potential intellectual property litigation also could force us to do one or
more of the following:

« stop selling, incorporating, or using our products that use the challenged intellectual property;
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« obtain from the owner of the infringed intellectual property right a license to sell or use the relevant
technology, which license may not be available on reasonable terms, or at all;

» redesign the products that use the technology; or
+ indemnify certain customers and others against intellectual property claims asserted against them,

If we are forced to take any of these actions, our business may be seriously harmed. We may in the fature
initiate claims or litigation against third parties for infringement of our proprietary rights in order to determine
the scope and validity of our proprietary rights or the proprietary rights of competitors, or we may be required to
grant certain third parties permission to enforce our intellectual property on our behalf. These claims could result
in us being joined as a party to a lawsuit, counterclaims against us or our customers, invalidation or narrow
interpretation of our proprietary rights, costly litigation, and the diversion of our technical and management
personnel. Although we carry general liability insurance, our insurance may not cover potential claims of the
above types or may not be adequate to indemnify us for all liability that- may be imposed. '

VI. Other Risks.

Our business and future operating results may be adversely affected by events that are outside of our
control.

Our business and operating results are vulnerable to interruption by events outside of our control, such as
earthquakes, fire, power loss, telecommunications failures and uncertainties arising out of terrorist attacks
throughout the world, including the continuation or potential worsening of the current global economic
environment, the economic consequences of additional military action and associated political instability, and the:
effect of heightened security concerns on domestic and international travel and commerce. We cannot be certain
that the insurance we maintain against fires, floods and general business interruptions will be adequate to cover
our losses for such events in any particular case.

In addition, we handle hazardous materials as part of our manufacturing activities and are subject to a
variety of governmental laws and regulations related to the use, storage, recycling, labeling, reporting, treatment,
transportation, handling, discharge and disposal of such hazardous materials. Although we believe that our
operations conform to presently applicable environmental laws and regulations, we may incur costs in order to
comply with current or future environmental laws and regulations, including costs associated with permitting,
investigation and remediation of hazardous materials, and installation of capital equipment relating to pollution
abatement, production modification and/or hazardous materials management. In addition, we currently sell
products that incorporate firmware and electronic components. The additional level of complexity created by
combining firmware and electronic components with our optical components requires that we comply with
additional regulations, both domestically and abroad, related to power consumption, electrical emissions and
homologation. Any failure to successfully obtain the necessary permits or comply with the necessary laws and
regulaticns could have a material adverse effect on our operations. -

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law could delay or prevent
a change of control of us.

Certain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and Delaware law ‘may discourage, delay
or prevent a merger or acquisition that a stockholder may consider favorable. These provisions atlow us to issue
preferred stock with rights senior to those of our common stock and impose various procedural and other
requirements that could make it more difficult for our stockholders to effect certain corporate actions.

In addition, Alcatel.Lucent owned shares of Avanex common stock representing 12% of the outstandin;
shares of Avanex common stock as of August 22, 2007, Pursuant to the stockholders’ agreement entered into by
Avanex and Alcatel Lucent, Alcatel Lucent is generally required to vote-on all matters as recommended by th2
board of directors of Avanex, except for proposals relating to certain acquisition transactions between Avanex
and certain competitors of Alcatel Lucent. The concentration of ownership of our shares of common stock,
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combined with the voting requirements contained in the stockholders’ agreement, couid have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control or otherwise discourage a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain
control of us, unless the transaction is approved by our board of directors.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES '

We lease the following properties:

Square )

[ﬂiﬂg Feet Principal Operations Date Lease Expires
Bangkok, Thailand 15,610 Administrative office February 28, 2009
Bangkok, Thailand 3,300 Warchouse May 31, 2008
Horsehead, New York 15,000 Administrative office and Research & Development January 31, 2009
Fremont, California #1 54,000 Corporate headquarters October 17, 2009
Fremont, California #2 91,000 Administrative office April 15, 2010
Newark, California #1 48,000 Administrative office {Vacant) November 30, 2010
Newark, California #2 62,000 Administrative office (Vacant) November 30, 2010
Melbourne, Florida 7,000 Administrative office and Research & Development. May 15, 2008
Villebon, France 8,830 Administrative office and Research & Development April 25, 2010
San Donato, Italy 65,700 Manufacturing and Administrative June 30, 2011
Shanghat, China 8,800 Administrative office May 17, 2008
Shanghai, China . 24,400 Administrative office and Research & Development December 31, 2007

We believe that existing facilities are in excess of our needs. We are currently evaluating the most
appropriate use of our existing facilities and the possibility of subleasing more of our space to third parties. We
currently sublease some of the space at our facilities in Fremont, California to other companies.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are subject to various legal proceedings that arise from the normal course of business
activities. In addition, from time to time, third parties assert patent or trademark infringement claims against us in
the form of letters and other forms of communication. We do not believe that any of these legal proceedings or
claims is likely to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial condition, or
cash flows, However, it is possible that an unfavorable resolution of one or more such proceedings could in the
future materially affect our future results of operations, cash flows, or financial position in a particular period.

IPO Class Action Lawsuit

On August 6, 2001, Avanex, certain of its officers and directors, and various underwriters in its initial public
offering (“IPO”) were named as defendants in a class action filed in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, captioned Beveridge v. Avanex Corporation et al., Civil Action No. 01-CV-7236.
This action and other subsequently filed substantially similar class actions have been consolidated into In re
Avanex Corp. Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, Civil Action No. 01 Civ. 6890. The consolidated
amended complaint in the action generally alleges that various investment bank underwriters engaged in
improper and undisclosed activities related to the allocation of shares in Avanex’s IPO. Plaintiffs have brought
claims for violation of several provisions of the federal securities laws against those underwriters, and also
against Avanex and certain of its directors and officers, seeking unspecified damages on behalf of a purported
class of purchasers of Avanex’s common stock between February 3, 2000, and December 6, 2000. Various
plaintiffs have filed similar actions asserting virtually identical allegations against more than 40 investment
banks and 250 other companies. All of these “IPO allocation” securities class actions currently pending in the
Southern District of New York have been assigned to Judge Shira A. Scheindlin for coordinated pretrial
proceedings as In re Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, 21 MC 92. On October 9, 2002, the claims
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against Avanex’s directors and officers were dismissed without prejudice pursuant to a tolling agreement. The
issuer defendants filed a coordinated motion to dismiss all common pleading issues, which the Court granted in
part and denied in part in an order dated February 19, 2003. The Court’s order did not dismiss the Section 10(b)
or Section 11 claims against Avanex. .

In June 2004, a stipulation of settlement and release of claims against the issuer defendants, including
Avanex, was submitted to the Court for approval. On August 31, 2005, the Court preliminarily approved the
settlement. In December 2006, the appellate court overturned the certification of classes in the six test cases that
were selacted by the underwriter defendants and plaintiffs in the coordinated proceedings. Because class
certification was a condition of the settlement, it was unlikely that the settiement would receive final Court
approval. On June 25, 2007, the Court entered an order terminating the proposed settlement based upon a
stipulation among the parties to the settlement. Plaintiffs have filed amended master allegations and amended
complaints in the six focus cases. It is uncertain whether there will be any revised or future settlement. If a
settlement does not occur, and litigation against Avanex continues, Avanex believes it has meritorious defenses
and interds to defend the action vigorously. Nevertheless, an unfavorable result in litigation may result in
substantial costs and may divert management’s attention and resources, which could seriously harm our business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flow in a particular period.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Thete were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Our =xecutive officers as of June 30, 2007 are as follows:

Name ﬂ Position

JoS. Major, Jr. ... 45 Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer
Marla Sanchez .. .. ........ 51 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Giovanni Barbarossa . . .. .. ,. 45 Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

Patrick Edsell ............ 58 Senior Vice President and General Manager

Yves LeMaitre ........... 43 Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Bradley Kolb . ............ 48 Senibr Vice President, Operations

Jo S. Major, Jr. has served as Chairman of the Board since April 2003 and has served on our Board of
Directors and as our President and Chief Executive Officer since August 2004. From February 2001 to August
2004, he served in various management roles in the Active Components Group of JDS Uniphase, an optical
technology company, including Senior Vice President, Component Products Group, and Vice President, Active
Components Business Unit. Dr. Major was employed by SDL, Inc. in a variety of technical managerial positions
from 1990 to February 2001, when SDL was acquired by JDS Uniphase. Dr. Major holds a B.S., with high
honors, M.S. and Ph.D. from the University of Illinois, and has been granted industry awards for the development
of 980nm lasers, high powered, near-infrared lasers, Raman amplifiers and high performance laser packaging.
Dr. Major was an Intel Fellow from 1988 to 1990.

Marla Sanchez has served as our Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer since October 2006. She
joined Avanex as a consultant in August 2006. Prior to joining Avanex, Ms. Sanchez previously served as
consultant to SDL Ventures, an investment firm, from January 20035 to October 2006, and in that capacity served
as Interim Chief Financial Officer for two of SDL Ventures’ portfolio companies. From April 2001 until January
2005, Ms. Sanchez was a consultant and a private investor. From January 1999 until April 2001, Ms. Sanchez
served as (Corporate Controller for SDL, Inc., a fiber optic company. Previously, Ms. Sanchez served as Director,
Manufacturing Finance and Cost Systems at VLSI Technology, as Division Controller at Diasonics Corporation
and as Corporate Controller at Ridge Computers. Ms. Sanchez holds an M.B.A. from the University of Santa
Clara and a M.S. and B.S. degree in biological sciences from Stanford University.

Giovanni Barbarossa, has served as our Senior Vice Presidemt and Chief Technology Officer since May
2002. Dr. Barbarossa led the Active Component Business Unit from Auvgust 2004 to June 2005 and served as
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Vice President of Product Development from May 2001 to August 2004. Prior to being promoted to Vice
President of Product Development, Dr. Barbarossa was Director of Research and Development from February
2000 until May 2001. From 1999 to February 2000, Dr. Barbarossa served as Project Manager in the Optical
Networking Division of Agilent Technologies. Dr. Barbarossa held varions positions, including Team Leader in
the Optical Application Specific Integrated Circuits Department and Member of Technical Staff of Bell
Laboratories at Lucent Technologies, a developer and manufacturer of communications products, from 1995
through 1999. Dr. Barbarossa received his Ph.D. degree in Electronics Engineering from the University of
Glasgow, U.K. and a B.5. degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of Bari, Italy,

Patrick Edsell has served as our Senior Vice President and General Manager since March 2007. Mr. Edsell
brings over 30 years of senior executive experience in the optical and microelectronic industries. Prior to joining
Avanex, he was the President and Chief Executive Officer at NP Photonics, Inc. from February 2004 to March
2007, specializing in the sensing, medical and R&D markets. From February 2002 10 February 2004, Mr. Edsel
was President and Chief Executive Officer at Gigabit Optics Corp., a start-up company focused on the invention
and commercialization of micron level optical platforms for enterprise and metro datacom and telecom networks.
Previously, he was President and Chief Executive Officer at Spectra-Physics, Inc., a global company that
develops broad-based laser technology for the worldwide computer/micro-electronics manufacturing, medical,
, graphics, telecom and research markets, frem October 1990 to February 2002. From 1975 to 1990, he also held
| upper management positions at Applied Power, Inc., Pharos AB in Stockholm, Sweden, GP Technologies, Sun
| Company and General Electric. Mr. Edsell received his M.B.A. in Finance from the University of New Mexico, a

Master’s in Economtics from Ohio State University, and B.S. in Economics from the U.S. Air Force Academy.

Yves LeMaitre has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since October 2006 and
previously served as Vice President and General Manager of the Optical Components group from May 2005.
Prior to joining Avanex, Mr, LeMaitre was President and Chief Executive Officer of Lightconnect Inc., a
supplier of MEMS components and modules for optical networking applications company based in California.
Mr. LeMaitre worked at Lightconnect Inc. from September 2001 to April 2005. Previously, Mr. LeMaitre held
various positions including Vice President and General Manager of Core Data Products at Alcatel USA, Inc.
from July 1994 to September 2001. Mr., LeMaitre also worked with Alcatel’s joint venture with Sprint
International and various senior marketing and engineering management positions in France, the Netherlands and
[taly for Alcatel and SITA. Mr. LeMaitre received an engineering degree from ENST (Ecole Nationale
Supérieure des Télécommunications} in Paris, France and received his master's degree in mathematics and
computer science at Nantes University in France.

Bradley Kolb joined Avanex in March 2006, as Senior Vice-President of Operations. Mr. Kolb has 20 years
of operational roles and an extensive background in the management of contract manufacturing in different
continents including Europe, North America and Asia. Between October 2003 and March 2006, Mr. Kolb was
Vice President of Operations and Chief Financial Officer at Vivato, Inc., a venture capital backed startup firm.
Between January 2001 and September 2003, Mr. Kolb was Vice President of Operations at Proxim Inc., a
manufacturer of wireless networking equipment for WiFi and broadband wireless networks. Between 1999 and
2001, Mr. Kolb was Vice President of Operations at Resilience Corporation, a venture backed company
producing fault tolerant computers. Previously, Mr. Koib held various positions at American Microdevices
Manufacturing Inc., Motorola-Indala Corporation, Litton Applied Technology and Varian Associates. Mr. Kolb
holds an M.B.A. from the Graduate Scheol of Business at the University of Chicago, and a B.S, degree in
Electrical Engineering from the University of lilinois.
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PARTIL

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “AVNX.” The following
table shows, for the periods indicated, the high and low per share closing prices of common stock, as reported by
the NASDAQ Global Market for each of the last eight quarters ending June 30, 2007:

. High Low

Fiscal year 2006 Quarters Ended: ' :

September 30,2005 . . ... .. $1.07 30.81
December 31, 2005 ... ..\ttt $1.40 $0.62
March 31,2006 .. ..o $3.25 3099
June 30,2006-........: e e e $3.29  $1.38
Fiscal year 2007 Quarters Ended:

September 30,2006 . . . ... .t $1.92 5125
December 31,2006 ...t b $2.11  $1.49
March 31,2007 ....... T e e $2.28 $1.76
June 30,2007 . ... oo $1.83  $1.49

On August 22, 2007, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market was
$1.68 per share. As of August 22, 2007, there were approximately 545 stockholders of record of our commen
stock. Because brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders hold many of our shares of common
stock, we are unable to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any
future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future.
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Cost of Revenue. Qur cost of revenue consists of costs of components and raw materials, direct labor, warranty,
manufacturing overhead, payments to our contract manufacturers and inventory write-offs for obsolete and excess
inventory. We rely on a single or limited number of suppliers to manufacture some key components and raw materials
used in our products, and we rely on the outsourcing of some turnkey solutlons

We write off the cost of inventory that we spec1ﬁcally identify and con51der obsolete or in excess of future sales
estimates. We define obsolete. inventory as products that we no longer market, for which there is no demand, or
inventery that will no longer be used in the manufacturing process. Excess inventory is generally defined as inventory
in excess of projected usage, and is determined using management’s best estimate of future demand at the time, based
upon information then available to us. We wrote off excess and obsolete inventory of $12.9 million in fiscat 2007,
$12.8 million in fiscal 2006 and $8.2 million in fiscal 2005, 1

Gross Margin. Gross margin represents revenue less cost of revenue. During fiscal 2007, gross margin increased
to 18% of revenue, which was an increase in gross margin of 13 percentage points over our fiscal 2006 gross margin of
5%. The increase was due to a more profitable mix of products sold to our customers, decreased vendor costs,
improved yields, and cost reductions resufting from having our design and operations leams working with our contract
manufacturers to lower production costs.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and developmeni expenses consist primarily of salaries and
related personnel costs, fees paid to consultants and outside service providers; costs’of allocated facilities,
non-recurring engineering charges, and prototype costs related to the design, development, testing, pre-manufacturing,
and significant improvement of our products. We expense our research and development costs as they are incurred. We
believe that research and development is critical to our strategic product development objectives. We further believe
that, in order to meet the changing requirements of our customers, we must continue to fund investments in several
development projects in parallel.

. . . i

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, commissions, and
related personnel costs of employees in sales, marketing, customer service, and application engineering functions, costs
of allocated facilities, and promotional and other marketing expenses. .

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses . consist primarily of salaries and
related personnel costs "r executive, finance, accounting, legal, and human resources personnel, costs of allocated
facilities, recruiting expenses, professional fees, and other corporate expenses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. A portion of the purchase price in a business combination is allocated to
goodwill and intangibles. Goodwill is not amortized, but rather is assessed for impairment at least dnnually Intangible
assets with definite lives continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Restructuring. Restructunng expense generally includes employee severance costs and the costs of excess
facilities associated with formai restructuring plans.

r

Gain on Disposal of Property and Equipment. Gain on disposals mcludes gains incurred as a result of dlsposal of
property, plant, or equipment for an amount greater than the net book value.

Loss on Sale of Subsidiary. Loss on sale of subsidiary consists of the net loss from the sale of our subsidiary in
France on March 1, 2007. :

* Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income consist primarily of interest earned from the investment of
our cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, and long-term investments. In addition, other income in fiscal
2005 includes a gain recognized in relation to warrants issued in connection with our May, 2005 convertible notes
offering. ' )

'Interest and Other Expense. Interest and other expense consists primarily of interest expense associated with
borrowings under our line of credit, senior secured convertible notes, capital lease obligations, eql.llpment loans, and
foreign currency exchange rate loss.

1

Income Taxes. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for fncome
Taxes” (“SFAS 109”), we recognize income taxes using an asset and liability approach. This approach requires the
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PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “AVNX.” The following
1able shows, for the periods indicated, the high and low per share closing prices of common stock, as reported by
the NASDAQ Global Market for each of the last eight quarters ending June 30, 2007:

High Low

Fiscal year 2006 Quarters Ended:

September 30,2005 ... ... 51.07 $0.81

December 31, 2005 ... .. e $1.40 $0.62

March 31, 2006 .. ..o e $3.25 $0.99

June 30, 20006 . . ..o e $3.29 $1.38

Fiscal year 2007 Quarters Ended: |
September 30,2006 ... ... .. $1.92 $1.25 |
December 31,2006 . ... ... i $2.11 %149

March 31, 2007 ... . e $228 $1.76 :
JUNE 30, 2007 . . e e $1.83  $1.49

On August 22, 2007, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market was
$1.68 per share. As of August 22, 2007, there were approximately 545 stockholders of record of our common
stock. Because brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders hold many of our shares of common
stock, we are unable to estimate the total number of stockholders represented by these record holders.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any
future eamings to fund the development and growth of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the following selected consolidated financial data in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and our consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The statement of operations data set
Jorth below for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and the balance sheet data as of June 30, 2007
and 2006 are derived from, and are gualified by reference to, our audited consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The statement of operations data set forth below for the years ended
June 30, 2004 and 2003 and the balance sheet data as of June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003 are derived from audited

financial statements nor included in this Annual Report.

2007 (1) 2006 (1) 2005 2004 (2) 2003 (3)
(In thousands, except per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Netrevenue ... ... i i i e et s $212,755 $162,944 § 160,695 $ 106932 § 21416
Costof revenue ... ... oo i e e e 174,550 154,484 165,258 133,259 29,833
Gross (loss)profil . ... ... ... .. 38,205 8.460 (4,563 (26,321 8417
Operating expenses:
Researchand development . ....... .. .o it 25,231 23.471 33.124 42,107 16,063
Salesand marketing ... ... ... ... 15,261 13,236 16,803 19,808 5921
General and administrative .. ... ... e 23,278 16,652 17,758 24718 13,358
Amortization of intangibles . ........ ... . i 2,703 5,448 5.723 4,573 200
Impairment of long-lived assets ... o — — — — 1.548
ReStUCIURING . . .o i e e 1,511 1,912 29,272 3,779 22,438
Gain on disposal of property and equipment ............ ... ... ... (527 (5.064) (L.850) — —
Lossonsale of substdiary ... ... .ot i e 3216
Total Operating eXPensSes . . .. .. vv vt a e 70,673 55,655 100,830 94,985 59.528
Loss fromoperations . ......ovvieen v nnnan . e e (32,468) (47.195) (i05,393) (121,312) (67.945)
Interest and other income (expensel, net ............... ... ..., . 2,327 (7.497) (2,978} 3,299 2,533
Loss from continuing operations before discontinued operations and
cumulative effect of an accounting change .. ......... ... .o e 30,141y  (54,692) (108,371) (118,013) (65,412)
Loss from discontinued operations ... ...... ... ... . oL, —_ — —_ (6,054) —
Loss before cemulative effect of an accounting change . ................. (30,141)  (54,692) (108,371} (124,067) {65412)
Cumulative effect of an accounting change to adopt SFAS 142 .. .. .. ... — — — —_ (37.5000
Loss before incOMe XES .. .. ...ttt iaiir e e (30,141}  (54,692) (108,371} (124,067) (102.912)
Provision fOr NCOME LAXES . ..o\ e e e e e vriire e anreanns (464) — — — —
Nl 0SS L. i e e e e e $(30.605) $(54,692) 3$(108,371) $(124,067) $(102,912)
Loss per share from continuing operations before discontinued operations
and effect of an accounting change basicand diluted . . ................ $ 01 $ 034 5 (075 § 0O §  (0.96)
Loss per share from discontinued operations basic and diluted ............ — % — 3 — § (©05 s —
Loss per share before cumulative effect of an accounting change basic and
diluted .. . e $ (014) § (034) § (075 5 (095 $ (0.96)
Cumulative effect of an accounting change basic and diluted ............. $  — 5§ —~ % — 5 - F (055
Net loss per common share basicand diluted .. ........................ $ 014y 5 034 $ (075 5 (095 § (15D
Weighted average number of shares used in computing basic and diluted net
1088 Per CommOnN SHACE ... .. ...ttt 212,952 163242 144,253 130,361 68,371
Balance Sheet [Mata:
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and shon-term investments ...... ... $47399 $ 74335 § 73905 $ 89090 § 87.591
LONGErM iMVESIIEILS .« .\ o vttt v er s vt r e s e mnnanearnanans 3} — 5 — % — § 55145 $ 47063
Waorking capital . ... .. ... i e $63,149 $ 82364 § 75720 $ 83804 § 64,708
B NN . A F135000 $165,558 3 199,656 $ 275,196 § i54.615
Long-term liabilities . . ... ... .. .. i e $ 9619 § 29,187 $ 52919 § 263536 § 28,173
Total stockholders’ equity .. ..o v e e $ 72082 0§ 73338 03 53748 5157464 § 96,262

(1) Net loss for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 included stock-based compensation expense under Statement of Financizl Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” (“SFAS 123(R)"} of $7.1 and $4.5 million, respectively, related to employee stock
options and employee stock purchases. For the years ending June 30, 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company accounted for stock option
grants and steck purchase rights to employees and directors in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock [ssued to Employees™ (“APB Opinion No. 257) and, accordingly, recognized ne compensation expense for stock
option grants or stock purchase rights with an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair value of the shares at the date of grant. See

Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) We acquired Alcatel's and Comning’s optical components businesses on July 31, 2003 in a transaction accounted for as a purchase.
Additionally. we acquired cerain assets of Vitesse Semiconductor’s Optical Systems Division on August 28, 2003 in a transaction
accounted for as a purchase. The consolidated statement of operations for fiseal year 2004 include the results of operations of the optical
components businesses acquired from Alcatel and Corning subsequent to July 31, 2003 and the optical systems business acquired from

Vitesse subsequent to August 28, 2003,

(3) In fiscal 2003, we recognized a cumulative charge of $37.5 million for the impairment of goodwill upon the adoption of SFAS 142,

“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations
together with “Selected Financial Data” and our consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form [0-K. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking
statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The actual results may differ materially from thove
anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including, but not limited to, thoxe
presented under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. For ease of
reference, we refer to the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2005 as fiscal 2007,
fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2003, respectively.

Overview

We design, manufacture and market fiber optic-based products, known as photonic processors, which are
designed to increase the performance of optical networks. We sell our products to telecommunications systemn
integrators and their network carrier customers. We were incorporated in October 1997 in California and
reincorporated in Delaware in January 2000. We began making volume shipments of our products during the
quarter 2nded September 30, 1999.

In fiscal 2004, we assumed restructuring liabilities with fair values of $64.1 million at the date of acquisition
of the optical components businesses of Alcatel Lucent and Corning, which were included in the purchase price.
Subsequent to these acquisitions, we have continued to restructure our organization, primarily through the
downsizing of our workforce and the abandonment of excess facilities. As of June 30, 2007, our accrued
restructuring liability balance was $11.1 million, consisting of excess facilities costs payable through 2013.

The: restructurings have resulted in, among other things, a significant reduction in the size of our workforce,
consolidation of our facilities, and increased reliance on outsourced, third-party manufacturing. In March 200%,
we announced that we had opened an operations center in Thailand 1o centralize global manufacturing and
operational overhead functions in a lower-cost region. In July 2005, we announced the opening of a development
and marketing office in Shanghai, China. In March 2007, we announced the sale of ninety percent (90%) of the
share capital and voting rights of our wholly owned subsidiary, Avanex France, which operated our
semiconductor fabs and associated product lines located in Nozay, France. This transaction closed on April 1€,
2007.

Although we have relocated most of our manufacturing operations to reduce our production costs, we expect
to continuously take actions to further reduce costs and improve our gross margins. However, there can be no
assurance that our cost structure will not increase in the future or that we will be able to align our cost structure
with our expectations.

Net Revenue. The market for optical equipment continues to evolve and the volume and timing of orders is
difficult to predict. A customer’s decision to purchase our products typically involves a commitment of its
resources and a lengthy evaluation and product qualification process. This initial evaluation and product
qualification process typically takes several months and includes technical evaluation, integration, testing,
planning and implementation into the equipment design. Implementation cycles for our products can be lengthy,
and the practice of customers in the communications industry to sporadically place orders with short lead times
may cause our net revenue, gross margin, operating results and the identity of our largest customers to vary
significantly and unexpectedly from quarter to quarter.

To date, a substantial proportion of our sales have been concentrated with a limited number of customers
During {iscal 2007, sales to Alcatel-Lucent and Tellabs accounted for 29% and 17% of our net revenue.
respectively. During fiscal 2006, sales to Alcatel and Nortel accounted for 27% and 11% of our net revenue.
respectively. During fiscal 2005, sales to Alcatel accounted for 34% of our net revenue. We expect that a
substantial portion of our sales will remain concentrated with a limited number of customers, as evidenced by the
increase in customer concentration.
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Cost of Revenue. Qur cost of revenue consists of costs of components and raw materials, direct iabor, warranty,
manufacturing overhead, payments to our contract manufacturers and inventory write-offs for obsolete and excess
inventory. We rely on a single or limited number of suppliers to manufacture some key components and raw materials
used in our products, and we rely on the outsourcing of some turnkey solutions.

We write off the cost of inventory that we specifically identify and consider obsolete or in excess of fuiure sales
estimates. We define obsolete inventory as products that we no longer market, for which there is no demand, or
inventory that will no longer be used in the manufacturing process. Excess inventory is generally defined as inventory
in excess of projected usage, and is determined using management’s best estimate of future demand at the time, based
upon information then available to us. We wrote off excess and obsolete inventory of $12.9 million in fiscal 2007,
$12.8 million in fiscal 2006 and $8.2 million in fiscal 2005.

Gross Margin. Gross margin represents revenue less cost of revenue. During fiscal 2007, gross margin increased
to 18% of revenue, which was an increase in gross margin of 13 percentage points over our fiscal 2006 gross margin of
5%. The increase was due to a more profitable mix of products sold to our customers, decreased vendor costs,
improved yields, and cost reductions resulting from having our design and operations teams working with our contract
manufacturers to lower production costs.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and
related personnel costs, fees paid to consultants and outside service providers, costs of allocated facilities,
non-recurring engineering charges, and prototype costs related to the design, development, testing, pre-manufacturing,
and significant improvement of our products. We expense our research and development costs as they are incurred. We
believe that research and development is critical to our strategic product development objectives. We further believe
that, in order to meet the changing requirements of our customers, we must continue to fund investments in several
development projects in parallel,

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, commissions, and
related personnel costs of employees in sales, marketing, customer service, and application engineering functions, costs
of allocated facilities, and promotional and other marketing expenses.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and
related personnel costs ™r executive, finance, accounting, legal, and human resources personnel, costs of allocated
facilities, recruiting expenses, professional fees, and other corporate expenses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. A portion of the purchase price in a business combination is allocated to
goodwill and intangibles. Goodwill is not amortized, but rather is assessed for impairment at least annually. Intangible
assets with definite lives continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Restructuring., Restructuring expense generally includes employee severance costs and the costs of excess
facilities associated with formal restructuring plans.

Gain on Disposal of Property and Equipment. Gain on disposals includes gains incurred as a result of disposal of
property, plant, or equipment for an amount greater than the net book value.

Loss on Sale of Subsidiary. Loss on sale of subsidiary consists of the net loss from the sale of our subsidiary in
France on March 1, 2007.

Interest and Other Income. Interest and other income consist primarily of interest earned from the investment of
our cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, and long-term investments, In addition, other income in fiscal
2005 includes a gain recognized in relation to warrants issued in connection with our May, 2005 convertible notes
offering.

Interest and Other Expense. Interest and other expense consists primarily of interest expense associated with
borrowings under our line of credit, senior secured convertible notes, capital lease obligations, equipment loans, and
foreign currency exchange rate loss.

Income Taxes. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (“SFAS 109™), we recognize income taxes using an asset and liability approach. This approach requires the
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recoghition of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future
tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements or tax returns. The
measurement of current and deferred taxes is based on provisions of the enacted tax law and the effects of future
changes in tax laws or rates are not anticipated.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net revenues and expenses, and related disclosures. We believe our
estimates and assumptions are reasonable; however, actual results and the timing of the recognition of such
amounts could diffef from these estimates. We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. Our tevenue recognition policy complies with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 104, “Revenue Recognition”. We recognize product revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, the product has been shipped, risk of loss has been transferred, collectibility is reasonably assured, fees are
fixed or determinable and there are no uncertainties with respect to customer acceptance. We record a provision
for estimated sales returns and price adjustments in the same period as when the related revenues are recorded.
These estimates are based on historical sales returns and adjustments, other known factors, and our return policy.
If future sales returns or price adjustment levels differ from the historical data we use to calculate these estimates,
changes to the provision may be required. We generally do not accept product returns from customers; however,
we do sell our products under warranty, The specific terms and conditions of our warranties vary by customer
and region in which we do business; the warranty period is generally one year,

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. In the last three years, our uncollectible accounts experience has been
almost zero. At June 30, 2007, we determined that an allowance was not required. When we become aware,
subsequent to delivery, of a customer’s potential inability to meet its obligations, we record a specific allowance
for doubtful accounts. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairmznt
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. Such an allowance may be magnified
due to the concentration of our sales to a limited number of customers.

Excess and Obsolete Inventory. We write off the cost of inventory that we specifically identify and consider
obsolete or excessive to fulfill future sales estimates. We define obsolete inventory as products that we no longer
market or for which there is no demand, or inventory that will no longer be used in the manufacturing process.
Excess inventory is generally defined as inventory in excess of projected usage, and is determined using
management’s best estimate of foture demand at the time, based upon information then available 10 us.

In estimating excess inventory, we use a range of six-month to twelve-month demand forecast. We assess
inventory on a quarterly basis and write-down those inventories which are obsolete or in excess of our forecasied
usage to their estimated realizable value. Qur estimates of realizable value are based upon our analysis including,
but not limited to forecasted sales levels by product, expected product life cycle, product development plans, and
future demand requirements. Our marketing department plays a key role in our excess review process by
providing updated sales forecasts, managing product rollovers, and working with sub-contract manufacturing to
maximize recovery of excess inventory. If actual market conditions are less favorable than our forecasts or actual
demand from our customers is lower than our estimates, we may be required to record additional inventory write
downs. If actual market conditions are more favorable than anticipated, inventory previously written down may
be sold, resulting in lower cost of sales and higher income from operations than expected in that period.

Siock-based Compensation Expense. We account for employee slock-based compensation costs in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”™) No, 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”
(“SFAS 123(R)"”) and Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, “Share-Based Payment” (“SAB 107”). We utilize the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of employee stock-based compensation at the dute
of grant, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected volatility and expected
life. Historical volatility was used in estimating the fair value of our stock-based awards, and the expected life
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was estimated to be 6.25 years using the simplified method permitted under SAB 107. Further, as required under
SFAS 123(R), we now estimate forfeitures for options granted that are not expected to vest. Changes in these
inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measure of estimated fair value of our share-based
compensation. The estimated fair value is charged to earnings on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of
the underlying awards, which is generally four years. The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for
use in estimating the fair value of traded options having no vesting restrictions and being fully transferable.
Accordingly, our estimate of fair value may not represent the value assigned by a third-party in an arms-length
transaction. While our estimate of fair value and the associated charge to earnings materially impacts our results
of operations, it has no impact on our cash position.

Goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that
goodwill, an impairment loss is recorded in net income (loss). We operate in one segment, which we consider our
sole operating unit. Measurement of the fair value of the reporting unit in our annual test for impairment is
determined using the market capitalization approach. The capitalization approach focuses on the fair value of the
enterprise, which was determined based on our current market capitalization, and goodwill was determined not to
be impaired at June 30, 2007.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets. We evaluate the recoverability of long-lived assets in accordance with
SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets.” When events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets may not be recoverable, we recognize such
impairment in the event the net book value of such assets exceeds the future undiscounted cash flows attributable
to such assets.

Warranties. In general, we provide a product warranty for one year from the date of shipment. We accrue
for the estimated cost to provide warranty services at the time revenue is recognized. The specific terms and
conditions of our warranties vary by customer and region in which we do business. Our estimate of costs to
service our warranty obligations is based on historical experience and expectation of future conditions. To the
extent we experience increased warranty claim activity or increased costs associated with servicing those claims,
our warranty costs witl increase resulting in decreases to gross profit. Conversely, to the extent we experience
decreased warranty claim activity, or decreased costs associated with servicing those claims, our warranty costs
will decrease resulting in increases to gross profit. We periodically assess the adequacy of our recorded warranty
liabilities and adjust the amounts as necessary.

Restructuring. During the past few years we have recorded significant accruals in connection with
restructuring programs. Given the significance and complexity of restructuring activities, and the timing of the
execution of such activities, the restructuring accrual process involves periodic reassessments of estimates made
at the time the original decisions were made, including evalvating real estate market conditions for expected
vacancy periods and sub-lease rents. Although we believe that these estimates accurately reflect the costs of the
restructuring programs, actual results may differ, thereby requiring us to record additional provisions or reverse a
portion of such provisions.

Purchase Accounting. We account for business combinations under the purchase method of accounting and
accordingly, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their fair values. The recorded values of
assets and liabilities are based on management estimates making use of third-party valuations, or if market price
information is not available, based on the best information available. The values are based on our judgments and
estimates, and accordingly, our financial position or results of operations may be affected by changes in these
estimates and judgments. Specifically, our valuation of intangible assets is based on a discounted cash flow
valuation methodology that incorporates estimates of future revenue, revenue growth, expenses, estimated useful
lives, balance sheet assumptions and weighted average cost of capital. Should these assumptions prove incorrect,
we may be required to recognize an impairment of our intangible assets. ‘

Contingencies. We are or have been subject to proceedings, lawsuits and other claims related to our initial
public offering and other matters. We evaluate contingent liabilities including threatened or pending litigation in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5 (“SFAS 57), “Accounting for
Contingencies”. If the potential loss from any claim or legal proceedings is considered probable and the amount
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can be estimated, we accrue a liability for the estimated loss. Because of uncertainties related to these matters,
accruals are based upon management’s judgment and the best information available to management at the timne.
As additional information becomes available, we reassess the potential liability related to its pending claims and
litigation and may revise its estimates.

v

In addition to product warranties, we, from time to time, in the normal course of business, indemnify certain
customers with whom we enter into contractual relationships. We have agreed to hold the other party harmless
against third party claims that our products, when used for their intended purpose, infringe the intellectual
property rights of such third party or other claims made against certain parties. It is not possible to determine the
maximum potential amount of liability under these indemnification obligations due to the limited history of prior
indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances that are likely to be involved in each particalar
claim, The estimated fair value of these indemnification provisiens is minimal. To date, we have not incurred any
costs related to claims under these provisions, and no amounts have been accrued in the accompanying financial
staternents.

In March 2007, we sold our subsidiary in France. Pursuant to the provisions of French bankruptcy law, in
the event that Avanex France, now “3S Photonics,” declares bankruptcy after such sale, we may be held liable, as
“manager de facto” of 3S Photonics for the payment of all or part of the liabilities of 35S Photonics, should it
appear that we committed mismanagement, which would have solely or partially led to the bankruptcy of 35
Photonics, and these liabilities could be significant. Such liability, if incurred, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition. In addition, we agreed to indemnify the
buyers of Avanex France generally for a period of up to two years in an amount generally not exceeding
€5 million for breaches of certain representations, warranties and covenants relating to the condition of the
business prior to, and at the time of sale, and approximately €2 million for other liabilities. As of June 30, 2007,
the Company had accrued $2.7 million under Other Accrued Expenses for an escrow account related to the sale.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes under the liability method, which recognizes deferred tax assets
and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and labilities and their financial statement reported amounts, and for net operating loss and tax credit
carrvforwards. We record a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that
such assets will not be realized.

Change in accounting policy

Share-based Payments: On July 1, 2005, we adopted the fair value-based method for measurement and
expense recognition of employee share-based compensation arrangements under the provisions of Finzncial
Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-
Basad Payment” (“SFAS 123(R)”), using the modified prospective transitional method. Previously, we had
elected to account for employee share-based compensation using the intrinsic value method based upon
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and reclated
interpretations. The intrinsic value method generally did not result in any compensation cost being recorded for
employee stock options since the exercise price was equal to the market price of the underlying shares cn the
date of grant.

Under the modified prospective transitional method, share-based compensation is recognized for awards
granted, modified, repurchased, or cancelled subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123(R). In addition, share-
based compensation is recognized, subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), for the remaining portion of the
vesting period (if any) for outstanding awards granted prior to the date of adoption. Prior periods have no: been
adjusted and we continue to provide pro forma disclosure as if we had accounted for employee share-based
payments i all periods presented under the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-based
Compensation”, which is presented in Note 13 to Consolidated Financial Statements, under the topic “Stock-
based Compensation”.

We measure share-based compensation costs on the grant date, based on the calculated fair value of the
award. We have elected to treat awards with graded vesting as a single award when estimating fair value,
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Compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the employee requisite service period.
Compensation cost is initially based on the estimated number of options for which the requisite service is
expected to be rendered. This estimate is adjusted in the period once actual forfeitures are known.

Refer to Note 13 “Stock-based Compensation” in the Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for details
of stock options and share-based compensation costs recorded during the year ended June 30, 2007.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” This
pronouncement requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit
postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability on its statement of financial position
using prospective application. SFAS No. 158 also requires an employer to recognize changes in that funded
status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income. In addition, this statement requires
an employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position,
with limited exceptions. We adopted this statement in fiscal 2007.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the pertods indicated, the percentage of net revenue of certain items in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations:
Years Ended June 30,
2007 % of rev 2006 % of rev 2005 % of rev

Netrevenue .........c...iiniirnnnennnnn.. 212,755 100% 162,944 100% 160,695 100%
Costofrevenue ........... .o iirinenenen. M E% M _9_5% _lﬁ_fﬂg @%
Grossprofit .......... ... i, 38,205 18% 8,460 5% (4,563) -3%
Operating expenses: _
Research.and development ............... 25,231 12% 23,471 14% 33,124 21%
Sales and marketing .................... 15,261 T% 13,236 8% . 16,803 10%
General and administrative ............... 23,278 11% 16,652 10% 17,758 11%
Amortization of intangibles . . .. ........... 2,703 1% 5,448 3% 5,723 4%
Restructuring .. ...... .. ... ... ...t 1,511 1% 1,912 1% 29,272 18%
Gain on disposal of property and equipment . . (527) 0%  (5,064) -3% (1,850) -1%
Loss on sale of subsidiary ................ 3216 2% — _ 0% — _ 0%
Total operating expenses ... .......... 70673 33% 55,655  34% 100,830  63%
Loss from operations .. ................... ... (32,468) -15% (47,195) -29% (105,393) -66%
Interest and otherincome ................ 2,292 1% 2,787 2% 3,607 2%
Interest and otherexpense . ............... 35 ‘_0% (10,284) _-'6_% (6,585) _—4.%
Loss before incometaxes .................... (30,141 -14% (54,692) -34% (108,371) -67%
Provision for income taxes ............... (464) __Q% — ___0% — _O%
Netloss oottt i (30,605) -i14% {54,692) ﬁ% (108,371) ﬁ %

Net Revenue

Net revenue for fiscal 2007 was $212.8 million, which represents an increase of $49.9 million or 31% from
net revenue of $162.9 miltion for fiscal 2006. The increase in revenue was attributable to an overall increase in
demand for our products from existing customers and the introduction of new products.

Net revenue for fiscal 2006 was $162.9 million, which represents an increase of $2.2 million or 1% from net
revenue of $160.7 million for fiscal 2003. The increase in revenue was primarily attributable to an increase in
demand from certain existing customers and the introduction of new products, which contributed to revenue
during the year.
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During fiscal 2007, sales to Alcatel-Lucent and Tellabs accounted for 29% and 17% of our net reverue,
respectively. During fiscal 2006, sales to Alcatel and Nortel accounted for 27% and 11% of our nel revenue,
respectively. During fiscal 2005, sales to Alcatel accounted for 34% of our net revenue. Sales to our mijor
customers vary significantly from year to year, and we do not have the ability to predict sales to these customers.

Net revenue from customers outside the United States accounted for $137.6 million, $113.8 million and
$98.7 million of total net revenue, or 65%, 70% and 61%, for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin

Cost of revenue increased to $174.5 million for fiscal 2007 from $154.5 million for fiscal 2006. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in total net revenue.

Cost of revenue decreased to $154.5 million for fiscal 2006 from $165.3 million for fiscal 2005, The
decrzase was primarily due to the transfer of most of our internal manufacturing operations to contract
manufacturers, which reduced our direct labor and manufacturing overhead costs.

We wrote off excess and obsolete inventory of $12.9 million in fiscal 2007, $12.8 millicn in fiscal 2006 and
$8.2 million in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2007, the write-off was primarily due to lower demand for certain products
and lower expected usage of previously purchased inventory, In fiscal 2006 the write-off was primarily due to
lower than expected usage of previously purchased inventory. In fiscal 2005 the write-off was due primarily to
lower demand for certain products, and secondarily to discontinued products. We sold inventory previously
written-off with original cost totaling $1.2 million, $0.2 million and $1.1 million for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, due to unforeseen demand for such inventory. As a result, cost of revenue associated with the sale
of this inventory was zero. Cost of revenue for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 was also offset by $1.4 million,
$4.4 million and $2.8 million, respectively, for reversals of previous warranty accruals,

Our gross margin percentage improved to [8% for fiscal 2007 from 5% for fiscal 2006, primarily due to
cost reductions associated with shifting global manufacturing operations to contract manufacturers in lower-cost
regions and increased focus on design for manufacturability to achieve lower costs. In addition, the improvement
in gross margin percentage was driven by a shift to products with higher volume and higher gross margins. Ouwr
gross margin percentage improved to positive 5% for fiscal 2006, compared to negative 3% for fiscal 2005,
primarily due to cost reductions resulting from the transfer of most of our global manufacturing operations to
contract manufacturers in lower-cost regions.

We have recently experienced consistent positive gross margins due to new product introductions and the
transfer of our global manufacturing operations to contract manufacturers in lower-cost regions. Qur gross
margins are and will be primarily affected by changes in mix of products sold, manufacturing volume, changes in
sales prices, product demand, inventory write-downs, sales of previously written-off inventory, warranty costs,
and product yields. We expect cost of revenue, as a percentage of net revenue, to fluctuate from period to period.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses increased $1.7 million to $25.2 million for fiscal 2007 from
$23.5 million for fiscal 2006. As a percentage of net revenue, research and development expenses decreased to
12% for fiscal 2007 from 14% for fiscal 2006. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily
due to increased personnel-related costs (such as stock-based compensation expenses and increased headcount in
China, offset by closure of our R&D office in Thailand and sale of our office in France) and patent-related legal
expenses. We expect our research and development expenses to remain level as a percentage of revenue in fiscal
2008. Despite our continued efforts to reduce expenses, there can be no assurance that our research and
development expenses will not increase in the future.

Research and development expenses decreased $9.6 million to $23.5 million for fiscal 2005 from
$33.1 million for fiscal 2005. As a percentage of net revenue, research and development expenses decreased to
14% for fiscal 2006 from 21% for fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2006, we reduced the number of research and
dzvelopment employees from 204 at June 20, 2005 to 179 at June 30, 2006.
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Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses increased $2.1 million to $15.3 million for fiscal 2007 from $13.2 million for
fiscal 2006. As a percentage of net revenue, sales and marketing expenses decreased to 7% in fiscal 2007 from
8% in fiscal 2006. The increase in sales and marketing expenses was primarily due to personnel-related costs
(such as stock-based compensation expense and commissions), increased travel expenses and increased corporate
marketing expenses. We expect our sales and marketing expenses to remain level or decline as a percentage of
revenue in fiscal 2008. There can be no assurance that our sales and marketing expense will not increase in the
future.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased $3.6 million to $13.2 million for fiscal 2006 from $16.8 million for
fiscal 2005. As a percentage of net revenue, sales and marketing expenses decreased to 8% in fiscal 2006 from
10% in fiscal 2005. The decrease in sales and marketing expenses was primarily due to decreased headcount,
decreased travel expenses, decreased commissions paid to distributors, and a reduction in corporate marketing
expenses.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses increased $6.6 million to $23.3 million for fiscal 2007 from
$16.7 million for fiscal 2006. As a percentage of net revenue, general and administrative expenses increased to
11% in fiscal 2007 from 10% in fiscal 2006. The primary reasons for the increase were increased audit and legal
expenses, consulting due diligence expenses related to a polential acquisition that we decided not to pursue, and
increased personnel-related expenses (such as stock-based compensation expense). We expect general and
administrative expenses to decline as a percentage of revenue in fiscal 2008. There can be no assurance that our
general and administrative expenses will decline in the future.

General and administrative expenses decreased $1.1 million to $16.7 million for fiscal 2006 from
$17.8 million for fiscal 2005. The primary reasons for the decrease were reductions in our allowance for doubiful
accounts, salaries, and fringe benefits, offset by increased stock-based compensation expense, facilitics expenses
and audit and legal expenses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets decreased by $2.7 million to $2.7 million for fiscal 2007, from
$5.4 million for fiscal 2006. The decrease was primarily attributable to some of the intangible assets becoming
fully amortized during fiscal 2007, which resulted in less expense during the remainder of fiscal 2007,

Amortization of intangible assets decreased by $0.3 million to $5.4 million for fiscal 2006, from
$5.7 million for fiscal 20035. The decrease was primarily attributable to some of the intangible assets becoming
fully amortized during fiscal 2006, which resulted in less expense during the remainder of fiscal 2006.

Restructuring

Over the past several years, we have implemented various restructuring programs to realign resources in
response 1o the changes in our industry and customer demand, and we continue to assess our current and future
operating requirements accordingly.

For fiscal 2007, restructuring expenses of $1.5 million resulted from an additional provision for severance
benefits totaling $0.3 million, combined with expenses for abandoned facilities in the amount of $1.2 million.

For fiscal 2006, restructuring expenses of $1.9 million resulted from an additional provision for severance
benefits totaling $1.6 million, combined with expenses for abandoned facilities in the amount of $0.9 million,
offset by recovery of previously recorded provisions in the amount of $0.6 million.

During fiscal 2006, we approved work force reduction plans affecting 41 employees in order to reduce
operating expenses and improve our cost structure. The reduction in force was completed in Octaber 2006. The
costs associated with this restructuring consisted primarily of severance costs. In addition, other previously
announced workforce reduction plans remain in progress, including plans in connection with our fiscal 2004
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acquisitions of the optical components businesses of Alcatel and Comning. Our accrued restructuring liability
balance at June 30, 2007 was $11.1 million and will be payable through 2013.

During fiscal 2005, we announced and implemented several restructuring programs throughout the
organization, primarily downsizing our workforce in our U.S. and France facilities, resulting in net restructuring
expenses of $29.3 million. We approved work force reduction plans for our U.S. facilities that resulted in the
termination of 145 employees in order to reduce operating expenses and improve our cost structure. This
reduction in force was completed in December 2005. The costs associated with this restructuring consisted
primarily of severance costs. In addition, we approved a work force reduction plan that resulted in the
termination of 156 full time employees at our facility in France, leaving approximately 150 employees. The
reduction in force in France has been completed. The costs associated with the restructuring in France consisted
of employee severance costs.

Loss on Sale of Subsidiary

On March 1, 2007, we entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with Global Research Company, a société 4
responsibilité limitée incorporated under the laws of France (“GRC”), and Mr. Didier Sauvage, an individual and
forimer employee of Avanex (together with GRC, the “Purchasers”), pursuant to which we would sell ninety
percent (90%) of the share capital and voting rights of our wholly owned subsidiary, Avanex France (“Avanex
France™), a société anonyme incorporated under the laws of France, which owned our semiconductor fabs and
associated product lines located in Nozay, France, to the Purchasers for the nominal amount of €1.00. The sale
closed on April 16, 2007. The Purchasers changed the name of Avanex France to “35 Photonics” following the
closing.

The sale involved the divestiture of our laser, terrestrial and submarine pumps and Fiber Bragg Grating
(FBG) product lines. We will continue to operate our optical interfaces (OIF) business and optical fiber
amplifiers and raman amplifiers (OAX) business, which have been transferred to a new wholly owned subsidiary
of Avanex in France, prior to the Closing.

We recorded a loss of $3.2 million on the sale primarily as a result of the approximately $24.9 millicn cash
paid, transaction expenses incurred of approximately $1.0 million, and transfer of approximately $4.3 million of
assets, partially offset by approximately $15.9 million of liabilities written-off, the assumption of approximately
$6.7 million of liabilities by 3S Photonics, write-off of cumulative translation gain related to Nozay of
approximately $3.3 million, and a reduction of the pension obligation of approximately $1.1 million related to
the sale.

Interest and Other Income

Interest and other income decreased $0.5 million to $2.3 million in fiscal 2007 from $2.8 million in fiscal
2006. The primary reason for this decrease was the release of a previously accrued property tax accrual in the
prior year, partially offset by a slight increase in interest income.

Interest and other income decreased $0.8 million to $2.8 million in fiscal 2006 from $3.6 million in fiscal
2005. The primary reason for the decrease was no-reoccurrence of the $0.7 million gain experienced in fiscal
2005 from a derivative instrument in connection with our convertible notes offering.

Interest and Other Expense

Interest and other expense decreased by $10.2 million in fiscal 2007 to $0.1 million from $10.3 mllion in
fiscal 2006. The primary reason for the decrease was the loss on extinguishment of debt in fiscal 2006, a decrease
in interest expense due to the conversion of the senior convertible notes, and a decrease in foreign currency
rransaction gains.

Interest and other expense increased by a net $3.7 million in fiscal 2006 to $10.3 million from $6.6 million
in fiscal 2005. An increase aggregating $4.5 million loss on extinguishment of debt which comprises $3.5 million
paid to settle our convertible note holder's alleged default claims, $0.6 of issuance costs and $0.4 million
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increase in fair value from the modification of warrants (see Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements). This increase was offset by a reduction in interest expense during the later pant of fiscal 2006 as
certain convertible note holders converted $29.5 million of convertible note into shares of our common stock.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provisions for income taxes of $0.5 million and $0 million were recorded for estimated taxes due on
income generated in certain state and foreign tax jurisdictions for fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively. The income
tax provision for fiscal 2007 reflects an effective tax rate of negative 2%, which differs from the statutory tax rate
due to the tax impact of income from foreign operations and unbenefited losses in the U.S. taxes due to the full
valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets in accordance with SFAS 109,

The Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 109
“Accounting for Income Taxes ” provides for the recognition of deferred tax assets, if realization of such assets is
more likely than not to occur. Based upon the weight of available evidence, which includes its historical
operating performance and reported cumulative net losses since inception, we provide a full valuation allowance
against our net deferred tax assets. We reassess the need for our valuation allowance on a quarterly basis.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Prior to our initial public offering, we financed our operations primarily through private sales of convertible
preferred stock. In February 2000, we received net proceeds of approximately $238.0 million from the initial
public offering of our common stock and a concurrent sale of stock to corporate investors, Subsequent to our
initial public offering, we have financed our operations through the sale of equity securities, issuance of
convertible notes and warrants, bank borrowings, equipment lease financing and acquisitions,

On May 19, 2005, we issued an aggregate of $35 million principal amount of 8.0% senior secured
convertible notes due 2008 in a private placement to institutional investors. Net proceeds, after an aggregate of
$2.1 million in issuance costs and two years of prepaid interest in the amount of $5.6 million, were $27.3 million.
On November 8, 2003, certain terms of the May 2005 convertible note financing were amended pursuant to
amendment agreements entered into between Avanex and each holder of such notes, and we issued amended and
restated notes and amended and restated warrants to such holders. The amended and restated notes were
convertible into shares of common stock at a price of $0.90 per share, subject to adjustment vpon specified
events, including a broad-based anti-dilution provision that until January 27, 2006 contained a floor price of
$0.7279 (subject to adjustment for stock splits, combinations or similar events). The floor price was eliminated
upon receipt of stockholder approval of the issuance of the common stock underlying the amended and restated
notes at a Special Meeting of Stockholders held on January 27, 2006. Pursuant to each Amendment Agreement,
we and each holder also agreed to amend and restate such holder’s warrants, primarily to amend the exercise
price to $1.13. During the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, $29.5 million and $5.5 million of the outstanding
notes were converted to common stock at the request of the convertible note holders. As a result of the
conversions, no convertible notes were outstanding at June 30, 2007.

On March 6, 2006, we sold 24.1 million shares of common stock at a price per share of $2.00 for an aggregate
purchase price of $48.2 million. The net proceeds from such sale of the shares of common stock were $44.7 million,
after deducting the placement fee and offering expenses. The purchasers also received warrants to purchase up to an
aggregate of 7.2 million shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.73 per share, subject to adjustment for
anti-dilution, exercisable on and after September 9, 2006 and on or before March 9, 2010.

In connection with our March 1, 2007 financing, the holders of such warrants received an antidilution
adjustment pursuant to the terms of such warrants resulting in up to 117,221 additional shares being issued upon
the exercise of such warrants and the reduction of the exercise price of the warrants from $2.73 per share to $2.68
per share. The sale of common stock and issuance of the warrants was made pursuant to an effective registration
staternent on Form 5-3.

On March 1, 2007, we sold 10,795,056 shares of common stock of Avanex at a price per share of $1.8527
for an aggregate purchase price of $20 million. The purchaser also received a warrant to purchase up to an
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additicnal 2,698,764 shares of commeon stock. The warrant is exercisable at an exercise price of $2.1452 per
share and for a term starting March 31, 2007 and ending March 1, 2011. For more information, please see Note
12 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Avanex leases certain of its equipment and other fixed assets under capital lease agreements. The assets and
liabilitres under capital leases are recorded at the lesser of the present value of aggregate future minimum lease
payments, including estimated bargain purchase options, or the fair value of the assets under lease. Assets under
capital leases are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or useful life of the assets. There were minimal
payments due under capital lease agreements as of June 30, 2007.

As of June 30, 2007, Avanex had cash and cash equivalents of $14.9 million and short-term investments of
$28.9 million for an aggregate of $43.8 million, excluding restricted cash of $3.6 million.

The fiscal 2007 decrease in cash and cash equivalents was due primarily to the sale of 10.8 million shares of
commen stock in March 2007 generating $18.7 million in proceeds net of offering costs and $9.8 mitlion
decrease in short-term investments, offset by net cash used in operations of $44.6 million. The fiscal 2007
decrease of $3.1 million in restricted cash was primarily due to a reduction in our obligation on operating leases,
which reduced the cash held against those leases.

The net cash used in operating activities of $46.1 million was due primarily to our $30.6 million net loss for
fiscal 2007 and $19.6 million impact of the sale of our subsidiary in France, partially offset by $25.8 million of
non-cash charges. Changes in working capital during fiscal 2007 used $21.8 miliion of cash.

Net cash provided by investing activities during fiscal 2007 was $9.3 million, comprising a $3.1 million
decrease in restricted cash and $9.8 million representing the net change in short-term investments, offset by
capital purchases of $2.4 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $21.5 million during fiscal 2007, primarily the result of our
March 2007 equity offering, and proceeds from the issuance of common stock under our employee stock opticn
plans and employee stock purchase plan. These net proceeds were partially offset by payments on short-tern
debt, long-term debt and capital lease obligations.

Our contractual obligations at June 30, 2007 were as follows (in thousands):
Contractual Obligations Due by Period

Less than Affter §
1 year 1-3 years 4-5years  years Total
Capital lease obligations ............................... $ 12§ 2 % 2 & $ 36
Operatingleases ...........ccoiiiiiiineiiiin. .. 4809 B.696 2984 77 16,566
Pension .. ... .. — — —_ 185 185
Severance ..... P P 241 —_ — — 241
Uncond:tional purchase obligations ...................... 31,252 — — — 31,252

$36,314 $8,718 $2,986 $262 $48,280

We have unconditional purchase obligations to certain of our suppliers and contract manufacturers that
support our ability to manufacture our products. As of June 30, 2007, we had approximately $31.3 million of
unconditional purchase obligations, none of which is included on our balance sheet in accounts payable.

Under operating leases and capital leases described in the table above, we have included total future
minimum rent expense under non-cancelable leases for both current and abandoned facilities and equipment
leases. We have included in the balance sheet $2.8 million and $8.3 million in current and long-term
restructuring accruals, respectively, for the abandoned facilities as of June 30, 2007.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN™) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” This interpretation clarifies the accounting for
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uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial
statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. This Interpretation is effective
for our fiscal year beginning July 1,2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of FIN 48 on
our consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations.

In September 2006, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements
in Current Year Financial Statements” (*SAB 108™). SAB 108 provides guidance on the cohsideration of the
effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality
assessment. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our consolidated balance sheet and
statement of operations for fiscal 2007, '

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“Statement 157").
Statement 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands fair value
measurement disclosures. Statement 157 is effective for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008. We are currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of Statement 157 on cur consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“Statement 159"), which allows an
entity the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial and subsequent measurement for certain financial
assets and liabilities under an instrument-by-instrument election. Subsequent measurements for the financial
assets and liabilities an entity elects to fair value will be recognized in earnings. Statement 159 also establishes
additional disclosure requirements. Statement 159 is effective for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008, with
early adoption permitted provided that the entity also adopts Statement 157. We are currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of Statement 159 on our consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations.

ITEM 7A, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates refates primarily to our investment portfolio. The
objectives of our investment activities are preservation and safety of principal; maintenance of adequate liquidity
to meet cash flow requirements; attainment of a competitive market rate of return on investments; minimization
of risk on all investments; and avoidance of inappropriate concentrations of investments.

We place our investments with high quality credit issuers in short-term and long-term securities and
maturities can range from overnight to 36 months. The average maturity of the portfolio will not exceed 18
months. The portfolio includes only marketable securities with active secondary or resale markets to ensure
portfolio liquidity. We do not have any derivative financial instruments. Accordingly, we do not believe that our
investments have significant exposure to interest rate risk.

The following table summarizes average interest rate and fair market value of the short-term securities and
restricted cash and investments held by Avanex {in thousands), which were classified as available-for-sale at
June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006:

June 30,. June 30,

2007 2006
AMOMIZEd COSE .. vttt e e e $32,575 345210
Fairmarket value . .. ... . e e 32,562 45,372
Average annual interestrate . ....... ... i 5.09% 3.09%

Exchange Rate Risk

Our international business is subject to normal international business risks including, but not limited to,
differing economic conditions, changes in political climate, differing tax structures, other regulations and
restrictions, and foreign exchange rate volatility. Accordingly, our future results could be materially adversely
affected by changes in these or other factors.
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We have operations in the United States, China, Thailand, France, and Italy. Accordingly, we have sales and
expenses that are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. As a result, currency fluctuations between
the U.S. dollar and the currencies in which we do business could cause foreign currency translation gains or
losses that we would recognize in the period incurred. A 10% fluctuation in the dollar at June 30, 2007 would
have led to an additional profit of approximately $0.7 million {dollar strengthening), or an additional loss of
approximately $0.7 million (dollar weakening) on our net dollar position in outstanding assets and liabilities. We
cannot predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on our future operating results because of the variability of
currency exposure and the potential volatility of currency exchange rates. It has not been our recent practice to
engage in the hedging of foreign currency transactions to mitigate for foreign currency risk, and currently, we do
not hecdge our exposure to translation gains and losses related to foreign currency net asset exposures.

)
<
—
B |
e
=
=]
=
=
~
o
=
=
-
-

37




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ..............

Consolidated Balance Sheets . ...............

Consolidated Statements of Operations ........

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Loss ....................

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . .......

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . ...

Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule [I-—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

38

78




REPORT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Avanex Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheeis of Avanex Corporation and subsidiaries
(the “Company™) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
June 30, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15¢a). These
financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supperting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Avanex Corporation and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2007, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007,
based on the criteria established in fnternal Control—integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated September 4, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting because of a material weakness.

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, on June 30, 2007, the Company changed
its method of accounting for defined benefit penston and other postretirement plans upon the adoption of
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Statement No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). In
addition, as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted FASB Statement
No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, effective July 1, 2005, based on the modified prospective application
transition method. '

/s/  DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Jose, California
September 4, 2007
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AVANEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{(In thousands, except share and per share data)

June 30,
2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . .......... . iiueoioiiniiiie e $ 14837 $ 28,963
Restricted cash and investments .. ....... ..o ittt 3.620 6,676
ShOM-1erm INVESHTIENLS . . .« o ottt ittt et ettt et ettt a e 28,942 38,696
ACCOUNMES FECEIVADIE o . ottt e e e e e e 33,764 26,768
2311 C0) & T O e 15,188 18,417
Due fromrelated party . ... ... ... e 14,381 10,404
LT CUITENT A55EL5 v o ottt e et et e e et ae bt e e iaaeennns 5,716 15,473
TOtal CUMTENT ASSEES & o v v v e e e et et ettt iae s sa it aaaraneeenn 116,448 145,397
Property and equipment, NEL . ... .. oo i ittt e 5,900 5,668
INtAngIbIES, MEL . .. oo 559 3,246
GoodWill L. e 9,408 9,408
Deposits and OMHer @8SeLs .. ...... . iieen ottt it e 2,685 1.839
TOtAl B85S - . o o oottt e e $ 135,000 $ 165,558
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current habilities:
ACCOUNIS PAYADIE . . ..ot tiiaeeaee $ 32549 § 38276
Accrued COMPENSAtION ... ...t e 6,091 6,872
ACCIUEd WAITANLY .0\ oo ettt ittt et ae ettt i iaaaa it 873 1,799
Duetorelated party . ..... ... oot e 2,144 4475
Other accrued expenses and deferred revenue . ......... ... ... ... 0 8,796 4.467
Current portion of long-term obligations ............... ... ... ... ol 9 823
Current portion of accrued restiucturing ......... .. ieiiiinnn i 2,837 6,321
Total current Habilities ... ... e e 53,299 63,033
Long-term liabilities:
ACCTUEd TESIIUCIUTITIE . . .ot ittt e e ae e e i ai et iaaca s 8,269 13,252
CONVErIDIE NOLES .. o\ttt ettt et et e e — 4,569
Other long-term obligations ...........oiiiiie i 1,350 11,366
Total Habiliies . ... ...t i i it et ia e e 62,918 92,220
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 450,000,000 and 300,000,000 shares authorized
at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively; 226,184,325 and 204,361,846 shares
outstanding (net of 157,656 and 160,749 treasury shares) at June 30, 2007 and
2006, respeCtively . ...t e e 226 204
Additional paid-in capital ......... .. 775,901 742,951
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ... ... .. ... it 1,064 4,687
Accumulated deficit ......... oo e (705,109)  (674,504)
Total stockholders™ equity . ........... . . i 72,082 73,338
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ........... ... ... o oot $ 135,000 § 165,558

See accompanying notes.
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AVANEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Net revenue: ‘
Third Parties . ... ..ot ittt it e $151,380 $119,054 3 105,568
Related Parties . ... .o vt 61,375 43,890 55,127
TOtal MEL TEVENLIE . . . oo vt e v ettt e emr e e e eaaenas e 212,755 162,944 160,695
Cost of revenue:
Cost of revenue except for purchases from related parties .. .......... 174,059 151,758 155,056
Purchases from related parties ... 491 2,726 10,202
Total COSt Ol TEVENUE . . .. ...ttt aiar i eeanaas 174,550 154,484 165,258 |
Gross profit (10SS) ... ..o 38,205 8,460 (4,563
Operaling expenses:
Research and development ........ .. ... o iiiiiiiiiiiaaaa 25,231 23471 33,124
Sales and marketing .. ...t e 15,261 13,236 16,803
General and administrative:
Third parties .. ... ..ooueiiiin i 22,663 15,701 11,857
Related parties . . . .. e r e e 6l3 951 5,801
Amortization of intangibles . ....... ... . . o oo 2,703 5,448 5,723
T h N IuL 111 511 G 1,511 1,912 29,27
Gain on disposal of property and equipment ............... ... .. 527y  (5,064) (1,850)
Lossonsale of subsidiary ....... ... i 3,216
Total operating eXPenses . . .« .o v vvvemnarrrearaaaesaonans 70,673 55,655 100,830
LOSS fTOm OPerations . . . ... vvve it i (32,468) (47,195) (105,393)
Interest and other INCOTNE . . . .. oottt it e eaanans 2,292 2,787 3,607
| Interest and otherexpense .. ... .. ... i i 35 (10,284) {6,585) '
LSS before INCOME LAXES .+ o ot v vttt nm e e e e ieamee it aenesaann $(30,141) $(54,692) $(108,371) i
Provision for inCOME LaXes . .. .. ..o vunenernreanenenrniirenenns (464) — —
NELIOSE + v et et et e et e ettt e ettt e e $(30,605) $(54,692) $(108,371)
Basic and diluted net loss per common ShArE . .o e $ 1 % 03 % (079
! Weighted-average number of shares used in computing basic and diluted net
loss percommon Share .. ... ... o iiiirrier i 212,952 163,242 144,253
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AVANEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
{In thousands, except share data)

Accutnutated
Additional Other Total
Common  Paid-in  Deferred Stock Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’
Stock Capitzl Compensation Deficit Income (Loss) Equity

Balance at June 30,2004 .. ... ... ... ol 143 663,798 (596) (511,074) 5193 157,464
Issuance of 611,517 shares of common stock upon
4s8 — — — 459

exercise of stock options ....... ... o0,
Issuance of 986,123 shares of commen stock relating to

—

employee stock purchase plan ... ... 1 1,200 — — -— 1,201
Warrants isseed in connection with the issuance of senior

secured debentures, net of issuance costs of $258 ... .. — 2,602 —_ —_ —_— 2,602
Accelerated vesting of 168,750 executive shares ... .. .. — 106 — — — 106
Issuance costs related to shelf registration . ............ — {258) — — — (258)
Stock-based compensation . . ....... ... ., — 17 — —_ — 17
Amortization of deferred stock compensation ... ....... — — 243 — — 243
Comprehensive loss:

Unrealized loss on investments ....... e — — - —_ (484) (484)

Cumulative translation adjustment ... ............. — — —— — 769 769

Netloss .o — - - (108,371) — (108.371)
Comprehensiveloss ........... .. i il (108,086)

BalanceatJune 30,2005 . ... ........... ... ... 145 667,923 (353) (619,445) 5418 53,748

Reclassification of deferred stock compensation to

additional paid-in capital upon the adoption of SFAS

I23R)Y .o e - (353} 353 — — —
Issuance of 1,551,789 shares of common stock upon

exercise of stockoptions . ............ ... ... 2 2,105 — — — 2,107
Issuance of 588,431 shares of common stock relating to

employee stock purchase plan .................... 1 408 — — — 409
Modifications of warrants, net of issuance costs of

B0 e — 686 — — — 686
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs of :

33,508 e, 24 44,641 -_ - — 44,665
Issuance of common stock in connection with conversion

of senior secured convertiblenotes .. ............., 32 23,089 - — — 23,121
Stock-based compensation .. ............ ... ... — 4,452 — — - 4,452
Commen stock withheld on exercise of restricted stock

units for tax withholding . ........... ... ..ol -— — — (367) — (367)
Comprehensive joss:

Unrealized gain on investments .. ............. ..., — — ~— — 461 461

Cumulative translation adjustment . ............... — o — (1,252) (1.252)

Netloss ... (54,692} — {54,692y
Comprehensive loss ... ... o i, —_ — — (55,483)

Balance atJune 30,2006 . ... ... ........ .. ... ... ... $204  $742,951 $— $(674,504) $ 4,687 § 73338

Issuance of 355,459 shares of common stock upon

exercise of stockoptions .............. ... ..., - 363 — — — 363
{ssuance of 2,843,426 shares of common stock in

connection with restricted stock units ... ........... 3 — — — — 3
Issuance of 1,239,671 shares of common stock upon

exerciscof warranis ... ....... ... i i, 1 1,399 — — — 1,400
Issuance of 427,355 shares of common stock in

connection with employee stock purchaseplan . ... ... 1 366 — — — 367

Issuance of 6,161,512 shares of common stock in

connection with conversion of 8% senior convertible

F1Te] (S e e 6 4,980 — —_ — 4,986
Issuance of 10,795,056 shares of common stock, net of

issuancecosts of $1,267 ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 11 18,733 o~ —_ — 18,744
Stock-based compensation . .. ... . .ol — 7,109 — — —_ 7.109
Comprehensive loss:

Unrealized gain on investments ................... — — — — 10 10

Cumuiative translation adjustment ................ —_— — — (3.968) (3,968)

Netactearial gain ... ... ... iiiin i, — — - - 335 335

Netloss ... e — — —_ (30,605) — (30,605)
Comprehensiveloss .......... ... ... .. — — — (34,228)

Balance atJune 30,2007 ... ... ... ... il $226 §775901 $— $(705,109) $1.064 $ 72,082

See accompanying notes.
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AVANEX CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

For the Year Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Operating Activities:
L 121 P $ (30,605) $ (54,692} $(103,371)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment . ............ i (767) (5,064) (2,226)
Depreciation and amortization ... ... .. .o i s 2,360 5,565 9012
Amortization of intangibles . ... .. o 2,698 5,448 2723
Impairment Of IRVESIMENE . ... vu v e i — — 4,400
Gain on investmentin subsidiary .. ... .. L i e (223) — —
Prepaid amOrIZAION ... ..ottt rinrae e e i — — 322
Stock-based cCOMPENSAtion ... ... ... ottt i s 7.109 4,452 365
{Feversal of) provision for doubtful accounts and salesreturns .............covivienons 1,194 (2,538} 663
Cush paid for sale of subsidiary. net of liabilities assumed .............. ... ... ... (19,557) — -—
LLuss in connection with convertible notes modification ............ ... ool .. — 4,525 —
Non-cash gainonderivatives .. ... .. i e —— —_ (740)
NON-cash INMETEST EXPENSE . ..ottt i caa st aanaas 424 2,160 —
Write-down of excess and obsolete inventory ......... ... it i 13,034 12,790 8234
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNS TECEIVADIE . .. . i i i e (7.646) (10,727 (9,714)
DR L0 ) x 1=t S ARG S (11,739) 5,488 (4,982)
OUHET CUITERE ASSELS + o o v v e v e v et v e e et sttt s aranrsrensaaaaaaareeessanaasss 8,813 16,828 529
L0115 T = S 331 (53) (1,147)
Due toffrom related parties . ............ ... .. e e e (10,595) 10,364 (1,8318)
Accountspayable .. ... ... . i e (1.685) 8,127 1,743
Acerued COMPENSALEON ... v vttt v et a e et an ot anes 3.312 (2,912) (418)
Accrued TESUUCIUNINE . ...ttt t et et it e et i r e (3.462) (26,787 6.634
AcCrued WaITANLY ... ... ittt e e {1,006) (3.521) (837}
Other accrued expenses and deferred revenues ... oo 1,892 (12,053) 1141
Net cash used in operating activities ... ... . it e (46,118} {42,600) (91,487)
Investing Activities:
Purchases of INVESHNENIS vttt it it c it st s n e e (418,704)  (123,005) (41,986}
Maturities of INVESIMENTIS . . ... vttt ittt et ea e e iaeeasisanrns 428,468 123,699 125,837
Decrease (increase) in restricted cash . ... ..o oo i 3.085 1,489 (8,165)
Investment in third Parties ... ... ... i i e (1,250) — —
Purchases of property and equipment ... ... A N (2,403} (2.508) (88.2)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment . ....... ... i 106 4,824 4,782
Net cash provided by investing activities . .......... ... o i 9,302 4,499 79.570
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of capital lease obligations .. .......... ... 637 — —
Payments on capital lease obligations . ..... ... ... o i — (2,268) (4,563}
Paymants in connection with convertible notes modification ........ ... ...l — {4,075) -
Proceads from short-term borrowings ... it s — —_ 31,219
Payments on short-1erm BOITOWINgS . . ... ..ot et s — — (34,942)
Borrowings under financing arrangements . ... ... v in e raanee it — — 24,466
Proceeds from issuance of cOmmon slock ... ... . i i et 20,869 47,181 1.402
Net cash provided by financing activities .......... ... ... .. oLt 21,506 40,838 17,582
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ... ... oo i 1,184 (585) (497)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .......... .. .o i e (14,126) 2,152 5174
Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of period ............ e e 28,963 26,811 21,637
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period . ... ... . i e $ 14837 % 28963 § 26811
Supplemental Information:
Cash paid during the period for:
INEEIESE EXPETISE + . v« v v e e e e e e s ee et e b st it i n s e $ 36 % 164 % 849
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Property and equipment acquired under capital lease ........... ...l 3 — % — % 23815
Issuance: of common Stock UPon aCqUISIONS . ... ... ot i e $ — 3 — 3 —
Issuance and modifications of WAITAMES . .. ... vrtr vt ieereriane e iienearnanes $ — % 636 $ 3602
Conversion of senior convertible notes into common stock ... . e $ 4994 F 23121 § —
Investment in equily securities in exchange for equipment ... $ — 3 658 % —
Reducticn of pension liability in connection with sale of subsidiary .................. .. $ 2122 % — % —
Pension liability recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income ... .........vu e 5 335§ — 3 —
Net issuance of restricted stock awards (restricted stock and restricted stock units) . ...... .- § 4124 § 2812 % —

See accompanying notes.
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AVANEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Company

LIIYS

Avanex Corporation (“the Company”, “we”, “us” and “our”) designs, manufactures and markets fiber optic-
based products, known as photonic processors, which are designed to increase the performance of optical
networks. The Company sells products to telecommunications system integrators and their network carrier
customers. The Company was incorporated in October 1997 in California and reincorporated in Delaware in
January 2000.

Busis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All inter-company balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimartes

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ materially
from those estimates. Significant estimates made by management include revenue recognition, sales returns
provision, bad debt provision, inventory write-downs, warranty provision, impairment of goodwill and other
acquired intangible assets, restructuring expenses, and litigation and contingency assessments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The Company considers all highly liquid investment securities with maturity from the date of purchase of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted cash is security for certain leasing and borrowing arrangements.

All of our investments are classified as available-for-sale securities and are carried at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in
stockholders’ equity.

Interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and any other borrowing-related costs are included in interest
and other income (expense). Realized gains and losses are recognized based on the specific identification
method.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company evaluates the estimated fair value of financial instruments using available market information
and valuation methodologies. The use of different market assumptions and estimation methodologies could have
a negative effect on the estimated fair value amounts, The fair value of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and debt approximates the carrying amount due to the
relatively short maturity of these items.

Concentration of Credit and Other Risks

Financial instruments, which subject the Company to potential credit risk, consist of demand deposit
accounts, money market accounts, short-term investments and accounts receivable. The Company maintains its
demand deposit accounts, money market accounts and short-term investments primarily with three financial
institutions. The Company invests its excess cash principally in debi securities.

The Company sells its products primarily to large communications equipment vendors. The Company
extends reasonably short collection terms but does not require collateral from its customers. When the Company
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AVANEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

becomes aware, subsequent to delivery, of a customer’s potential inability to meet its payment obligations, the
Company records a specific allowance for doubtful accounts. In prior years, we also recorded an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the length of time the receivables were past due. In the last three years, our
uncollectible accounts experience has been almost nil. At June 30, 2007, we determined that an allowance was
not required. In addition, when the’ Company approves sales returns or becomes aware of disputed sales invoices,
the Company records an allowance for sales returns and price adjustments. If the financial condition of its
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. This may be magnified due to the concentration of its sales to a limited number of
customers. The Company has not experienced significant credit losses to date. Concentrations of credit risk, with
respect to these financial instruments, exist to the extent of amounts presented in the financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost
or market. Cost is computed on a currently adjusted standard basis (which approximates actual costs on a first-in,
first-out basis).

The Company writes off the cost of inventory that the Company specifically identifies and considers obsolete
or excassive to fulfill future sales estimates. The Company defines obsolete inventory as products that we no longer
market, for which there is no demand, or inventory that will no longer be used in the manufacturing process. Exczss
inventory is generally defined as inventory in excess of projected usage, and is determined using management's best
estimate of future demand at the time, based upon information then available to the Company.

[n estimating excess inventory, the Company used a range of six-month to twelve-month demand forecast in
fiscal 2007 and 2006. In addition, we assess inventory on a quartetly basis and write-down those inventories
which are obsolete or in excess of our forecasted usage to their estimated realizable value. Our estimates of
realizable value are based upon our analysis including, but not limited to, forecasted sales by product, expected
product life cycle, product development plans and future demand requirements. Our marketing department plays
a key role in our excess review process by providing updated sales forecasts, managing product rollovers and
working with sub-contract manufacturing to maximize recovery of excess inventory. If actual market conditions
are less favorable than our forecasts or actual demand from our customers is lower than our estimates, we may be
required to record additional inventory write-downs. If actual market conditions are more favorable than
anticipated, inventory previously written down may be sold resulting in lower cost of sales and higher income
from operations than expected in that period.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, or two to four years for
computer hardware and software except for enterprise resource planning software, three years for production znd
engineering equipment, and five years for office equipment, furniture and fixtures, and enterprise resource
planning software. The Company amortizes capital leases and leasehold improvements using the straight-line
method over the lesser of the assets’ estimated useful lives or remaining lease terms (typically two to five years).

Goodwill

I the carrving amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an
impairment loss is recorded in net income (loss). We operate in one segment, which is our sole operating unit.
Measurement of the fair value of the reporting unit is determined annually using the market capitalization approach.
The capitalization approach focuses on the fair value of the enterprise, which was determined based on our currzant
market capitalization to exceed its carrying value, and goodwill was determined not to be impaired at June 30, 2007.
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AVANEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

We periodically review our intangible assets for impairment and assess whether significant events or
changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. This
could occur when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the anticipated future undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. The amount of the impairment loss to be
recorded, if any, is calculated as the excess of the asset’s carrying value over its estimated fair value. Changes to
estimated useful lives would impact the amount of depreciation and amortization expense recorded in earnings.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”” When
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets may not be recoverable, the
Company recognizes such impairment in the event the net book value of such assets exceeds the future undiscounted
cash flows attributable to such assets. We also periodically reassess the estimated remaining useful lives of our long
lived assets. As of June 30, 2007, we determined there was no impairment of long-lived assets.

Restructuring Costs

During the past few years, the Company has recorded significant accruals in connection with restructuring
programs, Given the significance and complexity of restructuring activities, and the timing of the execution of
such activities, the restructuring accrual process involves periodic reassessments of estimates made at the time
the criginal decisions were made, including evaluating real estate market conditions for expected vacancy
periods and sub-lease rents. Although these estimates accurately reflect the costs of the restructuring programs,
actual results may differ, thereby requiring the Company to record additional provisions or reverse a portion of
such provisions.

Pension Benefits

For defined benefit pension plans, liabilities and prepaid expenses are determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method (with projected final salary), and recognizing, actuarial gains and losses in excess of more
than 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation or 10% of the fair value of dny plan assets, over
the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)” in fiscal 2007.

Contingency Accruals

The Company evaluates contingent liabilities including threatened or pending litigation in accordance with
SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies”. If the potential loss from any claim or legal proceedings is
considered probable and the amount can be estimated, the Company accrues a liability for the estimated loss.
Because of uncertainties related to these matters, accruals are based upon management’s judgment and the best
information available to management at the time, As additional information becomes available, the Company
reassesses the potential liability related to its pending claims and litigation and may revise its estimates.

In addition to product warranties, Avanex, from time to time, in the normal course of business, indemnifies
certain customers with whom it enters into contractual relationships. Avanex has agreed to hold the other party
harmless against third party claims that Avanex’ products, when used for their intended purpose, infringe the
intellectual property rights of such third party or other claims made against certain parties. It is not possible to
determine the maximum potential amount of liability under these indemnification obligations due to the limited
history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and circumstances that are likely to be involved in
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AVANEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

each particular claim. The estimated fair value of these indemnification provisions is minimal. To date, the
Company has not incurred any costs related to claims under these provisions, and no amounts have been accrued
in the accompanying financial statements.

Foreign Currency

The functional currencies of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are their respective local currencies.
Accordingly, all assets and liabilities of the foreign operations are translated to U.S. dollars at current period end
exchange rates, and revenues and expenses are translated to U.S. dollars using weighted average exchange rates
in effect during the period. The gains and losses from the translation of these subsidiaries’ financial statements
into the U.S. dollar are recorded directly into a separate component of stockholders’ equity under the caption
“Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income” in stockholders’ equity. Currency transaction gains and losses are
included in the Company’s results of operations.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130 “Reporting Comprehensive Income” (“FAS 130”) requires that all items required to be
recognized under accounting standards as components of comprehensive income, including unrealized gains and
losses on available-for-sale securities, net actuarial gain, and foreign currency translation adjustments be reported
in the consolidated financial statements. As a result, the Company has reported comprehensive income (loss)
within the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity. Foreign currency translation
adjustments for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2003 resulted in losses of $4.0 million and $1.3 million
and a gain of $0.8 million, respectively. For the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, there were unrealized
gains (losses) on investments of $10,000, $0.5 million and ($0.5) million, respectively. Pension actuarial gain
recognized for the year ended June 30, 2007 was $0.3 million. Comprehensive loss was $34.2 million,
$55.5 million and $108.1 million for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2003, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue recognition policy complies with United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC™) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition”. Revenue is recognized when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, ‘the product has been shipped, risk of loss has been transferred,
collectibility is reasonably assured, fees are fixed or determinable, and there are no uncertainties with respect to
custoiner acceptance. In addition, when the Company approves sales returns or becomes aware of disputed sales
invoices, the Company records an allowance for sales returns and price adjustments. If future sales returns differ
from the historical data used to calculate these estimates, changes to the provision may be required, The
Company generally does not accept product returns from customers; however, the Company does sell its
products under warranty. Specific warranty terms and conditions vary by customer and region in which the
Company does business, however, the warranty period is generally one year.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company grants stock options and stock purchase rights for a fixed number of shares to employees and
directors with an exercise price equal to the fair value of the shares at the date of grant.

We adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123(R)), effective July 1, 2005,
SFAS 123(R) requires the recognition of the fair value of stock compensation in net income. We recognize the
stock compensation expense over the requisite service period of the individual grantees, which generally equals
the vesting period. Prior to July 1, 2005, we followed Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25,
“ Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, ~ and related interpretations in accounting for our stock
compensation. For more information, please see Note 13 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AVANEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

We have elected the modified prospective transition method for adopting SFAS 123(R). Under this method,
the provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to all awards granted or modifted after the date of adoption. Our deferred
stock compensation balance of $353,000 as of June 30, 2005, which was accounted for under APB Opinion
No. 25, was reclassitied as a reduction of our additional paid-in-capital upon the adoption of SFAS 123(R).

In addition, the unrecognized expense of awards not yet vested at the July I, 2005 date of adoption is
recognized in net loss in the periods after the date of adoption using the same Black-Scholes valuation method
and assumptions determined under the original provisions of SFAS 123, *“ Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” as disclosed in our previous quarterly and annuat reports, The cumulative effect of the change in
accounting principle from APB Opinion No. 25 to SFAS 123(R) was not material, because amortization of
options granted prior to adoption was based on the single-option approach.

As permitted under the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™ {(“SFAS 123) as amended by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure™ (“SFAS 148™), for the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company accounted for stock option grants and
stock purchase rights to employees and directors in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25 and, accordingly,
recognized no compensation expense for stock opiion grants or stock purchase rights with an exercise price equal
to or greater than the fair value of the shares at the date of grant. Accordingly, deferred stock compensation was
recognized for an option or share purchase right that had an exercise price that was less than the fair value of the
common shares and was calculated as the difference between the option price or share purchase right exercise
price at the date of grant and the fair value of the Company’s common shares at that date. Such deferred stock
compensation is amortized over the vesting period, generally a maximum of four years.

Equity instruments granted to consultants are accounted for under the fair value method using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model and are subject to periodic revaluations over their vesting terms. The expense is
recognized as the instruments vest.

Pro forma information regarding net loss and net loss per common share under the fair value method for
options and share repurchase rights granted prior to the Company’s initial public offering was estimated at the
date of grant. The fair value of stock options, share purchase rights and shares issued under the employee stock
purchase plan (collectively the “options™) granted subsequent to the initial public offering were valued using
Black-Scholes valuation model based on the actual stock closing price on the day previous to the date of grant.
The option valuation models were developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions. The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant using the following
weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended June 30, 2005
Employee Stock Employee Stock

Option Plan Purchase Plan
Risk-free intereStrate . ... ... ... .. .o i, 2.8% 3.0%
Weighted-average expected life . ...... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 3.3 years 0.5 years
Volatility . ... e 1.04 0.76

Dividend yield ....... .. .. i e — —
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options was amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting period. The Company’s pro forma information was as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended
June 30, 2005

Net Loss:
Asreported ........... ... ..., P $(108,371)
Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net loss .. ....... 366
Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based
methods forall awards .. ... .. i e (26,136)
Pro fOFMa ML JOSS - . o oot ee e et e e e e e e e $(134,141)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share:
Asteported ... ... e e e g {0.75)
Pro oA ..ttt e 3 (093)

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred,

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method to account for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases' of assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to reduce net deferred tax assets
to an amount that is more likely than not to be rélalizcd.

Earnings per Share

Basic net loss per share is calculated using the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstarding. Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner and also gives effect to all dilutive
common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Common equivalent shares consist of stock options
issued to employees under employee stock option plans and warrants.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN") No. 48, "“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes— an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” This intetpretation clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” It prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial
statemnent disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. This Interpretation is effective
for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 2007. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of FIN 48 on
our consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations.

In September 2006, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements
in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108™). SAB 108 provides guidance on the consideration of the
effects of prior year misstaternents in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality
assessment. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on our consolidated balance sheet and
statement of operations for fiscal 2007,
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AVANEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“Statement 1577),
Statement 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands fair value
measurement disclosures. Statement 157 is effective for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008. We are currently
evaluating the impact of the adoption of Statement 157 on our consolidated balance sheet and statement of
operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities, including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“Statement 159”), which allows an
entity the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial and subsequent measurement for certain financial
assets and liabilities under an instrument-by-instrument election. Subsequent measurements for the financial
assets and liabilities an entity elects 1o fair value will be recognized in earnings. Statement 159 also establishes
additional disclosure requirements. Statement 159 is effective for our fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008, with
carly adoption permitted provided that the entity also adopts Statement 157. We are currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of Statement 159 on our consolidated balance sheet and statement of operations.

Note 2. Disposition

On March 1, 2007, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement with Global Research Company,
a société i responsibilité limitée incorporated under the laws of France (“GRC™), and Mr. Didier Sauvage, an
individual and former employee of the Company (together with GRC, the “Purchasers”), pursuant to which the
Company would sell ninety percent (%0%) of the share capital and voting rights of its wholly owned subsidiary,
Avanex France (“Avanex France”), a société anonyme incorporated under the laws of France, which owned the
Company’s semiconductor fabs and associated product lines located in Nozay, France, to the Purchasers for the
nominal amount of €1.00. The sale closed on April 16, 2007. The Purchasers changed the name of Avanex
France to “3S Photonics” following the closing. '

The sale involved the divestiture of the Company’s laser, terrestrial and submarine pumps and Fiber Bragg
Grating (FBG) product lines. The Company will continue to operate its optical interfaces (QOIF) business and
optical fiber amplifiers and raman amplifiers (QAX) business, which have been transferred to a new wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company in France prior to the Closing.

This sale resulted in a loss to the Company of $3.2 million primarily as a result of the approximately
324.9 million cash paid, transaction expenses incurred of approximately $1.0 million, and transfer of
approximately $4.3 million of assets, partially offset by approximately $15.9 million of liabilities written-off, the
assumption of approximately $6.7 million of liabilities by 3S Photonics, write-off of cumulative translation gain
related to Nozay of approximately $3.3 million, and a reduction of the pension obligation of approximately
$1.1 million related to the sale.

Subsequent to year-end, the Company and 3S Photonics amended a distribution agreement to permit 35
Photonics to terminate the arrangement early in exchange for fixed payments to the Company over the remaining
18-month period. The gain, if any, from early termination will be recognized at the time of termination of the
distribution arrangement.
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Note 3. Restructuring

A summary of the Company’s accrued restructuring liability is as follows (in thousands):

June 30,
‘ 2007 2006
Acquisition-related accruals . ...... ... $ — 53433
(7131 SN OO g 11,106 16,140
Total FestruCtUriNg 8CCIUALS . . .\« v vt v ettt raa et auaaannnns 11,106 19,573
LSS CUITENE POTHOM . . ¢ ot ettt ettt ta s e et s s s e e n e s s e (2,.837) (6,321)
NOH-CUITEIE POITION . 4 . . vt oot e s e e ana s s s s amaa e em s e e e aaaaens $ 8,269 $13,252

Accrued Restructuring Liability Related to Acquisitions

In fiscal 2004, the Company acquired the optical components businesses of Alcatel and Corning. As part of |
the acquisitions, the Company recorded restructuring liabilities at July 31, 2003 with a fair value of $64.1 million
. relating to future workforce reductions, which were included in the purchase price of the optical components
businesses of Alcatel and Corning. A summary of the acquisition-related accrued liability relating to these
acquisitions is as follows (in thousands):

June 30,
2007 2006
Accrued restructuring related to acquisitions, beginning balance ............... ... ... $3433 $4.804
Additions ... . . e e e e e e — 911
e R R R R — (312)
Cash and payments to participate and to third parties assuming liabilities ................ (3,433) (1,970)
Accrued restructuring related to acquisitions, ending balance . ....... . ... ... $ — 53433

During fiscal 2006, the Company accrued $0.6 million relating to revised estimates associated with the
employee severance payment for the operation of our subsidiary in France.

Other Restructuring

Over the past several years, the Company has implemented various restructuring programs (o realign
resources in response to the changes in the industry and customer demand, and the Company continues to assess
its current and future operating requirements accordingly. The Company’s restructuring programs include
centralizing global manufacturing at its operations center in Thailand.

During fiscal 2006, the Company approved a work force reduction of 41 employees due to the re-alignment
of our work force as a result of the transfer of most of our manufacturing operations to third-party contract
manufacturers. The reduction in force was completed in October 2006. The costs associated with this
restructuring consisted primarily of severance costs of $1.7 million.

In fiscal 2005, the Company approved a work force reduction in its U.S. operations that resulted in the
termination of 145 employees in order to reduce operating expenses and improve its cost structure. This
reduction in force was completed in December 2005. The costs associated with this restructuring consisted
primarily of severance costs of $4.7 million,

In fiscal 2005, the Company approved a work force reduction in its Nozay, France operations that resulted
in the termination of 156 full-time employees in France, leaving approximately 150 employees. The costs of
$23.6 million associated with this restructuring were accrued in the quarter ending June 30, 2005 and consisted
primarily of severance costs.
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In addition, during fiscal 2005 we accrued $4.3 million in additional costs to expand the scope of our 2004
Horseheads restructuring plan. This amount was offset by recoveries of $0.8 million after it was determined that
certain estimated payments were no longer required.

The restructurings have resulted and will result in, among other things, a significant reduction in the size of
the Company’s workforce, consolidation of its facilities and increased reliance on outsourced, third-party
manufacturing.

The following table summarizes changes in accrued restructuring for fiscal 2007 and 2006, excluding
accruals related to the acquisitions noted above (in thousands):

Additional
Accrued Accruals Cash Payments Accrued
Liability at During During Recovery During Liability at
June 30,2006  Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2007 June 30, 2007
Workforce reduction, fiscal 2004 . .. .. $ 542 § — 3 (542) | J— 5 —
Workforce reduction, fiscal 2005 ... .. 2,828 320 (3,135) 2) 11
Workforce reduction, fiscal 2006 ... .. 62 — (60) (2) —_
Abandonment of excess leased
factlities . ...................... 12,708 1,278 (2,803) (88) 11,095
Total ... .. . $16,140 $1,598 $ (6,540) $ (92) $11,106
Additional
Accrued Accruals Cash Payments Accrued
Liability at During During Recovery During  Liability at
June 30,2005  Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2006 June 30, 2006
Workforce reduction, fiscal 2004 .. ... § 758 $ 247 $  (463) 5 — $ 542
Workforce reduction, fiscal 2005 ... .. 25,723 228 (21,270) (1,853) 2,828
Workforce reduction, fiscal 2006 ... .. — 2,234 {1,636) {536) 62
Abandonment of excess leased
faciliies ............ ... ... ..... 14,892 1,682 (3,091) {775) 12,708
Total ....... ... ... . ... $41,373 $4,391 $(26,460) $(3,164) $16,140

Note 4. Net Loss per Share

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share (in thousands, except per
share data):

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Net Joss . ..o e $(30,605) $(54,692) $(108,371)
Basic and diluted weighted-average number of shares of common stock
OUISEANAINE . ..\ ettt e e 212,952 163,242 144,253
Basic and diluted net loss per common share ................ e § 014 8 034) 3 (075
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During the periods presented, the Company had securities outstanding that could potentially dilute basic
earnings per share in the future, but were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share, as their
effect would have been anti-dilutive. The anti-dilutive securities are as follows:

Balance at June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Employee stock options ... .. e 13,312,450 12,688,341 19,651,000
Employee restricted stock units . .......... e 4,206,895 4,066,002 —
8% convertiblenotes ................... P, — 6,161,511 28,925,620
Warrants attached to 8% convertiblenotes ... .......... 7,938,018 8,677,689 8.677,689
Warrants granted to landlord ... ... ...l 60,000 60,000 60,000
Warrants attached to March 2006 equity securities offering . . . 7,339,727 7,222,500 —
Warrants attached to March 2007 equity securities offering . . . 2,698,764 — —

35,555,854 38,876,043 57,314,309

Note 5. Consolidated Balance Sheet Detail
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Short-term Investments

The Company generally invests its excess cash in debt instruments of the U.S. Treasury, government
agencies, and corporations with strong credit ratings. Such investments are made in accordance with the
Company’s invesiment policy, which establishes guidelines relative to diversification and maturities designed to
maintain safety and liquidity. To date, the Company has not experienced any significant losses on its debt |
investments. ‘ ‘

The table below summarizes the amortized cost, fair value and gross unrealized gains and losses related to
available-for-sale securities, aggregated by security type.
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Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments consist of the following (in thousands}:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
June 30, 2007
Cash ... e $14,661 5— §— $14,661
Cash Equivalents—Money Market Funds . ................... 176 — — 176
Restricted cash and investments Certificates of Deposit and United
States Government Agencies . ............iiiiiiei.an. 3,620 - = 3,620
Short-term Investmenis
Certificates of Deposit . .............................. 11 — — 1t
Commercial Paper . ... ... . .. . . .. . e, 17,060 —_ {1 17.059
United States Government Agencies . ................... 4,019 — &) 4,014
Corporate NOtes ... ... .. . i it iiinnennns 3,272 1 — 3,273
CorporateBonds . ...... ... .. .. ... 2,580 — (&) 2,571
Foreign Debt Securities . ... ... ... .., 2,013 1 2,014
Subtotal, short-term investments ................... 28,955 2 (15 28,942
Total cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments ........ $47.412 $ 2 $(15)  $47,399
June 30, 2006 |
Cash............ . .cccviivnn.t. e $19,270 — $— $19.270
Cash Equivalents—Money Market Funds . ................... 9,693 — —_ 9,693
Restricted cash and investments Certificates of Deposit and United
States Government Agencies . .............oeeeinaii.in.n 6,676 — — 6,676
Short-term Investments
Certificates of Deposit . .............................. 209 — — 209
United States Government Agencies . ................... 8,985 163 — 9,148
Corporate Bonds .......... ... ... . ... .. i, 29,339 — — 29,339
Subtotal, short-term investments ................... 38,533 163 — 38,696
Total cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments . ..... .. $74,172 $163 $— $74,335
Inventory

Inventories consist of the following (in thousands);

June 30,
2007 2006
Rawmaterials ... ... ... ... . ... i e 54781 $ 6114
Work-in-process .. ... .. .. i i e 391 974
Finished goods . . ... .. . . e 9,816 11,329

$15,188  $18,417

In fiscal 2007, the Company recorded charges to cost of revenue of $12.9 million for excess and obsolete
inventory. The write-off was primarily due to lower demand for certain products and lower expected usage of
previcusly purchased inventory. In fiscal 2006, the Company recorded charges to cost of revenue of
$12.8 miilion for excess and obsolete inventory. Management did not believe it could fully recover the purchase
price of this inventory in the future. In fiscal 2005, the Company recorded charges to cost of revenue of
$8.2 million for excess and obsolete inventory primarily due to excess inventory resulting from decreased
demand from certain products, and from discontinued products,
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The Company sold inventory previously written-off with original cost totaling $1.2 million in fiscal 2007,

$0.2 million in fiscal 2006 and $1.1 million in fiscal 2005. The majority of this inventory sold in each year had
been written-off in a prior year. As a result, cost of revenue associated with the sale of this inventory was zero.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):
June 30,
2007 2006

Computer hardware and software . .. ........ ... ... ... 0L $ 9217 § 8,538
Production and engineering equipment .................. . ... 34,537 33,025
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures ...................... 971 827
Leasehold improvements . ...... ... ..o iiiiiiinneaaaaon 1,791 1,518

Total acquisition cost ... e 46,516 43,908
Accumulated depreciation and amortization ................... (40,616}  (38,240)

Netbook value . ... i it eaannns $ 5900 $ 5,608

Other Current Assets
Qther current assets consist of the following (in thousands):
June 30,
2007 2006

VAT receivable and research tax creditreceivable . . . .............. $1,213 § 1,504
Prepaid inSUrance ... ...... ... ittt 493 —
Prepaid TENL ...\ vttt e ettt e 10 231
Advance billings by contract manufacturers .................... - 3,302 11,526
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ... ... ...t iiiiinaanns 698 2,212

$5,716  $15,473

Warranties

In general, the Company provides a product warranty for one year from the date of shipment. The Company
accrues for the estimated costs of product warranties during the period in which revenue is recognized. The
Company estimates the costs of its warranty obligations based on its historical experience and expectation of future
conditions. To the extent the Company experiences increased warranty claim activity or increased costs associated

with servicing those claims, the Company’s warranty costs will increase resulting in decreases to gross profit. )
Conversely, to the extent the Company experiences decreased warranty claim activity, or decreased costs associated =
with' servicing those claims, our warranty costs will decrease, resulting in increases to gross profit. The Company ?_]
periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary. >
Changes in the Company’s product warranty accrual for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006 are as follows (in thousands): -
Years Ended June 30, g
2007 2006 Ql_b'
Balance at beginning of year ............ ... .. ..o oo $1,799 $ 5,268 =
Accrual for salesduring the year ........... ... ... .. ... 1,334 1,826 (1)
COSt Of WAITANLY TEPAT « .+« v v\ ee et ee et e et ee e (906) (877) ’g
Change in estimate and expiration for prior provisions ............. (1,354 (4,418) z
Balance atendof year ............. i $ 873 §1,799




AVANEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

During fiscal 2006, the Company determined that the pattern for replacement as opposed to repair had
shifted resulting in decreases to previous estimates for product warranty costs.

Other Accrued Expenses and Deferred Revenue

Other accrued expenses and deferred revenue consist of the following (in thousands):

June 30,

2007 2006
Amounts accrued under escrow agreement . . ... ..., ... ... e - $2,700 —
Professional Services .. ..ottt e 1,890 351,668
Otheraccruals . ...t i e 1,196 942
Contingent liability ........ ... .. ... .o 981 465
Taxes—sales, refunds and othertaxes ............. ... uunr.n. 843 667
Deferred revenue . ...ttt i i i e e e 508 270
Building deposits owed tothird parties . ........... ... ... .. ... 439 455
R 1 T 230 —
Total ................ U $8,796  $4,467

Note 6. Goodwill

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142) prescribes a two-step process for
impairment testing of goodwill. The first step screens for impairment, while the second step, measures the
impairment, if any. SFAS 142 requires impairment testing based on reporting units. Management believes that
we operate in one segment, which we consider our sole reporting unit. Therefore, goodwill will continue to be
tested for impairment at the enterprise level. The fair value of the enterprise, which was determined based on our
current market capitalization, exceeded its carrying value, and goodwill was determined not to be impaired at
June 30, 2007 and 2006. Goodwill at June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $9.4 million.

Note 7. Other Intangibles

The following table reflects the carrying amount of intangible assets at June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 (in
thousands):

Net . Net Net
Weighted- Carrying Carrying Carrying
average Amount, Less Fiscal Amount, Less Fiscal Amount,
Life, in June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007 - June 30,
. ) . Quarters 2005 Amortization 2006 Amortization 2007
Purchased technology ................. 21 $7,628 $(4,594)  $3,034 $(2,475) $559
Supply agreement .................... 15 677 (541) 136 (136) —
Other ....... ... ... . it 15 381 (305) 76 (76) —

$8,686 $(5,440)  $3,246 $(2,687) $559

The future amortization of other intangible assets is as follows (in thousands):

Amount to be
Amortized

Fiscal Year
2008 L e $559
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Note 8. Related Party Transactions

One of the Company’s directors was a senior vice president of MCI at June 30, 2005 and ceased to be an
employee shortly thereafter. MCI accounted for less than 1% of our net revenue for the years ended June 30,
2017, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

On July 31, 2003, Alcatel was issued 28% of the'Company’s common stock and Corning was-issued 17% of
the Company’s commeon stock in connection with the acquisitions of certain business of Alcatel and Corning. As
of June 30, 2007, Alcatel and Corning owned shares representing 13% and zero percent, respectively, of the
outstanding shares of Avanex common stock. As of June 30, 2006, Alcatel and Corning owned shares
representing approximately 14% and zero percent, respectively, of the outstanding shares of Avanex common
stock. The Company sells products to and purchases raw materials and components from Alcatel and Corning in
the regular course of business. Additionally, Alcatel and Corning provided certain administrative and other
transitional services to the Company.

Amounts sold to and purchased from related parties were as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended June 30,
2007+ 2006+ 2005

Related party transactions

Sales torelated parties .. ... . i 361,375 $43,800 853,127
Purchases from/services provided to related parties in cost of revenue .. ... 491 2,726 10,202
Administrative and transitional services purchased from/provided to related _
parties; fiscal 2007 and 2006 amounts include facilities rent credits ... .. 615 951 5,891
Royalty income ... ... ... i i e — 190 483

*  On November 30, 2006, the merger of Alcatel and Lucent was completed and the combined company was
named “Alcatel Lucent.” As a result, we have included both Alcatel and Lucent transactions in the related
party disclosure beginning December 1, 2006.

**  On December 31, 2005, Corning no longer owned shares in Avanex. As a result, we have only included
transactions with Corning in the related party disclosure for the fiscal year of 2005 and 2006.

Amounts due from and due to related parties (in thousands):

At June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Due from related parties
Total Receivables . ... ... o i i $14,381 $10,404 $15.357
Receivables originating at date of acquisition of related parties, included in
ABOVE . e — — 3 1710
Duetorelated parties .. ........vevenein e i $ 2,144 $ 4475 % 1.549

*  On November 30, 2006, the merger of Alcatel and Lucent was completed and the combined company was
named “Alcate] Lucent.” As a result, we have included both Alcatel and Lucent transactions in the related
party disclosure beginning December 1, 2006.

Receivables due from related parties originating at the date of acquisition are amounts owed by Alcatel
contractually payable to the Company subsequent to the original transaction.
Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

In September 1999 and April 2000, the Company entered into operating leases for its corporate headquaners
and manufacturing facility. Upon the expiration of each lease in October 2009 and Aprit 2010, the Company has
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an option to extend the respective lease term for an additional five-year period. In July 2004, the Company
assumed certain operating leases in Europe in connection with its acquisitions. The Company also has an
operating lease for certain facilities in Newark, California which the Company no longer occupies. The
remaining lease obligation is included in accrued restructuring costs.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having initial terms in excess of one
year as of June 30, 2007 are as follows {in thousands):

Amount Included in

Total Cash Accrued Restrueturing Sublease Future
Obiligation Liability Payments Expense

Years ending June 30,
2008 ... 3 5,806 $ (2.837) $ (998) §1971
2000 ... 5,523 (2,976) (676) $1.87t
2000 ..o 4,360 (2,969) 511y $ 880
2010 o 2,985 (2,324) (79 $ 582
20012 78 — — $ 78
Remaining vears . . .................... 78 — — $ 78
Total minimum lease payments . . $18,830 $(11,106) $(2,264)  $5,460

Amounts shown in the above table are net of sublease income. The Company’s rental expense under
operating leases was $2.5 million, §7.3 million and $7.5 million for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

Contingencies

On August 6, 2001, Avanex, certain of its officers and directors, and various underwriters in its initial public
offering (“[PO”) were named as defendants in a class action filed in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, captioned Beveridge v. Avanex Corporation et al., Civil Action No. 01-CV-7256.
This action and other subsequently filed substantially similar class actions have been consolidated into In re
Avanex Corp. Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, Civil Action No. 01 Civ. 6890. The consolidated
amended complaint in the action generally alleges that various investment bank underwriters engaged in
improper and undisclosed activities related to the allocation of shares in Avanex’s IPO, Plaintiffs have brought
claims for violation of several provisions of the federal securities laws against those underwriters, and also
against Avanex and certain of its directors and officers, seeking unspecified damages on behalf of a purported
class of purchasers of Avanex’s common stock between February 3, 2000, and December 6, 2000. Various
plaintiffs have filed similar actions asserting virtwally identical allegations against more than 40 investment
banks and 250 other companies. All of these “IPO allocation™ securities class actions currently pending in the
Southern District of New York have been assigned to Judge Shira A. Scheindlin for coordinated pretrial
proceedings as In re Initial Public Offering Securities Litigation, 21 MC 92. On October 9, 2002, the claims
against Avanex’s directors and officers were dismissed without prejudice pursuant to a tolling agreement. The
issuer defendants filed a coordinated motion to dismiss all common pleading issues, which the Court granted in
part and denied in part in an order dated February 19, 2003. The Court’s order did not dismiss the Section 10(b)
or Section 11 claims against Avanex.

In June 2004, a stipulation of settlement and release of claims against the issuer defendants, including
Avanex, was submitted to the Court for approvai. On August 31, 2005, the Court preliminarily approved the
settlement. In December 2006, the appellate court overturned the certification of classes in the six test cases that
were selected by the underwriter defendants and plaintiffs in the coordinated proceedings. Because class
certification was a condition of the settlement, it was unlikely that the settlement would receive final Court
approval. On June 25, 2007, the Court entered an order terminating the proposed settlement based upon a
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stipulation among the parties to the settlement. Plaintiffs have filed amended master allegations and amended
complaints in the six focus cases. It is uncertain whether there will be any revised or future settlement. If a
settlement does not occur, and litigation against Avanex coniinues, Avanex believes it has meritorious defenses
and intends to defend the action vigorously. Nevertheless, an unfavorable result in litigation may result in
substantial costs and may divert management’s attention and resources, which could seriously harm our business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flow in a particular period.

In March 2007, the Company sold its subsidiary in France. Pursuant to the provisions of French bankruptcy
law, in the event that Avanex France, now “3S Photonics,” declares bankruptcy after such sale, we may be held
liable, as “manager de facto” of 3S Photonics for the payment of all or part of the liabilities of 35 Phaotonics,
should it appear that we committed mismanagement, which would have solely or partially led to the bankruptcy
of 38 Photonics, and these liabilities could be significant. Such liability, if incurred, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, and financial condition. In addition, we agreed to indemnify
the buyers of Avanex France generally for a period of up to two years in an amount generally not exceeding
€5 million for breaches of certain representations, warranties and covenants relating to the condition of the
business prior to, and at the time of sale, and approximately €2 million for other liabilities. As of June 30, 2007,
the Company had accrued $2.7 million under Other Accrued Expenses for an escrow account related to the sale.

Note 10. Pension Benefit Plan

With the acquisition of the optical components business of Alcatel, Avanex assumed a defined benefit
pension plan covering the employees in France. The benefit obligation recorded on acquisition (project benefit
obligation) was actuarially determined. The Company has not funded any of the benefit obligation as of June 30,
2007 and 2006.

Adoption of SFAS No. 158

SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an
amendment of FASB Statemenis No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R),” requires an employer to recognize the overfunded
or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or
liability on its statement of financial position using prospective application. SFAS No. 158 also requires an
employer to recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through
comprehensive income.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 158 in fiscal 2007. Upon adoption, the Company recorded an adjustment
of $0.3 million to the ending balance of accumulated other comprehensive income for pension benefit plan.

The following table provides the incremental effect of applying SFAS No. 158 on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of June 30, 2007 for the pension plan: '

Before Adjustiments After
Application Due to Application
of SFAS SFAS of SFAS
No. 158 No. 158 No. 158
(In thousands)
Pension liability ... $ 560 $(335) $§ 225
Total Habilities . ... ..ot e i e $63,253 $(335) $62,918
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ..................... $§ 729 $ 335 $ 1,064
Total shareholders’ equity ... ... $71,747 $ 335 $72,082
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Pension Benefit Plan

The following table provides information about changes in the benefit obligation and amounts recognized
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in accumulated other comprehensive income:

Pension  Pension
Benefits  Benefils
2007 2006

(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligation:

Beginning balance ... ... ... . . e e $1,062 $ 2,871
S EIVICE COSt ..ot e e 69 163
It ereSt QoS . . e e e e 51 103
Actuarial 1oss (Zain) ... ... o e e 9 2,075
Curtailment/sertlement . . ... ... . . i e (998) —
Exchangerate changes . ... ... ... . . i i e 50 —

Ending balance . .. ... . e $ 225 §$1,062

Amounts recognized on the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

Other long term obligations . ... ... .ottt e e $ 225 82682
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME . ... ... ... ittt it 335 —
Net amount recognized .. ... ...ttt e e $ 560 %2682

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income consisted of:
Netactuarial Zain .. ... e e e

@3
*

o | o8
1w
L | W
Lh | Ln
©
*

Net amount recognized .. ... ... e e e

*  With the adoption of SFAS No. 158 at June 30, 2007, certain information for 2007 was not previously
applicable.

Components of net periodic benefit cost for pension benefits were as follows:

2007 2006
(In thousands)

Pension benefit:

R0 S T T - § 69 3163
S5 3 G - 51 103
Settlement associated with sale of subsidiary . .. ... ... ... . . . . . . i e (998) —
Effect of settlement on actuarial gain .. ... ... ... .. e e (1,371) —
Amortization of unrecognized gain ... .. ... L e — (2D
Net periodic benefit (gain) CoSt ... ., . e it e e e e $(2,249) _3;_2:12

The estimated net actuarial gain for the pension plan that will be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive income in fiscal 2008 will be approximately $31,000.
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Contributions and Estimated Future Benefit Payments

To date, the Company has made no contribution to its pension plan. The Company does not have significant
statutory or contractual funding requirements for the qualified defined benefit plan.

The following estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Pension
Benefit
(In thousands)
Year
71 $—-
200 e e e e -—
771 1 -— [
7. 3 -
.0 3 1 U U OO —
20 = 2007 e et 135
13T Y U PN 5185

Weighted Average Assumptions Used

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006
were as follows: '

Pension Benefits

2007 2006
DSCOUNL TALE . . ..ottt ettt et ettt e e i e e s 4.65%  4.09%
Rate of cOMpPensation INCIeASE . . . ... .o vttt ittt it it sa e iiaannns 2.5% 2.5%
Expected residual active life (inyears) ... .. ... . i s 9.3 12.0

Assumed discount rates are used in measurements of the projected, accumulated and vested bencfit
obligations and the service and interest cost components of net periodic pension cost. Management makes
estimates of discount rates 1o reflect the rates at which the pension benefits could be effectively settled. In
making those estimates, management evaluates rates of return on high-quality fixed-income investments
currently available and expected to be available during the period to maturity of the pension benefits.

Note 11. Financing Arrangements

Other Long-term Obligations

¢
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Senior Convertible Notes

On May 19, 2005 the Company closed a private placement of $35 million of the Company’s 8.0% senior
secured convertible notes and warrants Lo purchase common stock. As described below, on November 8, 2005,
certain terms of the May 2005 convertible note financing were amended pursuant 10 Amendment Agreements
entered into between Avanex and each holder of such notes, and the Company issued amended and restated notes
and amended and restated warrants. The original notes could be converted into shares of the Company’s common
stock at the option of the holder prior to the maturity of the notes on May 19, 2008. The conversion price of the
original notes was $1.21, which represented a premium approximately 10% over the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on May 16, 2005. Subject to certain conditions, at any time afier May 19, 2007, we
could automatically convert all of the outstanding original notes into common stock if the weighted average price
of the common stock of Avanex equals or exceeds 175% of the conversion price for a specified period. The
original warrants provided holders with the right to purchase up to 8,677,689 shares of common stock and were

-
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exercisable during the three-year period ending May 19, 2008, at an exercise price of $1.5125 per share, which
represented a premium of approximately 35% over the closing price of the Company’s common stock on
May 16, 2005. The conversion price of the original notes and the exercise price of the original warrants were
each subject to adjustment upon specified events, including a broad-based anti-dilutien provision that until
October 27, 2003, contained a floor price of $1.1375 (subject to adjustment for stock splits, combinations or
similar events). The floor price relating to the original notes and warrants was eliminated upon stockholder
approval at the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on October 27, 2005. Our obligations under the original
notes were secured by substantially all of our assets, substantially all of the assets of our domestic subsidiaries,
and a pledge of 65% of the capital stock of our non-U.S. subsidiaries.

The Company applied the guidance from Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 98-5, “Accounting for
Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Ratios™ and
EITF Issue 00-27, “Application of Issue 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments” in accounting for the
debentures, the accompanying warrants and the value of the conversion feature,

The Company assigned a relative fair value of $3.6 million and $31.4 million to the original warrants and
original notes, respectively, by using a Black-Scholes model and assuming a historic volatility in the Company’s
stock price of 79.5% and a contractual term of three years for the life of the instrument. The relative fair value of
the original warrants increased additional paid-in-capital on the balance sheet at June 30, 2005. interest expense
of $5.6 million was prepaid for two years and was recorded in other current assets and other assets. In addition,
the Company capitalized $1.9 million related to issuance costs associated with the original notes te be amortized
as interest expense over the term of the original notes. The Company reduced additional paid-in capital by
$260,000 related to issuance costs associated with the original warrants.

Prior to registration in June 2005 of the shares of common stock that would be received upon exercise of the
warrants, the Company accounted for the value of the warrants as a derivative which upon the registration of the
shares, the Company realized a gain of $740,000 from the change in fair value of the derivative and reclassified
the fair value of the warrants as debt discount, to be amortized as interest expense over the term of the
convertible note.

On November 8, 2005, the Company and each note holder entered into a separate Amendment Agreement
(each an “Amendment Agreement” and collectively Amendment Agreements”). Pursuant to each Amendment
Agreement, each holder agreed to withdraw the purported default notice, if any, delivered by such holder. In
addition the Company and each holder entered into a mutual release. The Company also agreed to pay to each
holder a release amount which, in the aggregate, totaled $3.5 million.

In addition, pursuant to the Amendment Agreement, the company and each holder agreed to amend and
restate such holder’s note (the “Amended and Restated Notes™) primarily to amend the conversion price to $0.90.
The Amended and Restated Notes provide for adjustments for stock splits and similar events,

Pursuant to each Amendment Agreement, the Company and each holder also agreed to amend and restate
such holder’s Warrants (the “Amended and Restated Warrants™), primarily to amend the exercise price 10 $1.13
per share. The Amended and Restated Warrants provide for adjustments for stock splits and similar events.

Pursuant to each Amendment Agreement, the Company and each holder amended certain portions of the
Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 16, 2005. The Company on December 2, 2005 filed a registration
statement on Form S-3 to cover the resale of the shares issued upon conversion of the Amended and Restated
Notes and the Amended and Restated Warrants.

The modification of the convertible notes and attached warrants, as described in the Amended Agreement
and the Amended and Restated Warrants, has been accounted for as a debt extinguishment and the issuance of
new debt instrument, in accordance with EITF 96-19, “Debtor’s Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of
Debt Instruments”, Accordingly, in connection with extinguishment of the original debt, the Company
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recognized a $4.5 million loss, comprised of $3.5 million paid to setile the note holders’ alleged default claims,

$575,000 of issuance costs and $450,000 from the increase in fair value from the modification of warrants (a
reduction in the exercise price).

The modified notes were determined to have fair a value at November 8, 2005, as follows (in thousands}:

Note principal . ..o oo vttt e e $35,000
Less:
Unaccreted discount, issuance costs and prepaid interest ................ (8,662)
Embedded interest rate derivative . ....... .. .. ... i (248)
Fair value of modified convertiblenotes . ......... ... 0 i, $26.090

The Company assigned an increase in fair value of $450,000 to the Amended and Restated Warrants by
using a Black-Scholes model and assuming a historic volatility in the Company’s stock price of 79.5%, a risk-
free interest rate of 4.42% and a contractual term of 2.5 years for the remaining life of the instrument. The fair
value of the Amended and Restated Warrants increased additional paid-in-capital on the balance sheet at
December 31, 2005 and was included in the $4.5 million loss incurred in the convertible notes modification
during the quarter ended December 31, 2005.

During the fiscal 2006 the amortization of prepaid interest, accretion of notes discount and the increase in
the valuation of the warrants prior to their registration totaled $3.8 million. Unaccreted discount was $1.0 million
at June 30, 2006.

During fiscal 2006, holders of $29.5 million of the outstanding Amended and Restated Notes converted to
common stock. At June 30, 2006, the notes balance was $5.5 million at face value, and $4.6 million net of
unaccreted discount.

During fiscal 2007, holders of the remaining $5.5 mitlion of the Amended and Restated Notes converted to
common stock. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2007, the Company does not have any outstanding Notes.

Other Long-term Obligations and Other

In January 2004, the Company entered into an installment payment agreement with a financial institution
whereby the financial institution agreed to loan to the Company an aggregate principal amount of $865,000 to
finance the acquisition of SAP software, which was collateral for the outstanding loan under the agreement. The
outstanding balance on the loan was fully repaid in January 2006.

The Company leases certain equipment and other fixed assets under capital lease agreements. The assets and
liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lesser of the present value of aggregate future minimum
lease payments, including estimated bargain purchase options, or the fair value of the assets under lease. Assets
under capital leases are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or useful life of the assets. At June 30, 2006,
capital lease obligations amounted to $823,000 at an interest rate of 7.7% with maturity in fiscal 2007. At
June 30, 2007, the Company had minimal capital lease obligations.

The Company’s facilities in Nozay, France are leased from Alcatel. When the Company acquired the
business of Alcatel Optronics in August 2003, certain of the Nozay facilities leases were accounted for as capital
leases. In Qctober 2003, the Company and Alcatel agreed to revised lease terms, which provided the following
benefits to Avanex: approximately $6.6 million in rent credits to be received in a combination of cash and free
rent; allowance for Avanex to exit unneeded space and obtain early termination of leases; and funding by Alcatel
of Avanex’s relocation and environmental remediation costs. Due to the related party relationship with Alcatel,
and the Company’s obligation to continue lease facilities from Alcatel through 2012, the $5.3 million Nozay
facilities capital lease liability at October 1, 2005 is being recognized as a reduction of rent over the remaining
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lease period, which will end in 2012. Accordingly, we reclassified the remaining capital lease liability to other
long-term liabilities at December 31, 2005. However, with the sale of our subsidiary in France, this liability
ceased to exist as of June 30, 2007.
Capital Lease Obligations

Payments due under capital lease agreements for equipment as of June 30, 2007 are as follows
(in thousands):

Total Cash

Obligation
Yearending June 30, 2008 .. . ... e e 512
Less: Amounts representing interest ... ..., i i 3
Present value of net minimum lease payments ................. ... ...... 9

Note 12. Stockholders’ Equity \
Securities Purchase Agreements

On March 6, 2006, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with certain buyers who
were parties to the agreement for the sale of 24.1 million registered shares of common stock at a price per share
of $2.00 for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $48.1 million. The investors also received warrants to
purchase up to an aggregate of 7.2 million shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.73 per share,
subject to adjustment for antidilution, exercisable on and after September 9, 2006 and on or before March 9,
2010. g :

The number of shares deliverable upon exercise of the warrants and the exercise price of the warrants are
each subject to adjustment whenever we issue or sell certain of our equity securities for a consideration per share
less than a price equal to the applicable exercise price of the warrants. In connection with the Company’s
March 1, 2007 financing, the holders of such warrants received an antidilution adjustment pursuant to the terms
of such warrants resulting in up to 117,221 additional shares being issued upon the exercise of such warrants and
the reduction of the exercise price of the warrants from $2.73 per share to $2.68 per share. The sale of common
stock and issuance of the warrants was made pursoant to an effective registration statement on Form S-3.

The net proceeds from the sale of the.shares of common stock were $44.7 million, after deducting a
placement fee and the Company’s offering expenses. In addition, if the warrants issued to the Investors are
exercised in full for cash, the Company will receive an additional $18.5 million in net proceeds.

On March 1, 2007, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with an accredited
institutional investor, for the sale of 10,795,056 shares of common stock of Avanex at a price per share of
$1.8527 for an aggregate purchase price of $20 million. The financing closed on March 1, 2007. In connection
with the financing and pursuant to the Agreement, the investor received a warrant to purchase up to an additional
2,698,764 shares of common stock. The warrant is exercisable at an exercise price of $2.1452 per share and for a
term starting March 31, 2007 and ending March 1, 2011.
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Shares Reserved

Common stock reserved for future issuance is as follows:

June 30, 2007

Stock Option:
Options outstanding . ......... ... .o i i 13,312,450
Restricted stock units outstanding ... ... 4,206,895
Reserved for future grants .............cccoiiiiiiiiiinnaeeaenaas 17,319,865
Employee stock purchase plan ............ .. ..o i 2,353,272
WAITANLS . .o\t oeee e s e o s ae e an et nnenaaanseans e 18,036,509
Total shares reserved for future issuance .......... oo iiernnriennnn 55,228,991

Note 13. Stock-based Compensation
Stock Option and Stock Rights Plans

The Company adopted the 1998 Stock Plan, which has been amended (the “Option Plan™), under which
officers, employees, directors, and consultants may be granted options to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock. The Option Plan permits options to be granted at an exercise price of not less than the fair value
on the date of grant as determined by the Board of Directors. Options are generally granted with ten-year terms
and four-year vesting periods. '

The authorized shares under the Option Plan automatically increase each July | by an amount equal to the
lesser of (1) 6,000,000 shares, (ii) 4.9% of the Company’s outstanding shares, or (iii) a smaller amount
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. A total of 16,208,251 shares of the Company’s common stock
have been reserved for future issuance under the Option Plan as of June 30, 2007,

The Option Plan also permits the Company to grant restricted stock units to employees. During fiscal 2007,
the Company granted restricted stock units to employees that vest over periods of two to four years.

In January 2000, the Company adopted the 1999 Director Option Plan, which has been amended (the
“Director Plan”). Non-employee directors are entitled to participate in the Director Plan. The Director Plan
generally provides for an automatic initial grant of an option to purchase 80,000 shares of Avanex common stock
to each non-employee director on the date when a person first becomes a non-employee director. Each initial
option grant will vest as to 25% of the shares subject to the option on each anniversary of its date of grant. After
each initial option grant, each non-employee director will automatically be granted an option to purchase 20,000
shares Avanex common stock each year on the date of the Company’s annual stockholder’'s meeting. These
options will vest and become fully exercisable on the anniversary of the date of grant. Option grants generally
have a term of 10 years. The exercise price of all options will be the fair market value per share of Avanex
common stock on' the date of grant. After the initial grant, each non-employee director will automatically be
granted 10,000 Restricted Stock Units each year on the date of the Company’s annual stockholders’ meeting. The
Restricted Stock Unit grants will fully vest and become 100% payable on the anniversary of the date of grant.

The Director Plan also provides for automatic annual increases each July 1, by an amount equal to the lesser

of (i) 150,000 shares, (i) 0.25% of the outstanding shares on that date, or (iii)'a smaller amount determined by

| the Company’s Board of Directors. A total of 1.2 million shares of the Company’s common stock have been
| reserved for future issuance under the Director Plan as of June 30, 2007.

Determining Fair Value

Valuaiion and amortization method—The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing formula and a single option award approach. This fair value is then amortized
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period.
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Expected Term—The Company’s expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock-based
awards are expected to be outstanding and is determined based on the Staff Accounting Builetin 107 simplified
method.

Expected Volatility—The Company’s volatility factor is estimated using the Company’s stock price hisfory.

Expected Dividend—The Black-Scholes valuation model calls for a single expected dividend yield as an
input. The dividend yield of zero is based on the fact that the Company has never paid cash dividends and has no
present intention to pay cash dividends in the future.

Risk-Free Interest Rate—The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation
method on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent
remaining term. Where the expected term of the Company’s stock-based awards does not correspond with the
terms for which interest rates are quoted, the Company performs a straight-line mterpolauon to determme the rate
from the available term maturities.

Fair Value—Fair value of the Company’s stock options granted to employees for the ycars ended June 30,
2007 and 2006 was estimated using the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended
June 30,
o 206

Option Plan Shares:

Expectedterm (inyears) .............co00unnn. e [ 6.25 6.25

Volatility . ... e e 77% 80%

Expecteddividend . ... .. .. ... .. . . .. e, 0% 0%

Risk-free interestrate ............ ettt 4.70% 4.63%

Weighted-average fairvalue .. .......... ... ... ... ... . ciiiinn.. $1.24  $1.72

ESPP Shares:

Expected term (inyears) ....... ... ...t 1.00 1.00

Volatility ... ... .. e 79.0% 79.5%

Expecteddividend ... ... . .. . e . 0% 0%
~Risk-free interestrate ............ ... ... .. i 493% 431%

Weighted-average fair value ... ....... e $094 5193

Stock Compensation Expense

Under the provisions of SFAS 123(R), we recorded $7.1 million and $4.5 million of stock compensation
expense in our consolidated statement of operations for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

At June 30, 2007, the total compensation cost related to unvested stock-based awards granted to employees
under the Company’s stock option plans but not yet recognized was approximately $14.3 million, net of
estimated forfeitures of $3.8 million. This cost will be amortized on a straight-line basis over a weighted-average
period of approximately 3.1 years and will be adjusted for subsequent changes in estimated forfeitures.

The amortization of stock compensation under SFAS 123(R) for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is
based on the single-option approach.
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Stock Option Activity

The Company issues new shares of common stock upon exercise of stock options. The following is a
summary of option activity for Avanex’s stock option plans since our adoption of SFAS §23(R):

Weighted-
Weighted- average Aggregate
average Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Exercise Contractual Value, in
Shares Price Term in Years thousands
Outstanding at July 1,2005 ... ... 19,650,917  $5.08
Granted ... e 2,675,455  $1.76
Exercised ............... e e e (1,567,288) $1.34
Forfeitures and cancellations . ................. e (8,070,743)  $5.07 L L
Outstanding at July 1,2000 . ... . oo ... 12,688,341 $4.83 7.6 $1,986
Granted ..... ... ..ot e 3,423,000 $1.712
Exercised ...........c.c ... e P (355,459) $1.03
Forfeitures and cancellations ........... T, (2.443.432) $4.56 - _
QOutstanding at June 30,2007 . ... ... oo 13,312,450  $4.20 6.6 . §],889
Vested and expected to vest at June 30,2007 .............. 11,887,273  $4.50 63 $1,569
Exercisable at June 30,2007 .. .. ... ... o i 8,372,025 $5.65 5.3 § 890
Nu:ﬁber of .
Options Average Weighted Number Weighted
: Qutstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
Range of Exercise ~~ As of Contractual Exercise As of Exercise
* Prices June 30, 2007 Term in Years Price June 30, 2007 Price
$ 039-3 106 1,511,762 6.77 $ 095 901,562 $ 092
$ 1.07-% 159 766,092 8.55 $ 138 174,648 $ 125
$ 164-% 164 1,550,000 9.33 $ lo4 0 $§ —
$ L70-% 1.98. 1,418,350 8.08 $ 1.8l 240,793 $§ 194
$§ 206-3% 219 1,594,884 7.24 $ 217 1,045,592 $ 219
$ 233-$§ 288 1,504,470 7.39 $ 2.65 1,119,416 § 262
$ 295-% 395, 2,049,509 6.02 $ 3.61 1,972,631 $£ 3.63
$ 4.00-%5 490 2,018,638 3.26 $ 462 2,018,638 $ 462
$ 499-%115.81 866,745 3.58 $ 22.68 866,745 $ 22.68
$139.25-%$139.25 32,000 _2_2 $138.25 32,000 §139.25
13,312,450 6.57 $ 4,20 ' 8,372,025 3 5.65

] '

The aggregate intrinsic vatue is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying
awards and the quoted price of the Company’s common stock for the 4.5 million options that were in-the-money
at June 30, 2007. During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value of options
exercised under the Company’s stock option plans was $338,000 and $915,000, respectively. Intrinsic value was
determined as of the date of option exercise.

Under the Option Plan, the Company may also grant share purchaseé rights either alone, in addition to, or in
tandem with other awards granted under the Option Plan and/or cash awards granted outside the Option Plan.
Exercise of these share purchase rights are made pursuant to restricted stock purchase agreements cortaining
provisions established by the Board of Directors. These provisions may give the Company the right to repurchase
the shares at the original sales price. This right expires at a rate determined by the Board of Directors, generally
at a rate of 25% after onc year and 1/48 per month thereafter. There were 27,000 share purchase rights issued in
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the year ended June 30, 2006, and there were no share purchase rights issued in the years ended June 30, 2007
and 2005. As of June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, no shares were subject to repurchase.

The weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $1.24,
$1.47 and $1.34, respectlvely

For the year ended June 30 2005, the Company recorded amortization (recovery) of deferred stock
compensation of $243,000. At June 30, 2005, the Company had $353,000 of remaining unamortized deferred
compensation, which was reclassified as a reduction of our additional paid-in-capital upon the adoption of SFAS
123(R} on July 1, 2005.

On June 28, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the acceleration of vesting of certain
unvested and “out-of-the-money” stock options with exercise prices equal to or greater than $2.60 per share
previously awarded to its employees, including its executive officers, under Avanex’s 1998 Stock Plan. The
acceleration of vesting was effective for stock options outstanding as of June 28, 2005. Options to purchase
approximately 5.9 million shares of common stock or 38% of Avanex’s outstanding unvested options {of which
options to purchase approximately 5.5 million shares or 44% of Avanex’s outsianding unvested options are held
by executive officers) were subject to the acceleration. The weighted average exercise price of the options
subject to the acceleration was $3.56.

Restricted Stock Unit Activity

The Company issues new shares of commeon stock upon the vesting of restricted stock units. The following
is a summary of option activity for Avanex’s stock option plans since our adoption of SFAS 123(R):

Weighted-
Weighted- average Agpgregate
average Remaining Intrinsic
Number of Exercise Contractual Value, in
. Shares Price Term in Years thousands
Outstanding at July 1,2005 ........ ... . ... ... .. . ... —
Awarded . . ... e i R 5,899,956  $0.001
Released ... .. .. . . . i e (1,130,487) $0.001°
Forfeitures and cancellations .. .......... ... iieann., M) $0.001 L
Qutstanding at July 1,2006 .. ... . oo, 4,066,002  $0.001 2.5 $7.154
Awarded . ............... et e e e 3,206,662  $0.001
Released . ... ... ... ... . i, e (2,281,967) $0.001°
Forfeitures and cancellations ............ ... ...c0oooean, (783,802  $0.001 _
Outstanding at June 30,2007 . ... ................ o 4,206,895  $0.001 ﬁ $7,575
1.2 $5.944

Vested and expected to vest at June 30,2007 .............. 3,303,782  $0.001

The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the shares and the
quoted price -of the Company’s common stock for the 4.2 million of outstanding restricted stock shares at
June 30, 2007, all of which were in-the-money. During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the aggregate
intrinsic value of restricted stock units vested under the Company’s stock option plans was $4.1 million and
$2.8 million, respectively. Intrinsic value was determined as of the date of restricted stock unit release.

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”)

In Janvary 2000, the Company adopted the 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase
Plan”) for its employees. The' Stock Purchase Plan permits participants to purchase the Company’s common
stock through payroll deductions of up to 10% of the participant’s compensation. The maximum number of
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shares a participant may purchase during each offering period is 3,000 shares. The price of commen stock
purchases will be 85% of the lower of the fair market value at the beginning of the offering period and the: ending
of the offering period.

The Stock Purchase Plan provides for automatic annual increases each July 1, to shares reserved for
issuance by an amount equal to the lesser of (i} 750,000 shares, (ii) 1% of the outstanding shares on that date, or
(iii) a smaller amount determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. A total of 2,353,272 shares of the
Company’s common stock have been reserved for future issuance under the Stock Purchase Plan as of une 30,
2007.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan Information

In connection with our ESPP, the following shares were issued during the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006
and 2005:

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Mumber of sharesissued . ....... ... it 427,355 588,431 986,123
Weighted-average purchase price .............ccovviiieri i, $§ 08 $ 080 § 122

During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under the
Company’s ESPP was $326,000 and $143,000, respectively.
Note 14. Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes using an asset and liability approach, under which deferred income
taxes are provided based upon enacted laws and rates applicable to periods in which the taxes become payable.

The domestic and foreign components of loss before provision for income taxes were as follows
(in thousands):

Year Ended June 30,
L2007 2006 2005
Domestic .. ....... e $(22,282) $(46,678) $ (48,531)
Foreign ............... .. .o i (7,931) (8,012) (59,840)
TOMY ot e e $(30,213) $(54,690) $(108,371)

The reconciliation of income tax expenses (benefit) at the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% to net
income tax benefit included in the statement of operations for thé years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 are as
foltows (in thousands);

Year Ended June 36,

2007 2006 2005
Li.S. Fed taxes (benefit) at statutory rate . .........ovvvrvrvenncnnansrens $(10,272) $(18,595) $(36,846)
Foreign Loss not Benefited ................coiiriioiiiiienennn, 2,544 2,712 18,912
PY income Trueup—VA ... ..uintrnrir e, 9% 12,426
Expiring NOL'S .. oottt ittt 215 — —
R&ED credit ..ot i e e —_ — (524)
Change in valuation allowance ... 7.947 2,868 19,891
Other ............. e SO U N (65) 589 (1,433)
TOT AL . e e e ey $ 465 § — $ —
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities refiect the net tax effects of net operating loss and tax credit carryovers
and the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and
the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets are as
follows (in thousands): .
’ \ June 30,

2007 2006 2005

Deferred Tax Assets: : . . : _ . L

NOL S . e e $ 94252 $153,194 $ 148,960

Tax credit carryforwards .. ... ... ... . . ... ... . 5,646 5,076 5047

Inventory Reserves . ... ... i i 10,515 9,093 8,715

Restructuring charges . ........ ... i 4,029 4,845 7,080

Other ............... ... e P e ‘9,490 5,965 6,852

Intangibles .. ... . . e e 2,332 822 (445)

) Total Deferred Tax ASSets . .. .. ... .. . i, 126,264 179,895 176,209

Valuation Allowance . ... ... . . . (126,264) (179,895) (176,209
Net Deferred Tax ASSelS .. ........ o) e $ —~.$ — 3 —

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon future earnings, if any, the timing and amount of which
are uncertain. Accordingly, the net deferred tax assets have been fully offset by a valuation allowance. The
valuation allowance (decreased) increased by ($53.6} million and $3.7 million during June 30, 2007 and June 30,
2006, respectively.

As of June 30, 2007, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards for federal income tax purposes of
approximately $298.9 million which expire in the years 2012 through 2027 and federal research and development
tax credits of approximately $5.7 million. The Company also had state net operating loss carry forwards of
approximately $136.7 million, which expire in the years 2008 through 2016 and state research and development
tax credits of approximately $6.9 million.

Utilization of the net operating losses may be subject to substantial annual limitation due to federal and state
ownership limitations. The annual limitation could result in the expiration of the net operating losses before
utilization. ' :

The Company sold a 90% interest in Avanex France, its subsidiary in France, during fiscal 2007. As of
June 30, 2006, Avanex France had $192 million of net operating losses, with a full valuation allowance. As a
result of this transaction, the. company wrote-off Avanex France’s net operating losses from its deferred tax
assets. As a result of this write-off, the valuation allowance de¢reased by $64 million as the $192 million was tax
effected at a tax rate of 33.33%.

Note 15. Market Sales, Export Sales, Significant Customers, and Concentration of Supply

SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” establishes
standards for the way public business enterprises report information about operating segments in annual financial
statements and requires that those enterprises report selected information about operating segments in interim
financial reports. SFAS No. 131 also establishes standards for related disclosures about products and services,
geographic areas and major customers.

‘The Company’s chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”). The-CEO reviews the Company’s financial information presented on a consolidated basis substantially
similar to the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Therefore, the Company has concluded that it
operates in one segment, to manufacture and market photonic processors, and accordingly has provided only the
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required enterprise wide disclosures. The Company has adopted a matrix management organizational structure,
whereby management of worldwide activities is on a functional basis.

Customers who represented 10% or more of our net revenue or accounts receivable were as follows:

Percent of
Accounts
Percentage of Net Receivable at
Revenue June 30,
207 2006 2008 207 006
Company A .. ... e e 20% 27% 34% 24% 28%
Company B ... ... . 17%  * * 10% *
Company € ... . e * 11% * * *

6% 3% % % 8%

* less than 10% !

Revenues by geographical area were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
AMEIICES -+« v oo et e et e et e $ 95,189 $ 75889 § 61,973
Europe ... e .. 84,126 67,151 63,947
Asta-Pac ... . e 33,440 19,904 34,775
Total ... . . e $212,755 $162,944  $160,695
Long-lived assets by geographical area were as follows (in thousands):
' Year Ended
June 30,
2007 2006
00 7 OO $3,949  $3,888
() 1 0 1,951 1,780

$5,900  $5,668

Note 16. Subsequent Event

OCn July 2, 2007, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) with
Essex Corporation (“Essex™), a subsidiary of Northrop Grumman Space and Mission Systems Corporation.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company acquired the assets relating to the MSA 300-pin transponder and XFP
transceiver businesses of the Commercial Communication Products Division of Essex, in exchange for
$2.0 million in cash (the “Transaction”). The Agreement contains representations, warranties, covenants and
indemnification provisions typical for a transaction of this kind. The Transaction closed on July 2, 2007,
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Note 17. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Jun, 30, Mar.31, Dec.3l, Sep.30, Jun.30, Mar.31, Dec.31, Sep.30,
2007 , 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006 2005 2005

{In thousands except per share data)

(Unaudited)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:
Netrevenue .........ocovuivrirnnrvaninnns $ 51,098 $ 55143 § 55623 % 50,891 §$ 45458 $ 40,128 § 36,125 § 41,233
Costofrevenue .............couvnvinnns 38,999 44 845 45,127 45,5719 43,685 38,485 33,207 39,107
Gross 0SS .. oivui i i 12,099 10,298 10,496 5312 1,773 1,643 2918 2,126
Operating expenses:
Research and development ’ 7.511 6,263 5.832 5,625 5,703 5.189 54352 7,127
Sales and marketing ......... .0 o0 3,779 4,043 3.89] 3,548 3,677 2,088 2,783 3,788
General and administrative ................ 3469 5,083 9.075 5,651 3,346 4,191 3,841 3274
Amortization of intangibles ............... 664 531 656 852 912 1,386 1,385 1,765
Restructuring costs (recovery) ............. (n 1,155 436 (63) (1,225) 155 2,942 40
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property and

eqUIPMENt .. .. ... (484 5 (28) 20y (1810  (2,486) (775) 7
Loss on sale of subsidiary ................. 3216 —_ — — — — — —
Total operating expenses .. ... ...evevvvrns. 18.138 17,080 19,862 15,593 10,603 11,423 15,628 13.001
Loss fromoperations . . ..... ... 6,039 (6,782 (9.366) (10,281)  (8,830) (9,730 (127100 (15875
Interest and other (expense) income, net ..... 818 129 813 567 (229) 38D (5,833) {1.048)
Loss before income taxes ................. (5.221)  (6.653)  (8.553) (9.714) (9059 (i0,167) (18,543) (16,923)
Provision forincome taxes ................ (464) — — — —_ — — —
Netloss ... ..o $ (5.685) § (6,653 $ (8.553) § (5714) $ (9.059) $(10,167) $(18.543) $(16,923)
Basic and diluted net loss per common '

share ... $ (V03)$ (003) % (OOH F (005 5 OO4) $ 005 § (013 F (0.12)
Basic and diluted shares outstanding ........ 225668 214,034 206873 205389 204,040 158246 145501 145,182
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of June 30, 2007. Based upon that evaluation, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
not effective as of June 30, 2007 because of the material weakness discussed below.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Qur internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”). Internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that: (i} pertain (o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and Ffairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.5.
GAAP, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our
management and directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthcrized acquisition, use or disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth in Jnternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Management’s assessment identified the
following material weakness that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the
annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected:

Controls over judgmental and complex processes and transactions were inadequate resulting in
insufficient control over financial reporting.

Because of the weakness described above, management’s assessment is a conclusion that, as of June 30.
2007, our internal control over financial reporting was not effective based on the COSO criteria. Deloitte &
Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, audited management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Deloitte & Touche LLP issued an audit report
thereon, which is included herein.

Our management is treating the outstanding material weakness, as well as the control environment, seriously
and intends to implement the following actions to remediate the deficiencies:

Evaluation of and revision as needed, of calculations used in the preparation of accounts receivable,
warranty, and excess and obsolete inventory reserves that fully consider the impact of changing trends in our
revenues, outstanding AR balances and excess and obsolete inventory movement, and increased supervision
and review over other judgmental and complex processes and transactions.
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These actions are part of an overall program that management is implementing during the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2008.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting During the Fiscal Quarter Ended June 30, 2007

During the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2007, there were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonable likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting, other than the weakness noted above.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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REPORT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Avanex Corporation:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Avanex Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company™) did not
maintain effective internal controt over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, because of the effect of the
material weakness identified in management’s assessment based on criteria established in /nternal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The
Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. :

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether cffective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of interndl control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“generally accepted
accounting principles”). A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that cou:
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
preventad or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequae
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has
been identified and included in management’s assessment: controls over judgmental and complex processes and
transactions were inadequate and led 10 a lack of control over the Company’s closing and reporting process. This
material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year ended June 31},
2007, of the Company and this report does not affect our report on such financial statements and financial
statement schedule.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in
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Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Also in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria the Company has not maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2007 of the Company and our report dated September 4, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion
on those financial statements and financial statement schedule and included an explanatory paragraph regarding
the change in the Company’s method of accounting for defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans
upon the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 158, Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) as described in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

/s{ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

San Jose, California
September 4, 2007

76




PART IIL.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item concerning our directors, compliance with Section 16 of the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, our code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer and our Audit Committee is incorporated by reference to the
information set forth in the sections entitled “Proposal One—Election of Directors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Corporate Governance” in our Proxy Statement for our 2007 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after
the end of our fiscal year (the “Proxy Statement”). Information regarding the Registrant’s executive officers is set
forth at the end of Part 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Executive Officers of the
Registrant.” '

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION .
Information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption
“Executive Compensation” in the Proxy Statement.
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the sections
entitled “Security Ownership of Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions™ and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled “Ratification of
Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Accounting Fees” in the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements: See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements under Part I, Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedule: The following financial statement schedule of Avanex, Inc., for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, is filed as part of this Report and should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Avanex, Inc.

Schedule I1  Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Schedules not listed above have been omitted because they are not applicable or are not required or the
information required to be set forth therein is tncluded in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

3. Exhibits: See Item 15(b) below. We have filed, or incorporated into this Annual Report by
reference, the exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibits Index immediately following the signature page
of this Form 10-K.

(b) Exhibits:

 We have filed, or incorporated into this Annual Report by reference, the exhibits listed on the accompanying
Exhibits Index immediately following the signature page of this Form 10-K.

{c) Financial Statement Schedules: See Item 15(a}, above.

ITEM 15(A)(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE II

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Balance at Charged to
Beginning of Costs and Balance at
Year Expenses Deductions (1)  End of Year

{amounts in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Yearended June 30,2005 .................... $1,483,000 $ 573,000 $64,000 $1,992,000
Yearended June 30,2006 .................... $1,992.000 $(1,992000)0 § — $ —
Yearended June 30,2007 .............. .. .... $ — % — 5 — $ —

(1) Deductions represent uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries.

All other schedules have been omatted because they are not applicable or are not required or the information
required to be set forth therein is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. '

AVANEX CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Jo§S. MaJor, Jr.
Jo S. Major, Jr.
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board of Directors
(Duly Authorized Officer
and Principal Executive Officer)

Date: September 6, 2007

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears bulow
constitutes and appoints Jo 8. Major, Jr. and Marla Sanchez, and each of them, as his or her true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her
nams, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this report. and to fil: the
same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority 10 do
and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to
all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has
been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated,

Signature m E
/s Jo 8. MAIOR, JR. President, Chief Executive Officer and September 6. 2007
Jo S. Major, Jr. Chairman of the Board of Directors

(principal executive officer)

/s! MARLA SANCHEZ Senior Vice President and Chief September 6, 2007
Marla Sanchez Financial Officer (principal
financial officer)

/s VINTON CERF ' Director September 6, 2007
Vinton Cerf
/s GREG DOUGHERTY Director September 6, 2007
Greg Dougherty
/s/ JoEL A. SmrTH NI Director September 6, 2007

Joel A. Smith II1

Isi SuUsSAN WANG Director September 6, 2007

Susan Wang




Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2.1

22
31

3.2
33

34

4.1
4.2

43
‘ 4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
4.9

4.10

4.11

Share Purchase Agreement, dated February 28, 2007, by and among Avanex Corporation, Global
Research Company and Mr. Didier Sauvage (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of
Avanex’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on March 2, 2007).

Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated July 2, 2007, between the Registrant and Essex
Corporation (filed herewith),

Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, as amended to date (which is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 16, 2000).

Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred
Stock of Avanex Corporation {which is incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 3.4 of the
Registrant’s Form 8-A filed on August 24, 2001).

Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form
§-3 filed on March 30, 2007).

Bylaws of the Registrant (which are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 9, 2006).

Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4.

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the
Registrant's Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 333-92097 on Form §-1 filed on
January 14, 2000). .

Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated July 26, 2001, between the Registrant and EquiServe Trust
Company, N. A, (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Registrant’s
Form 8-A filed on August 24, 2001),

First Amendment to the Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated March 18, 2002, between the

Registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N. A, {which is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of the Registrant’s Form 8-A/A filed on March 28, 2002).

Second Amendment to the Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated May 12, 2003, between the
Registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N. A. (which is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 of the Registrant's Form 8-A/A filed on May 30, 2003}.

Third Amendment to the Preferred Stock Rights Agreement dated May 16, 2005, between the
Registrant and EquiServe Trust Company, N. A. (which is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 17, 2005).

Fourth Amendment to the Preferred Stock Rights Agreement, dated March 6, 2006 between the
Registrant and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., formerly known as EquiServe Trust Company,
N.A. (which is incorporated herein by reference 10 Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed March 7, 2006).

Form of Amended and Restated Warrants (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibir 10.3
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 9, 2005).

Description of Amendment of Amended and Restated Warrants (which is incorporated herein by
reference to ltem [.01 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 8, 2006).

Form of Warrant (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 7, 2006).

Description of Amendment to Warrants (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibir 1.01 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 9, 2006).




Exhibit
Number

Description

4,12

4.13

4.14

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*
10.5#

10.6%
10.7%
10.8%
10.9*
10.10*
10.11*
10.12*

10.13*

. «Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, dated March 1, 2007 (which is incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2007).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 16, 2005, between the Registrant and the buyers named
therein {which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed May 17, 20035).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 1, 2007 (which is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2007 ).

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Registrant and each of its directors and officers (which
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement No.
333-92027 on Form S-1 filed on December 3, 1999).

1998 Stock Plan, as amended and restated (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 2, 2005).

Forms of agreement under 1998 Stock Plan, as amended (which is incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement No. 333-92097 on
Form S-1 filed on January 14, 2000),

1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended (which is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibir 4.2 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-8 filed on September 17, 2002).

1999 Director Option Plan, as amended (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on November 9, 2006}

Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement between the Registrant certain of its executive
officers (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Registrant’s Registration
Statement No. 333-92027 on Form S-1 filed on December 3, 1999).

Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement between the Registrant and certain of its directors
(which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2005).

Form of stock option agreement between the Registrant and certain of its executive officers (which iz
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form [0-K
filed on September 20, 2002).

Form of stock option agreement between the Registrant and certain of its executive officers (which is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K

filed on September 26, 2003).

Forms of stock option agreements between the Registrant and certain of its directors (which are
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the Reglsrram s Annual Reporl on Form 10-K

« filed on September 20, 2002).

Forms of stock option agreements between the Registrant and certain of its directors (which are
incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 10.10 of the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K
Jiled on September 26, 2003). -

Form of stock option agreement between the Registrant and certain of its executive officers (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on February 9, 2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Registrant and certain of its employees
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed January 4, 2006).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.14*

10.15%

10.16*

10.17*

10.18%

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25%

10.26*

10.27*

10.28

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Registrant and certain of its executive officers
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed January 4, 2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Registrant and certain of its executive officers
(which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed February 8, 2006).

Employment Agreement between Jo. 8. Major Jr. and the Registrant dated August 18, 2004 (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0Q
Jiled on November 9, 2004).

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between Jo. S. Major Jr. and the Registrant dated
November 1, 2004 (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 9, 2004),

Offer of Employment between Cal Hoagland and the Registrant dated March 24, 2006 (which is
incorporation herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on May 10, 20006).

Offer of Employment between Marla Sanchez and the Registrant dated October 25, 2006 (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed on February 7, 2007).

Offer of Employment between Patrick Edsell and the Registrant dated January 19, 2007 (filed
herewith).

Offer of Employment between Yves LeMaitre and the Registrant dated May 25, 2005 (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.20 1o the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on September 28, 20035).

Offer of Employment between Tony Riley and the Registrant dated September 20, 2005 (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on September 28, 2005).

Offer of Employment between Bradley Kolb and the Registrant dated February 24, 2006 (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on September 28, 2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under 1999 Director Option Plan (which is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
November 16, 2006).

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Under 1999 Director Option Plan (which is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
November 16, 2006).

Description of Fiscal 2007 Employee Bonus Program (which is incorporated herein by reference to
ftem 1.01 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 22, 2007).

Description of Severance Policy (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on September 28, 2005). -

Lease between the Registrant and Stevenson Business Park LLC for Building B of 40919
Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, California dated September 8, 1999 (which is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-92027 on Form §-1
filed on December 3, 1999).
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10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32¢

10.33

10.345

10.35

10.36

10.37¢%

10.38

10.39

10.40

1041+

10.42

Lease Agreement between Stevenson Business Park, LLC and the Registrant for Building C of 40919
Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, California dated March 1, 2000 (which is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit [10.38 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 16,
2000).

Lease Agreément between GAL-LPC Stevenson Boulevard, LP and the Registrant for Buildings A

* and E of 39611 and 39630 Eureka Boulevard, Newark, California dated August 9, 2000 (whick is

incorporated herein by reference to Exhibir 10.35 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q filed on November 15, 2000). '

Stockholders’ Agreement between Avanex Corporation, Alcatel and Corning Incorporation dated
July 31, 2003 (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2003).

Intellectual Property Rights Agreement between Comning Incorporated and Avanex Corporation
Relating to Phetonics dated July 31, 2003 (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2
of the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed on January 16, 2004),

Intellectual Property License Agreement between Alcatel and Avanex Corporation dated July 31,
2003 (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2003).

Supply Agreement between Alcatel and Avanex Corporation dated July 31, 2003 (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q/A filed on January 16, 2004).

First Addendum to the Supply Agreement between the Registrant and Alcatel {which is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form [0-Q filed on
February 14, 2006).

Amendment to the First Addendum to the Supply Agreement between the Registrant and Alcatel
{which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed on February 14, 2006).

Frame Purchase Agreement for Opto Electronic Components between Avanex Corporation and
Alcatel dated July 31, 2003 (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed on January 16, 2004).

Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 16, 2005 between the Registrant and the buyers named
therein (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Repon
filed on May 17, 2005).

Form of Amendment Agreement, dated November 8, 2005, between Avanex and each investor
named therein (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed November 9, 2005).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated March 6, 2006, by and among the Registrant and the buyers
named therein (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed March 7, 2006).

Volume Supply Agreement, dated May 6, 2004, between the Registrant and Fabrinet (which is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form [0-
Q filed on February 14, 2006).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated March 1, 2007, between the Registrant and the investor named
therein (which is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2007).

List of subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herewith).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

23.1

24.1
311
3.2
321

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (filed
herewith). '

Power of Attorney (See signature page).
Certiftcation of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (filed herewith).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) (filed herewith).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 (filed herewith).

1  Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment granted by the
Commission.
*  Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.




COMPANY STOCK PRICE PERFORMANCE GRAFPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders on the Company’s Common
Stock with the cumulative total return of The Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S.) Index and the Nasdaq
Telecommunications Index. The graph assumes that $100 was invested on June 30, 2002 in the Company’s
Common Stock and in each of the indices discussed above, including reinvestment of dividends. No dividends
have been declared or paid on the Company’s Common Stock. Note that historic stock price performance is not
necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5§ YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
AMONG AVANEX CORPORATION, THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX
AND THE NASDAQ TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDEX
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* $£100 invested on 6/30/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending June 30.

w
g
3
<
-
o=
.l
£
—
~
g~
Q)
=
=
=




[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




N AVANEX'

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Executive Officers

Jo S. Major, Jr.: Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer
Marla Sanchez: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Giovanni Barbarossa: Sentor Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

Patrick Edsell: Senior Vice President and General Manager

Bradley Kolb: Senior Vice President, Operations

Yves LeMaitre: Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Board of Directors

Jo S. Major, Jr.(U : Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer
Vinton Cerf®®: Chief Internet Evangelist for Google

Greg Dougherty@®): Senior Advisor, Picarro, Inc.

Joel A. Smith HI®¥#: Dean of Darla Moore School of Business of the University of South Carolina
Susan Wang@¥4): Former Chief Financial Officer of Solectron Corporation

M Option Commitiee

@  (Compensation Committee

3 Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee
@ Audit Committee

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Headguarters

Avanex Corporation, 40919 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, CA 94538; Tel: (510) 897-4188; Web site:
WWW.AvVANeX.com

Investor and Financial Information

Recent press releases and other Avanex information, including the Form 10-K as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, are available without charge on the Avanex website at www.avanex.com. The filings are
also available on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR system at www.sec.gov.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Compuiershare Trust Company N.A., 250 Royall St., Canton, MA 02021-1011; www.computershare.com

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP, San Jose, CA

Counsel
Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, Palo Alto, CA

Annual Stockholder Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held at 9 am. local time on November 15, 2007 at Avanex
Corporation, 40919 Encyclopedia Circle, Fremont, CA 94538.

Forward Looking Statements

This annnal report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, including but not
limited to statements regarding our strategies and expected performance, our financial growth and prospecis, our
competitive position, our market opportunities and the timing of our products releases. We caution you that such
statements reflect our best judgment based on factors currently known to us, and that actual events or resuits
could differ materially. Further information on potential factors that could affect actual results are included in the
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, a copy of which is enclosed herein. Avanex does not assume
any obligation to update the forward-looking statements provided to reflect events that occur or circumstances

that exist after the date on which they were made.
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